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P 0. Box 4065
Monroe, LA F1211-4065

P,
CENTURYIEL

March 20, 2008

Dear Shareholder:

It is a pleasure to invite you to our 2008 AahMeeting of Shareholders on Thursday, May 8jrregg at 2:00 p.m. local time, at our headquariters
Monroe, Louisiana. | hope you can attend.

As in the past, this booklet includes our fafmotice of the meeting, our proxy statement amdamnual financial report.

Most of you have received with this booklgtraxy card that indicates the number of votes yoatwill be entitled to cast at the meeting accogdio
the records of CenturyTel or your broker or oth@mmee. Each CenturyTel share that you have “beiadlfi owned” continuously since May 30, 1987
generally entitles you to ten votes; each othereshatitles you to one vote. Shares held throulgioker or other nominee are presumed to have otge vo
per share. In lieu of receiving a proxy card, g#paints in our benefit plans have been furnishet wating instruction cards. The reverse side &f kbtter
describes our voting provisions in greater detail.

Regardless of how many shares you own or venetbu plan to attend the meeting in person,iinjgortant that your shares be voted at the meefing.
your earliest convenience, please vote by telepbomige Internet, or by completing and returningiyproxy or voting instruction card in the enclosed
return envelope.

Thank you for your interest and continued swpp
Sincerely,
7 e, I
GH Ay
Glen F. Post, Il

Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Office
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VOTING PROVISIONS

Shareholders

Record Shareholdersin general, shares registered in the name ohatyral person or estate that are representedrbficztes dated as of or prior to
May 30, 1987 are presumed to have ten votes pee simal all other shares are presumed to have dageo share. However, the Company'’s articles of
incorporation (the relevant provisions of which egproduced below) set forth a list of circumstanicewhich the foregoing presumptions may be refute
If you believe that the voting information set fodn your proxy card is incorrect or a presumptitade with respect to your shares should not apply,
please send a letter to the Company briefly deisgyithe reasons for your belief. Marking the praayd or contacting us in any other manner will oot
sufficient notification that you believe the votingormation thereon is incorrect.

Beneficial ShareholdersAll shares held through a broker, bank or ott@mimee are presumed to have one vote per shareCdmgany’s articles of
incorporation set forth a list of circumstancesvinich this presumption may be refuted by the persba has held since May 30, 1987 all of the attabu
of beneficial ownership referred to in Article 10)(2) reproduced below. If you believe that somalbof your shares are entitled to ten votes, yay
follow one of two procedures. First, you may watéetter to the Company describing the reasongdur belief. The letter should contain your name
(unless you prefer to remain anonymous), the ndigedorokerage firm, bank or other nominee holdingr shares, your account number with such
nominee and the number of shares you have berfioi@ned continuously since May 30, 1987. Altemely, you may ask your broker, bank or other
nominee to write a letter to the Company on youraifestating your account number and indicatingrtbenber of shares that you have beneficially owned
continuously since May 30, 1987. In either caseyyetter should indicate how you wish to have yshiares voted.

Other. The Company will consider all letters receiveipto the date of the Annual Meeting and, wheertam address is provided in the letter, will
advise the party furnishing such letter of its dami, although in many cases the Company will meehtime to inform an owner or nominee of its dieci
prior to the time the shares are voted. In limiteédumstances, the Company may require additiorfatination before making a determination. If you
have any questions about the Company'’s voting phaes, please call the Company at (318) 388-9500.

Participants in Benefit Plans

Participants in the Company’s Dollars & SeR&mn or Union 401(k) Plan have received votingringtion cards in lieu of a proxy card. Only the
trustees of these plans, in their capacity as ticetustees, can vote the plan shares at the AMegting. However, if you are a participating @nt or
former CenturyTel employee, you are designated“daeed Fiduciary” for voting purposes, which eletityou, on a confidential basis, to instruct the
trustees how to cast the votes attributable tskiaees allocated to your plan account, as well@sportionate number of plan shares for which priyp
executed instructions are not timely received. Byisg and returning your voting instruction caydu are accepting your designation under the phare
“Named Fiduciary,” and you therefore are require@xercise your voting rights prudently and inititerest of all plan participants. If you elect not
vote the shares allocated to your accounts, yaaneshwill be voted in accordance with voting instiens received by the trustees from those plan
participants who do vote.

* k k%

Excerpts from the Company’s Articles of Incorporation
Paragraph C of Article 11l of the Company’sieles of incorporation provides as follows:

(1) Each share of Common Stock . . . whichbbe®n beneficially owned continuously by the saers@n since May 30, 1987 will entitle such persx
ten votes with respect to such share on each n@tiperly submitted to the shareholders of the G@@fon for their vote, consent, waiver, releasetber
action . . .

(2) (a) For purposes of this paragraph C, a chamgeneficial ownership of a share of the Corporas stock will be deemed to have occurred
whenever a change occurs in any person or gropprsbns who, directly or indirectly, through anyiact, arrangement, understanding, relationship
or otherwise has or shares (i) voting power, whitttudes the power to vote, or to direct the votifiguch share; (ii) investment power, which inds
the power to direct the sale or other dispositibauch share; (iii) the right to receive or rettie proceeds of any sale or other disposition ofisu
share; or (iv) the right to receive distributiomgluding cash dividends, in respect to such share.

(b) In the absence of proof to the contragvted in accordance with the procedures refemwad subparagraph (4) of this paragraph C, a chan
beneficial ownership will be deemed to have ocaimbenever a share of stock is transferred of teoto the name of any other person.

(c) In the case of a share of Common Stockheld of record in the name of a corporation,egahpartnership, limited partnership, voting tagst
bank, trust company, broker, nominee or clearirenay, or in any other name except a natural persdrhas not been established pursuant to the
procedures referred to in subparagraph (4) thdt share was beneficially owned continuously sinagy /20, 1987 by the person who possesses all of
the attributes of beneficial ownership referredhtalauses (i) through (iv) of subparagraph (2¥this paragraph C with respect to such share of
Common Stock . . . then such share of Common Stockvill carry with it only one vote regardleskvehen record ownership of such share was
acquired.

(d) In the case of a share of stock held ofre in the name of any person as trustee, ageatd@n or custodian under the Uniform Gifts to bt
Act, the Uniform Transfers to Minors Act or any cpanable statute as in effect in any state, a chanlgeneficial ownership will be deemed to have
occurred whenever there is a change in the beagfiof such trust, the principal of such agent,waed of such guardian or the minor for whom such
custodian is acting.

(3) Notwithstanding anything in this paragrdplto the contrary, no change in beneficial ownigrstill be deemed to have occurred solely as alresu
of:

(a) any event that occurred prior to May 3@87, including contracts providing for options,hig of first refusal and similar arrangements, in
existence on such date to which any holder of shafretock is a party;

(b) any transfer of any interest in sharesto€k pursuant to a bequest or inheritance, byatioer of law upon the death of any individual, gramy
other transfer without valuable consideration, uihg a gift that is made in good faith and nottfa purpose of circumventing this paragraph C;

(c) any change in the beneficiary of any trostany distribution of a share of stock from trimy reason of the birth, death, marriage or dieanf



any natural person, the adoption of any naturadqreprior to age 18 or the passage of a given gp@fitime or the attainment by any natural persbn o
a specified age, or the creation or terminatioarof guardianship or custodian arrangement; or

(d) any appointment of a successor trusteentaguardian or custodian with respect to a sbastock.

(4) For purposes of this paragraph C, all mheiteations concerning changes in beneficial owriprsir the absence of any such change, will be nbgde
the Corporation. Written procedures designed tdifaie such determinations will be establishedhy Corporation and refined from time to time. Such
procedures will provide, among other things, thennga of proof of facts that will be accepted anel ftequency with which such proof may be requied t
be renewed. The Corporation and any transfer agéirite entitled to rely on all information concémg beneficial ownership of a share of stock conti
their attention from any source and in any manaasonably deemed by them to be reliable, but neittleeCorporation nor any transfer agent will be
charged with any other knowledge concerning theebeial ownership of a share of stock.

* k k%

(8) Shares of Common Stock held by the Cotgmras employee benefit plans will be deemed to be heaély owned by such plans regardless of t
such shares are allocated to or voted by partitspamtil the shares are actually distributed tdipipants.

* k k%
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TIME AND DATE

PLACE

ITEMS OF BUSINESS

RECORD DATE

ANNUAL REPORT

PROXY VOTING

March 20, 200¢

CenturyTel, Inc.
100 CenturyTe Drive
Monroe, Louisiana 71203
(318) 388-9500

Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders

2:00 p.m. local time on Thursday, May 8, 2(
Corporate Conference Room

CenturyTel Headquarters

100 CenturyTel Drive

Monroe, Louisian:

(1) To elect four Class Il directors for th-year terms

(2) To ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as andependent auditor for
2008

(3) To act upon a shareholder proposal if prigper
presented at the annual meet

(4) To transact such other business as may pgyopeme before the annual
meeting and any adjournme

You can vote if you are a shareholder of record/anch 10, 2008
Our 2007 annual report is in two pal

(1) our 2007 Financial Report, which is contdimeAppendix Ao this
proxy statemer

(2) our 2007 Review and Chairman’s Message, wisi@nclosed with
these materials as a separate boo

Neither of these documents is a part of our praticiéing materials
Shareholders are invited to attend the annual mg@tiperson. Even if you
expect to attend, it is important that you voteddgphone or the Internet, or

by completing and returning your enclosed proxylcar

Stacey W. Go
Secretar
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CenturyTel, Inc.
100 CenturyTe Drive
Monroe, Louisiana 71203
(318) 388-9500

PROXY STATEMENT

March 20, 2008

Our Board of Directors is soliciting proxiew fuse at the CenturyTel, Inc. Annual Meeting o&®olders to be held at the time and place destiib
the accompanying notice, and at any adjournmeetedii. Beginning on or about March 28, 2008, wenaading this proxy statement to our shareholders
of record as of March 10, 2008.

You can ensure that your shares are votdieahhnual Meeting by submitting your instructionstblephone or the Internet, or by completing, Bign
dating and returning the enclosed proxy card iretineelope provided. Submitting your instructiongooxy by any of these methods will not affect your
right to attend the meeting and vote.

If you are a participant in our Automatic Ddend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Service dErapfoyee Stock Purchase Plans, our enclosed |
card covers shares credited to your account uraldr glan, as well as any shares directly registergdur name. You should not, however, use th&yro
card to vote any shares held for you in our Dol&aiSense Plan (which we refer to below as our djedli401(k) plan) or Union 401(k) Plan. Instead,
participants in these plans will receive from thengrustees separate voting instruction cardsrioy¢hese shares. Plan participants should compled
return these voting instruction cards in the mammevided by such cards and the instructions appgan the reverse side of the chairman’s lettevab

As of March 10, 2008, the record date for dateing shareholders entitled to notice of anddtevat the Annual Meeting, we had outstanding
106,279,131 shares of common stock and 278,854 slduSeries L preferred stock that vote togethi#hr the common stock as a single class on all
matters. In this proxy statement, we refer to tteses as our “Common Shares” and “Preferred Sfiaespectively, and as our “Voting Shares,”
collectively. Our restated Articles of Incorporatigenerally provide that holders of Common Sharashave been beneficially owned continuously since
May 30, 1987 are entitled to cast ten votes perestsabject to compliance with certain procedufetcle 111 of our Articles and the voting proceds
that we have adopted thereunder contain severaigiwas governing the voting power of Common Shaireduding a presumption that each Common
Share held by nominees or by any holder other &aatural person or estate entitles such holdenéovote, unless the holder furnishes us with proof
the contrary. Applying the presumptions descrilrediiicle Il and information known to us, our reds indicate that 146,947,283 votes are entitldokto
cast at the Annual Meeting, of which 146,668,429.8%) are attributable to the Common

1
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Shares. Unless otherwise indicated, we have cadruildl percentages of voting power in this protatement based on this number of votes.

We will pay all expenses of soliciting proxfes the Annual Meeting. Proxies may be solicitedgonally, by mail, by telephone or by facsimileduy
directors, officers and employees, who will notdailitionally compensated therefor. We will alsouest persons holding Voting Shares in their naroe
others, such as brokers, banks and other nomitefsward proxy materials to their principals amduest authority for the execution of proxies, armd
will reimburse them for their expenses incurredamnection therewith. We have retained InnisfreeAM&corporated, New York, New York, to assist in
the solicitation of proxies, for which we will pdgnisfree fees anticipated to be $12,000 and withburse Innisfree for certain of its out-of-pocket
expenses.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
(Item 1 on Proxy or Voting I nstruction Card)

The Board of Directors has fixed the numbediodctors at 12 members, which are divided underAaticles of Incorporation into three classes.
Members of the respective classes hold office taggered terms of three years, with one classedeateach annual shareholders’ meeting. The
shareholders will elect four Class Il directordtet Annual Meeting. Acting upon the recommendatibits Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee, the Board of Directors has nominateddhbe individuals listed below to serve as Clasditectors. Unless authority is withheld, all votes
attributable to the shares represented by eachekalyuted and delivered proxy will be cast foralection of each of these belavamed nominees. Unc
our bylaw nominating procedures, these nomineetharenly individuals who may be elected at the dadrMeeting. For additional information on our
nomination process, see “Corporate Governanb@ector Nomination Process.” If for any reason angh nominee should decline or become unable to
stand for election as a director, which we do mticgate, votes will be cast instead for anotherdidate designated by the Board, without resoligit
proxies.

The following provides certain information titespect to each nominee, each other directorevtess will continue after the Annual Meeting, and
each of our executive officers named in the comaims tables appearing elsewhere herein. Unlesswibe indicated, each person has been engaged in
the principal occupation shown for more than thst fime years.
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Class Il Directors (for terms expiring in 2011):

(PHOTO OF VIRGINIA BOULET) Virginia Boulet , age 54; a director since 1995; Special Couns&tlams and Reese LLP, a law firm;
President and Chief Operating Officer of IMDiveysiinc., an on-line recruiting company, from
March 2002 to February 2004; a director of W&T @fige, Inc.

Committee Membership Nominating and Corporate Governance (Chairper

(PHOTO OF CALVIN CZESCHIN) Calvin Czeschin , age 72; a director since 1975; President andf@hxiecutive Officer of Yelcot
Telephone Company and Ultimate Auto Gro

Committee Membership Executive; Risk Evaluatio

(PHOTO OF JAMES B. GARDNER) James B. Gardner , age 73; a director since 1981; Chairman of Coram8&treet Capital, LLC, a
financial services firm spun off from Samco Capkrkets, Inc., since October 1, 2007; Senior
Managing Director of Samco Capital Markets, InonfrMay 17, 2006 to September 30, 2007; Managing
Director or Senior Managing Director of the capitarkets division of Samco for 12 years prior tO&(
a director of Ennis, Inc

Committee Membership Audit (Chairman); Executive; Compensat

(PHOTO OF GREGORY J. MCCRAY) Gregory J. McCray , age 45; a director since May 2005; Chief Exeeu@fficer of Antenova Limited, a
British company which develops and markets wiretgsaponents, since January 20

Committee Membership Risk Evaluatior

The Board unanimously recommends a vote FOR each of these nominees.
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Class Il Directors (term expires in 2009):

(PHOTO OF FRED R. NICHOLS)

(PHOTO OF HARVEY P. PERRY)

(PHOTO OF JIM D. REPPOND)

(PHOTO OF JOSEPH R. ZIMMEL)

Fred R. Nichols, age 61; a director since May 2003; retired in@®8fler serving as an executive officer
of Cox Communications, Inc. or TCA Cable TV, Inar Eeveral years prior to his retireme

Committee Membershi| Audit; Compensatio

Harvey P. Perry, age 63; a director since 1990; non-executive \@hairman of the Board of Directors
of CenturyTel since January 1, 2004; retired froemtDryTel on December 31, 2003 after serving as

Executive Vice President and Chief Administrativigi€@r for almost five years, as Secretary for By

and as General Counsel for 20 ye

Committee Membershi| Executive

Jim D. Reppond , age 66; a director since 1986; retired from Cesitel in 1996 after serving as
Presider-Telephone Group (or a comparable predecessor gosfor several year:

Committee Membership Executive; Nominating and Corporate Governe

Joseph R. Zimmel , age 54; a director since January 2003; providefkss and financial advisory
services; retired in 2002 after serving as a manpdirector of the investment banking division dfeT
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. from 1996 to 2001; actbreof FactSet Research Systems

Committee Membershi| Audit

4
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Class | Directors (term expires in 2010):

(PHOTO OF WILLIAM R. BOLES, Jr.)

(PHOTO OF W. BRUCE HANKS)

(PHOTO OF C. G. MELVILLE, Jr.)

(PHOTO OF GLEN F. POST, Ill)

William R. Boles, Jr ., age 51; a director since 1992; an attorney with Boles Law Firm, of which
Mr. Boles is owner and directc

Committee Membership Risk Evaluatior

W. Bruce Hanks, age 53; a director since 1992; a consultant Giththam, Bordelon and Co., Inc., an
investment management and financial planning compgince December 1, 2005; Athletic Director of
the University of Louisiana at Monroe from March02Qto June 2004; a senior or executive officer of
CenturyTel with operational or strategic developtrresponsibilities for several years prior to stiofe;
an advisory director of IberiaBank Corporati

Committee Membershi| Risk Evaluation (Chairman); Auc

C. G. Mélvillg, Jr. , age 67; a director since 1968; private investores1992; retired executive officer of
an equipment distributo

Committee Membership Compensation (Chairman); Nominating and CorpoGeernance

Glen F. Pogt, 111 , age 55; a director since 1985; Chairman of tharBof CenturyTel since June 2002
and Chief Executive Officer of CenturyTel since 3¢

Committee Membershi| Executive (Chairmar

5
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Executive Officers Who Are Not Directors:

(PHOTO OF KAREN A. PUCKETT Karen A. Puckett , age 47; President and Chief Operating Offi

(PHOTO OF R. STEWART EWING, Jr R. Stewart Ewing, Jr. , age 56; Executive Vice President and Chief Fir@r@fficer.
(PHOTO OF MICHAEL E. MASLOWSKI Michael E. Maslowski, age 60; Senior Vice President and Chief Informa@dficer.
(PHOTO OF DAVID D. COLE] David D. Cole, age 50; Senior Vice Preside— Operations Suppor

(PHOTO OF STACEY W. GOFF) Stacey W. Goff , age 42; Senior Vice President, General CoungkBarretary since August 2003; Vice
President and Assistant General Counsel from 2600ly 2003

6




Table of Contents

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Governance Guidelines

Listed below are excerpts from our corporateegnance guidelines, which the Board reviewsagtlannually. For information on how you can obtain
a complete copy of these guidelines, seeAtcess to Information” below.

1. Director Qualifications

The Board of Directors will have a majority oflependent directors. The Nominating and Corporatee@ance Committee is responsible for
reviewing with the Board, on an annual basis, gwisite skills and characteristics of new Boardniers as well as the composition of the
Board as a whole. This assessment will include negsilindependence qualifications, as well as carsiibn of diversity, age, character,
judgment, skills and experience in the contextefrieeds of the Board. It is the general sendeedBbard that no more than two managen
directors should serve on the Boe

The Board expects directors who change the jabgponsibility they held when they were electethiBoard to volunteer to resign from the
Board. It is not the sense of the Board that imggach instance the director should necessarilydehe Board. There should, however, be an
opportunity for the Board, through the Nominatimgla&Corporate Governance Committee, to review timtimoed appropriateness of Board
membership under the circumstanc

No director may serve on more than two other uliatifid public company boards, unless this protohiis waived by the Board. No director r
be appointed or nominated to a new term if he engbuld be age 75 or older at the time of the &laair appointment

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Commitideaview each direct( s continuation on the Board at least once evegetlgears

Directors will be deemed to be “independenti)itiie Board affirmatively confirms that neitheetllirector nor any organization with which the
director is affiliated receives any payments frérta €ompany other than Permissible Directors Congigns(as defined below) and (i) none of
the disqualifying events or conditions specifiedRinle 303A(2)(b) of the NYSE Listed Company Manapply to the director. For purposes
hereof, “Permissible Directors Compensation” meg@ndirector and committee fees, (ii) reimbursemf@ntan annual physical, continuing
education, travel and other out-of-pocket expemsascordance with the Company’s applicable pddicad (iii) a pension or other form of
deferred compensation for prior service, providechscompensation is not contingent in any way atinaed service. The Board may me

7
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determinations or interpretations under this paplar provided that they are consistent with thedoing standard:

Once the Board has determined that a directodispendent, the director may not engage in amgéetion with the Company, either directly or
indirectly through an immediate family member dated entity, without such transaction being apptbly the Boarc

2. Director Responsibilitie

The Chairman will establish the agenda for eachr8 meeting. Each Board member is free to sugheshclusion of items on the agenda. Each
Board member is free to raise at any Board mesestitgects that are not on the agenda for that ngeefine Board will review the Company’s
long-term strategic plans and the principal issuesttt@Company will face in the future during at leasé Board meeting each ye

The non-management directors will meet in ex@euwiession at least quarterly. The director whsiges at these meetings will be an
independent director chosen annually by the-management directors, and his or her name willibedabed in the annual proxy stateme

3. Board Committee

The Board will have at all times an Audit Commét a Compensation Committee and a Nominating ampaCate Governance Committee. All
of the members of these committees will be indepandirectors, as defined in Section 1 ab

The Chair of each committee, in consultation whith committee members, will determine the freqyearad length of the committee meetings
consistent with any requirements set forth in themittee’s charter. The Chair of each committeegansultation with members of the
committee and others specified in the comm’s charter, will develop the commit’s agenda

The Board and each committee have the power¢aiependent legal, financial or other adviserth@y may deem necessary, without
consulting or obtaining the approval of any offioéithe Company in advanc

Each committee may meet in executive session as aff it deems appropria

4. Director Access to Officers and Employe

Directors have full and free access to officers amployees of the Compar

The Board welcomes regular attendance at each Boeeting of senior officers of the Compa

8
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5. Director Compensatio

The form and amount of director compensation balldetermined by the Nominating and Corporate Gmareee Committee on the terms and
conditions (and subject to the exceptions) sehforits charter, and such Committee will reviewedtor compensation annual

6. Director Orientation and Continuing Educati

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Commsttedi maintain an Orientation Program for new dives. All new directors must
participate in the Compa’s Orientation Program, which should be conductesbags as practicable after new directors are elemt@ppointed

The Company will also maintain a Continuing EdumatiProgram for directors, pursuant to which it wiideavor to periodically update direct
on industry, technological and regulatory developtaeand to provide adequate resources to suppedtars in understanding the Company’s
business and matters to be acted upon at boardoamchittee meeting:

7. CEO Evaluation and Management Succes

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Commiti#eonduct an annual review of the CEQO’s perfamoe. The Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee will provide a report of italfngs to the Board of Directors (with appropriegeusals of the CEO and other manage
directors, as necessary) to enable the Board wretisat the CEO is providing the best leaderstiiglfe Company in the lo- and shor-term.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committ@elld report periodically to the Board on sucmesplanning. The entire Board will
consult periodically with the Nominating and Coraier Governance Committee regarding potential sgocgs$o the CEO. The CEO should ai
times make available his or her recommendationseaatliations of potential successors, along witkvéew of any development plans
recommended for such individua

8. Annual Evaluatior

The Board of Directors will conduct an annuaf-®sfaluation to determine whether it and its conteeis are functioning effectively. The
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committeerefleive comments from all directors and report alipto the Board with an assessm
of the Board’s performance, which will be discusséth the full Board. The assessment will focusties Board’s contribution to the Company
and specifically focus on areas in which the Baarthanagement believes that the Board could impi

9
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9. Standards of Business Conduct and Et

. All of the Company’s directors, officers and ewmyses are required to abide by the Company’s loagesng Corporate Compliance Program,
which includes standards of business conduct dnidsefThe Company’s program and related procedwoesr all areas of professional conduct,
including employment policy, conflicts of interessotection of confidential information, as wedl strict adherence to all laws and regulations
applicable to the conduct of the Comp’s business

. Any waiver of the Company’s policies, principlasguidelines relating to business conduct or stfoc executive officers or directors may be
made only by the Audit Committee and will be proipplisclosed as required by applicable law or stexghange regulation

Independence

Based on the information made available tthé Board of Directors has affirmatively deternurbat Virginia Boulet, James B. Gardner, W. Bruce
Hanks, C. G. Melville, Jr., Gregory J. McCray, FRdNichols, Harvey P. Perry, Jim D. Reppond arskpb R. Zimmel qualify as independent directors
under the standards referred to above under “— (Banee Guidelines.fh making these determinations, the Board, witlistessce from counsel, evalua
responses to a questionnaire completed by eacttalineegarding relationships and possible confladtsterest. In its review of director independenthe
Board considered all commercial, consulting, legatounting, charitable, and familial relationshépy director may have with CenturyTel or its
management.

Committees of the Board

During 2007, the Board of Directors held foegular meetings, four special meetings, and athey strategic planning session.

During 2007, the Board’s Audit Committee helght meetings. The Audit Committee is currentlynpmsed of four independent directors, all of whom
the Board has determined to be audit committeaéizd experts, as defined under the federal séesildaws. The Audit Committee’s functions are
described further below under “Audit Committee Rejo

The Board’s Compensation Committee held foaetimgs during 2007. The Compensation Committeernsposed of three directors, all of whom
qualify as “non-employee directors” under Rule IBpromulgated under the Securities Exchange AtB8# and as “outside directors” under Section 162
(m) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Compens&mmmittee is described further below under “Compépa Discussion and Analysis.”

The Board’s Nominating and Corporate Goveregdommittee (which we refer to below as the “NortimpCommittee”) met five times during 2007.
The Nominating Committee is responsible for, amotiger things, (i) recommending to the Board noméneeserve as directors and officers, (i)
monitoring the composition and size of the Board &s committees, (iii) periodically reassessing corporate governance guidelines described above,
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(iv) leading the Board in its annual review of Beard’s performance and (v) reviewing annually @reef Executive Officer's performance and reporting
to the Board on succession planning for senior etz officers. For information on the director nio@tion process, see~*Director Nomination Process”
below.

Each of the committees listed above is comgppestely of independent directors under the stadglegferred to above under‘Governance
Guidelines.”

The Board also maintains a Risk Evaluation @attee, which met four times during 2007.

If you would like additional information ondtresponsibilities of the committees listed abglease refer to the committees’ respective chandmh
can be obtained in the manner described below undéccess to Information.”

We expect all of our directors to attend oumwal shareholders meetings. Each director attetide@007 annual shareholders meeting.

Director Nomination Process

Nominations for the election of directors at annual shareholder meetings may be made bydhedBupon the receipt of recommendations of the
Nominating Committee) or by any shareholder of rdagho complies with our bylaws. Under our bylaasy shareholder of record interested in mal
a nomination generally must deliver written notic&CenturyTel’s secretary not more than 180 dayksrant less than 90 days in advance of the first
anniversary of the preceding year's annual shadeh@ meeting. For the Annual Meeting this yeae, Board has nominated the four nominees listed
above under “Election of Directors” to stand foeatlon as Class Il directors, and no shareholddsmgited any nominations. For further information o
deadlines for submitting nominations for our 2009wl shareholders meeting, see “Other Matters areédlolder Nominations and Proposals.”

The written notice required to be sent by aaginating shareholder must include (i) the narge, ausiness address and residential address of the
nominating shareholder and any other person autiegncert with such shareholder, (ii) a represgnahat the nominating shareholder is a recoddén
of Voting Shares, and intends to make his nominatigoerson, (iii) a description of all agreemeatsong the nominating shareholder, any person acting
in concert with him, each proposed nominee andadingr person pursuant to which the nomination oninations are to be made and (iv) various
biographical information about each proposed nominecluding principal occupation, holdings of MaiShares and other information required to be
disclosed in our proxy statement. The notice misst be accompanied by the written consent of easpgsed nominee to serve as a director if elected,
and an affidavit certifying that the proposed noseimeets the qualifications for service specifiethe bylaws and summarized below. We may require a
proposed nominee to furnish other reasonable irdtion or certifications. Shareholders interesteldringing before a shareholders meeting any matter
other than a director nomination should consultlmdaws for additional procedures governing sucfuests. We may disregard any homination or
submission of any other matter that fails to compith these bylaw procedures.
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The Nominating Committee will consider candéanominated by shareholders in accordance wittbylaws. Upon receipt of any such nominations,
the Committee will review the submission for coraplie with our bylaws, including determining if fi@posed nominee meets the bylaw qualifications
for service as a director. These provisions disfuahy person who fails to respond satisfactordyany inquiry for information to enable us to make
certifications required by the Federal Communigai€ommission under the Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1,9&8who has been arrested or convicted of
certain specified drug offenses or engaged in astibat could lead to such an arrest or conviction.

In the past, the Nominating Committee has ictamed director candidates suggested by Commiteralmrs, other directors, senior management and
shareholders. In the recent past, the Nominatingi@ittee has retained, on an as-needed basis @l ekpense, national search firms to help identify
potential director candidates. Each of our thregest directors were initially identified or scredrgy national search firms retained by the Nomimati
Committee. With respect to this year’s annual nmggtall of the nominees are incumbent director$ wéveral years of prior service. Although the
Nominating Committee did not retain a search fimconnection with this ye's meeting, it expects to do so to assist in idgimj future directors.

Under our corporate governance guidelinesNihiminating Committee assesses director candidetesd on their independence, diversity, age,
character, skills and experience in the contexhefmeeds of the Board. Although the guidelinesnitehe Nominating Committee to adopt additional
selection guidelines or criteria, it has chosentaato so. Instead, the Nominating Committee pécally assesses skills and characteristics theuimed,
by the Board based on its membership and neetie éinte of the assessment. In evaluating the nefetti® Board, the Nominating Committee considers
the qualification of incumbent directors and cotsulith other members of the Board and senior mamagt. The Nominating Committee believes this
flexible approach enables it to respond to chacgesed by director retirements and industry deveéoys.

Although we do not have a history of receividigector nominations from shareholders, the NomiigaCommittee envisions that it would evaluate any
such candidate on the same terms as other proposeidees, but would place a substantial premiumretaining incumbent directors who are familiar
with our management, operations, business, industitgtegies and competitive position, and who lpregiously demonstrated a proven ability to pre
valuable contributions to the Board and CenturyTel.

Presiding Director

As indicated above, the non-management directeeet in executive session at least quarterlg.fidn-management directors have selected Fred R.
Nichols to preside over such meetings during 2@@8explained further on our website, you may canfiéic Nichols by writing a letter to the Presidi
Director, c/o Post Office Box 5061, Monroe, Louisar1211.

Access to Information

The following documents are filed as exhilbit®ur Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ehBecember 31, 2007, and are posted on our websit
atwww.centurytel.com
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. Corporate governance guidelir
. Charters of the Audit Committee, Compensation Cattemiand Nominating and Corporate Governance Caem
. Corporate compliance program (which includes outecof ethics

We will furnish printed copies of these madéiupon the request of any shareholder.

RATIFICATION OF THE SELECTION OF THE INDEPENDENT AU DITOR
(Item 2 on Proxy or Voting I nstruction Card)

The Audit Committee of the Board has appoik@MG LLP as our independent auditor for the fisgedr ending December 31, 2008, and we are
submitting that appointment to our shareholdersdtfication at the Annual Meeting. Although shiaméder ratification of KPMG’s appointment is not
legally required, we are submitting this mattettte shareholders, as in the past, as a mattercaf gorporate practice.

If the shareholders fail to vote on an adwduaisis in favor of the appointment, the Audit Coitbee will reconsider whether to retain KPMG LLRda
may appoint that firm or another without re-subimgtthe matter to the shareholders. Even if theedf@ders ratify the appointment, the Audit Comemstt
may, in its discretion, select a different indepaemdauditor at any time during the year if it detgres that such a change would be in CenturyTel& b
interests. In connection with selecting the indejgem auditor, the Audit Committee reviews the authtqualifications, control procedures, cost, megd
staffing, prior performance and other relevantdest

In connection with the audit of the 2008 fingh statements, we entered into an engagemeaet lgith KPMG LLP which sets forth the terms by wh
KPMG will provide audit services to us. That agresinis subject to alternative dispute resolutiomcpdures and excludes punitive damage claims.

The following table lists the aggregate fered eosts billed to us by KPMG and its affiliates floe 2006 and 2007 services identified below:

Amount Billed

2006 2007

Audit Fees(®) $2,745,00! $2,877,00!
Audit-Related Fee® 107,00( 152,00(
Tax Fee® 509,00( 397,00(
All Other Fee<® — 1,00(
Total Fees $3,361,00! $3,427,00!

(1) Includes the cost of (i) services renderedannection with auditing our annual consolidatedricial statements, (ii) auditing the effectivenes
our internal control over financial reporting incacdance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-OxleyofA2002, (iii) reviewing our quarterly financial
statements, (iv) auditing the financial statemeifitseveral of our telephone subsidiaries, and€wises rendered in connection with reviewing our
registration statements and issuing related contgtirs.

(2) Includes the cost of auditing our benefit plans gaderal accounting consulting servic
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(3) Includes costs associated with (i) assistampeeparing income tax returns (which were apjmately $239,000 in 2006 and $249,000 in 2007),
(i) assistance with various tax audits (which wapproximately $194,000 in 2006 and $24,000 in 2087d (iii) general tax planning, consultation
and compliance (which were approximately $76,000006 and $124,000 in 200°

(4) Represents payment we made to KPMG on behalf atidit committee member for continuing educat

The Audit Committee maintains written proceshuthat require it to annually review and pre-aperie scope of all services to be performed by our
independent auditor. This review includes an evanaf whether the provision of non-audit servibgsour independent auditor is compatible with
maintaining the auditor’s independence in providanglit and audit-related services. The Committpedsedures prohibit the independent auditor from
providing any non-audit services unless the sengigermitted under applicable law and is pre-appddoy the Audit Committee or its Chairman. The
Chairman is authorized to pre-approve projects ebgoeto cost no more than $75,000, provided tred tatst of all projects pre-approved by the Chairma
during any fiscal quarter does not exceed $125,086.Audit Committee has pre-approved the Compainglependent auditor to provide up to $40,000
per quarter of miscellaneous tax services thatal@onstitute discrete and separate projects. Hief Einancial Officer is required periodically aolvise
the full Committee of the scope and cost of sesvivet pre-approved by the full Committee. Althowagiplicable regulations waive these pre-approval
requirements in certain limited circumstances,Ahdit Committee did not use these waiver provisionsither 2006 or 2007.

KPMG has advised us that one or more of ittnpas will be present at the Annual Meeting. Weenstand that these representatives will be aveilab
to respond to appropriate questions and will havepportunity to make a statement if they desirdao.

Ratification of KPMG'’s appointment as our ipgadent auditor for 2008 will require the affirnvativote of at least a majority of the voting power
present or represented at the Annual Meeting.

The Board unanimously recommends a vote FOR this proposal.
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Management is responsible for our internakieds and the financial reporting process. Our patelent auditor is responsible for performing an
independent audit of our consolidated financiaesteents and the effectiveness of our internal obwotrer financial reporting, and to issue repoheréon
The Committee’s responsibility is to monitor ancemee these processes, and, subject to sharehatifieation, to appoint the independent auditor.

In this context, the Committee has met and bdéedcussions with management and our internakawsdand independent auditor for 2007, KPMG LLP.
Management represented to the Committee that owgotidated financial statements were prepareddoralance with generally accepted U.S. accounting
principles. The Committee has reviewed and disclasth management and KPMG the consolidated firdrstatements, and management’s report and
KPMG's report and attestation on internal contna¢iofinancial reporting in accordance with Sect@4 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The
Committee also discussed with KPMG
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matters required to be discussed by Statementaditidg Standards No. 61 and 90 (Communication Witidit Committees).

KPMG also provided to the Committee the wnttisclosures required by Independence StandardslBgtandard No. 1 (Independence Discussions
with Audit Committees). The Committee discussechwiPMG that firm’s independence, and considereceffects that the provision of non-audit
services may have on KPMG's independence.

Based on and in reliance upon the reviewsdistlissions referred to above, and subject tartigations on the role and responsibilities of the
Committee referred to in its charter, the Commitemmmended that the Board of Directors incluéeathdited consolidated financial statements in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddwem31, 2007.

If you would like additional information onetresponsibilities of the Audit Committee, pleasker to its charter, which you can obtain in thenmex
described above under “Corporate Governance — Adoemformation.”

Submitted by the Audit Committee of the Board oédors.

James B. Gardner (Chairma Fred R. Nichols
W. Bruce Hank Joseph R. Zimmi

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL REGARDING EXECUTIVE COMPENSATI ON
(Item 3 on Proxy or Voting Instruction Card)

We periodically receive suggestions from duareholders, some as formal shareholder propdd&give careful consideration to all suggestioms], a
assess whether they promote the best long-termestteof CenturyTel and its shareholders.

The Communications Workers of America Memb&sheral Fund, located at 501 Third Street, N.Waskhgton, D.C. 20001, has informed us that it
beneficially owns, and has beneficially owned farethan a year, at least $2,000 of our CommoneSteand that it intends to present for consideratton
the Annual Meeting the following proposal (and hasished the following statement in support of gneposal).

Shareholder Proposal

Resolved: The shareholders of CenturyTeldeguest that the Board of Directors adopt a pdhat shareholders will be given the opportuniteath
annual meeting of shareholders to vote on an agvigsolution, to be proposed by Compangianagement, to approve or disapprove the comtiemsd
the named executive officers disclosed in the SumrGampensation Table of the proxy statement. Tdardb should provide appropriate disclosures to
ensure that shareholders understand that the yatgvisory and will neither abrogate any employnagmeement nor affect any compensation already
or awarded.
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Supporting Statement

In our view, existing U.S. corporate governancamgements, including SEC rules and stock exchasiiegl standards, do not provide shareholders with
adequate means for communicating their views ofoserecutive compensation to boards of directiorgontrast, in the United Kingdom, shareholders
of public companies are permitted to cast an adyigote on the “directors’ remuneration report,”iethdiscloses executive compensation. Such a gote i
not binding, but it gives shareholders an oppotyutti communicate views in a manner that coulduiefice senior executive compensation.

“Say on Pay” in the U.K., we believe, serves a tmsive purpose. A study by the Yale School of llgement found that the resulting dialogue between
boards and shareholders appeared to moderate gapses, enhance the ability of compensation caesito stand up to insider pressures, and add
legitimacy to the executive compensation proce&se (Stephen Davis, “Does ‘Say on Pay’ Work?” MelistCenter for Corporate Governance and
Performance, Yale, 2007).

U.S. stock exchange listing standards currentlyirecgshareholder approval of equity-based comp@rsatans. However, those plans give compensation
committees broad discretion in making awards atabéishing performance thresholds. Also, the pentmce criteria submitted for shareholder approval
are generally stated in broad terms that, in oewydo not effectively constrain compensation.

Under the circumstances, we do not believe shademhave an adequate mechanism for providing &dbith respect to the application of those
general criteria to individual pay packages. (Seeidn Bebchuk & Jesse Fried, Pay Without Perforraattc(2004)). While withholding votes from
compensation committee members who stand for réateis an option, we believe that course is a bamd insufficient instrument for registering
dissatisfaction with the way compensation commétteve administered compensation plans and palicies

Our CEO received compensation in excess of $13amiih 2006. This proposal looks to the future aralld give shareholders a voice that could help
assure that such excessive compensation doesmgiwe. The annual “Say on Pay” would also provdadecus for media scrutiny that could assist in
bringing about more reasonable compensation pesctic

We urge CenturyTel’s board to allow shareholdemxoress their opinion about senior executive caorsgtion by establishing an annual sharehol8ay*
on Pay.” We believe the results of such a vote dgubvide our Board with useful information aboutether shareholders view the company’s senior
executive compensation, as reported each yeaeipriixy statement, to be appropriate.
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Board Statement in Opposition
The Board of Directors Recommends that You Vote AGAINST this Proposal for the Reasons Set Forth Below:

We believe ensuring that executive compensasi@ppropriate is an important issue for all shatders, and we share that goal. Nonetheless, we
believe this proposal is unnecessary, unworkabdepatentially harmful.

The proposal is unnecessaryhe proposal is unnecessary because we alregolpyathorough process designed to pay appropeastds of
executive compensation to attract and retain theagerial talent necessary to maintain our competigss. As explained in greater detail under the
heading “Compensation Discussion and Analysis, Bbard has delegated its powers to set executirgeasation to its Compensation Committee,
which is composed solely of independent directdns Wwave a fiduciary duty to establish programs #natin the best interests of the shareholdersh Eac
year the Committee works with its independent ctiastito establish compensation programs desigmedktch programs of comparable companies and
to create incentives to maintain and increase &béder value. In connection with performing itsidst the Committee spends a substantial amouithe
reviewing a wide range of information impacting extive compensation, including trends in executiempensation and detailed benchmarking data on
prevailing compensation levels at comparable con@sain accordance with the federal proxy rulesgwglain in detail the Committee’s processes and
conclusions in our annual proxy statements. Intska believe our current structure is appropnatidsigned and balanced to achieve and communicate
our executive compensation goals.

The proposal is unworkabléNe believe it is unrealistic to expect this preglovould enable shareholders to provide meaningfult on decisions
that entail a thorough understanding of a wideetgirof factors, including prevailing compensatidnil@sophies and practices nationwide and in our
industry. Establishing appropriate executive congpéion arrangements is a complex process requiangful balancing of a wide range of factors,
including proprietary information about our straesgand performance, changing industry conditianspunting requirements, tax laws, and the
competitive compensation practices of other congmnWe believe this balancing should continue ttheeesponsibility of disinterested independent
fiduciaries who have the time, experience, expertissources and access to proprietary data thatessary to design and administer effective progr
We further believe the proposal is a blunt instratrthat would not provide us with meaningful indighto specific shareholder concerns regarding our
programs, and could lead to confusion about whatinpted the shareholdenrgte. For instance, if the shareholders adopt @@gnesolution disapprovii
our executive compensation, we would be unableterchine (i) whether the shareholders disapproyedl or only some of our specific compensation
components, (ii) whether they disapproved of corspgan paid to all or only some of our executived £ii) the magnitude or rationale of the
shareholders’ concerns. As such, we would be urtalileact to the shareholders’ concerns in a mgéuifashion. We believe it would be far more
helpful if shareholder concerns are specificallgdradsed, and we already have processes in pldaeilitate effective shareholder communicationse Se
“Corporate Governance — Presiding Director.” Indtedencouraging shareholders to take advantagerof
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current policies and procedures, we believe thegsal advocates substituting a less effective nreésha
The proposal is potentially harmfuFinally, the proposal is potentially harmful ieveral respects, including the following:

. by requiring a practice not followed by most atheS. companies, the proposal could harm ourtghidi retain or attract talented managers to the
extent that they perceive this new practice ageattito our lon-standing commitment to pay competitive compense

. by creating the risk that the good faith judgmsesftour disinterested independent directors cbeltsecond-guessed,” the proposal could
negatively impact the willingness of members of Gompensation Committee to continue to s¢

. by requiring us to provide new disclosures, impat new processes, and incur new legal riskgpiitygosal would require us to incur
unnecessary legal and proxy solicitation expensdscauld increase our expenditures on dire’ fees and insuranc

. by creating a blunt instrument of shareholdeutnthe proposal could result in unclear directitiest create confusion over corporate goals,
distract management, and interfere with more dffeaneans of facilitating useful shareholder comioations.

In summary, we do not believe the proposdl @ihance our governance practices or improve lmarrefiolder communications, nor is it in the best
interests of shareholders. TBeard therefore unanimously recommends that you vet AGAINST this proposal.

Adoption of this proposal requires the affitima vote of at least a majority of the voting povpeesent or represented at the Annual Meeting.

OWNERSHIP OF OUR SECURITIES

Principal Shareholders

The following table sets forth information eeding ownership of our Common Shares by each pdasown to us to have beneficially owned more
than 5% of the outstanding Common Shares or to bantolled more than 5% of the total voting powarDecember 31, 2007.
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Amount and
Nature of
Beneficial Percent of Percent

Ownership of Outstanding of Voting
Name and Address Common Shares®) Common Shares®) Power (2)
AXA Financial, Inc. 9,019,023 8.2% 6.4%
1290 Avenue of the Americas
New York, New York 1010
Renaissance Technologies LLC 6,569,001(4) 6.1% 4.€%
and Dr. James H. Simons
800 Third Avenue
New York, New York 1002:
Goldman Sachs Asset Management, L.P. 6,497,216 6.C% 4.€%
32 Old Slip
New York, New York 1000!
State Street Bank and Trust Company 5,658,49((6) 5.2% 4.C%
State Street Financial Center
One Lincoln Street
Boston, Massachusetts 021
Trustees of CenturyTel benefit plans 4,079,12( 3.8% 20.2%

c/o T. Rowe Price Retirement Plan Services
T. Rowe Price Investment Services, Inc.
4515 Painters Mill Road

Owings Mills, Maryland 2111-4903

@

)

(©)

4)

®)

(6)

™

Determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3hef $ecurities and Exchange Commission based ufammiation furnished by the persons listed. In
addition to Common Shares, we have outstandingeRegf Shares that vote together with the CommoneStes a single class on all matters. Or
more persons beneficially own more than 5% of tteddPred Shares; however, the percentage of totalgy power held by such persons is
immaterial. For additional information regarding tAreferred Shares, see page 1 of this proxy state

Based on our records and, with respect tetadtes held of record by our benefit plan trusteased on information the trustees periodicalivjste
to us to establish that certain of these sharddectiite trustees to cast ten votes per st

Based on information contained in a Sched@I8 Report dated as of February 14, 2008 thairkiestor filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. In this report, the investor indicatieat, as of December 29, 2007, it and its foreigth domestic affiliates collectively held sole va
power with respect to 7,346,476 of these sharesaleddispositive power with respect to all of #nebares

Based on information contained in a Sched@BI8 Report dated as of February 13, 2008 thairkiestor filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. In this report, the investor indicatieat, as of December 31, 2007, it, along with @stool person Dr. James H. Simons, held sole
voting power with respect to 6,301,600 of thesaeshand sole dispositive power with respect tofalhese share

Based on information contained in a Sched@I8 Report dated as of February 1, 2008 that tivisstor filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. In this report, the investor indicatieat, as of December 31, 2007, it and its affiBatellectively held sole voting power with respect
to 4,288,098 of these shares, shared voting povtbrrespect to 61,400 of these shares, sole digpogiower with respect to 6,418,915 of these
shares, and shared dispositive power with respet8,800 of these shar¢

Based on information contained in a Sched@l® Report dated as of February 12, 2008 thainkiestor filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. In this report, the investor indicatieat, as of December 29, 2007, it held sole vopiogrer with respect to all of these shares and
shared dispositive power with respect to all osthshares

Consists of shares held by the trustees ofoalified 401(k) plan (including shares creditegeparate ESOP, stock bonus and PAYSOP accounts
maintained under such plan) and our union 401 @) .pAll of the voting power attributable to thesmes is directed by the plan participants, each
of whom is deemed to tender such instructions‘asuaed fiduciary” for all shares under each su@npivhich requires the participants to direct
their votes in a manner that they believe to belgnt and in the best interests of the plan pagitip
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Executive Officers and Directors

The following table sets forth information,@she Record Date, regarding the beneficial owhigrof Common Shares by our executive officers and
directors. Except as otherwise noted, all bendljc@vned shares are held with sole voting and stment power and are not pledged to third parties.

Components of Total Shares Owne

Options
Shares Unvested Exercisable Total Shares
Beneficially Restricted Within 60 Beneficially
Name Owned @) Stock (@) Days® Owned 4
Executive Officers:
Glen F. Post, Il 206,03: 302,89( 972,66¢ 1,481,591
Karen A. Pucket 21,104 118,17" 210,00( 349,27¢
R. Stewart Ewing, J 29,007 98,37( 83,10( 210,47
Michael E. Maslowsk 5,571 64,20( 46,14: 115,91¢
David D. Cole 45,9746) 64,20( 274,00: 384,17"
Stacey W. Gof 7,33¢ 64,20( 90,50( 162,03¢
Outside Directors:
William R. Boles, Jr 9,31¢ 4,98¢ — 14,30¢
Virginia Boulet 7,617 4,98¢ — 12,60¢
Calvin Czeschir 26,9048 4,98¢ — 31,897
James B. Gardnt¢ 6,557 4,98¢ 16,00( 27,54¢
W. Bruce Hanks 3,057 4,98¢ 46,00( 54,04t
Gregory J. McCra' 1,08t 4,98¢ — 6,07%
C.G. Melville, Jr. 8,832 4,98¢ — 13,82(
Fred R. Nichols 2,00( 4,98¢ — 6,98¢
Harvey P. Perr 37,33! 4,98¢ — 42,31¢
Jim D. Reppont 48,057 4,98¢ — 53,04¢
Joseph R. Zimme 8,137(10) 4.98¢ 13,66 26,79:
All directors and executive officers as a group jf&rsons 473,93(1D 766,90: 1,752,07: 2,992,91.

(1) This column includes the following nhumbersbfares allocated to the officer’'s account undemoatified 401(k) plan: 84,681 — Mr. Post; 2,213 —
Ms. Puckett; 20,050 — Mr. Ewing; 504 — Mr. Maslowsk9,516 — Mr. Cole; and 3,108 — Mr. Goff. Parfiants in this plan are entitled to direct
the voting of their plan shares, as described éagr detail elsewhere here

(2) Constitutes unvested shares of Restricted Stockwhieh the person holds sole voting power butmastment powel

(3) Constitutes shares that the person hasghéto acquire within 60 days of the Record Datespant to options granted under our incentive
compensation plan

(4) None of the persons named in the table benefictallgs more than 1% of the outstanding Common Starissentitled to cast more than 1% of
total voting power, except that (i) the shares fieiadly owned by Mr. Post constitutes 1.4% of thetstanding Common Shares and entitles
Mr. Post to cast .8% of the total voting power @iijdhe shares beneficially owned by all directarsl executive officers as a group constitutes |
of the outstanding Common Shares and entitles gralp to cast 1.6% of the total voting power (iskeaase calculated in accordance with rules of
the Securities and Exchange Commissi

(5) Includes 200 shares held by Ms. Puckett as custddiahe benefit of her childre
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(6) Includes 4,978 plan shares beneficially lmldMr. Cole’s wife as one of our former employeesiéer accounts under the qualified 401(k) plartpas
which Mr. Cole disclaims beneficial ownersh

(7) Includes 955 shares held by Ms. Boulet as custddiatine benefit of her childrel

(8) Includes 11,997 shares owned by Mr. Cze<'s wife, as to which he disclaims beneficial owngrs
(9) Includes 8,785 shares pledged as security undergimaccount

(10) Includes 5,000 shares held by a charitable trgdip avhich Mr. Zimmel is the truste

(11) Includes (i) 16,975 shares held of record or beiadly by the spouses of certain of these indiats, as to which beneficial ownership is disclaime
and (ii) 1,155 shares held as custodian for thefieof children of such individual:

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

General Compensation Philosophy

We compensate our senior management throumglt af salary, annual bonuses, long-term equity pensation and employee benefits designed to be
competitive with the compensation of comparabléefs and to reward annual and long-term perforradhat we believe correlates with maintaining and
increasing shareholder value. With respect to eaalponent of compensation, we generally seek tahrthie compensation of comparable employees at
other companies, although we typically provide executive officers with above-average salarieasfified by corporate and individual performances W
generally seek to base our executives’ annual icegimtive compensation principally upon our compaige performance and secondarily upon the
executivesindividual performance. Officers and managers \ather levels of responsibility typically receivecientive compensation that places a gre
emphasis on individual, departmental or divisiog@als. We seek to align the interests of our sem@anagers with the long-term interests of sharedreld
through award opportunities that can result in awhigp of our Common Shares, with top executivesixéicg a greater proportion of their total
compensation in the form of equity grants compaoemiore junior officers. Whenever possible, weratieto promote teamwork by offering equal
treatment or incentive compensation opportunitiesxecutives that we expect to make roughly egeitatontributions. We have a long-standing practice
of not providing employment agreements to our effi¢ but do provide customary change of contraisfma and welfare benefits to our key personnel.

Compensation Methodologies

When establishing compensation programs, Wepredominantly on annual reviews of multiple blemarks that assist us in establishing compens
levels designed to be competitive with the compemsaf comparable officers. We describe these berarks in detail below. As described further be
we also review the individual performance of eaghigr manager, as well as all other factors deemledant to us. To assist us in this process, wiewe
“tally sheets” that comprehensively reflect the tiplé sources of each executive’'s compensatiomedisas the wealth accumulated by the executives
under our compensation programs. We also review aathe relationship of the compensation of oprexecutives to lower paid employees. Our review
of this data on wealth accumulation and interngl lpaels
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provides us with additional information on our gagctices, but to date, for the reasons discusskavbneither of these have been major factorgitirg
compensation levels.

Allocation of Compensation

We do not use fixed ratios to allocate totmhpensation between cash and non-cash compensatanong the various compensation components.
Instead, we seek to pay our executives the taegetd of salary and bonus discussed further bedtheof which are set in relation to compensatiorels
paid to comparable executives at other companiesb&lieve this allows us to maintain competitivenpensation packages, and adjust quickly to che
in prevailing compensation practices.

We seek to design our incentive compensatiograms to reward annual and lotegm performance that correlates as highly as plest maintaining
and increasing shareholder value, while at the ¢anmeeproviding incentives that are equitable, ist&l and reasonably within the control of the advar
recipient. We believe that our top executives haeegreatest opportunity to directly impact ourfpenance, and therefore believe it is appropriate t
provide a greater portion of their total compermatn the form of long-term incentives that focesety on company-wide performance. On the other
hand, because our less senior officers have lggsot@ver our company-wide performance, we awhgdrt a relatively higher percentage of their total
compensation in the form of salary and annual beswugich frequently focus on individual, departna¢iot divisional goals within their control.

Although we favor the use of incentive comias, we believe it is necessary and prudent yogpportion of total compensation in the form of a
competitive fixed salary. We believe the paymena @iked salary to our officers helps maintain protivity by alleviating concerns that an econoniic o
industry downturn could undercut their personal famdily planning. Equally importantly, our failute pay a competitive salary could harm our abiiity
recruit and retain management.

Implementation of our compensation practicas ¢enerally resulted in our CEO receiving a higieecentage of his total compensation in the fofm o
long-term equity incentives, and a smaller peragamia salary and cash bonuses. On the other hesgisenior officers have typically received a neddy
smaller percentage of their total compensatioméform of long-term equity incentives, and a highercentage in salary and cash bonuses. This
allocation is illustrated in the table below, whitows the percentage of 2007 compensation atibleito our three main components of compensation:

Equity
Cash Compensatic Compensatiol
% from % from % from Lon¢-Term
Salary Annual Bonus Bonus
CEO 11.9% 16.2% 71.%
President and Executive \ 22.8% 23.% 53.2%
Senior Vice Presiden 26.4% 24.(% 49.€%

We expect that these allocations will change fraanto year, as we adjust to changes in prevailamgpensation practices.
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Salary

We generally seek to compensate our long-stgrekecutives with cash salaries equivalent torhé percentile of salaries paid to similarly-situated
executives at comparable companies, if justified¢tnporate and individual performance. We belidwe gives us the flexibility to pay above-market
salaries to talented executives who could be vieagedttractive targets by other companies, manyhaim are larger than us with far greater resources.
The Compensation Committee of our Board uses thesmntile targets as starting points in its ang)yshich we describe below under the heading “-
Our Compensation Decision-Making Process.”

In February 2007, the Compensation Committerdhined that the salary of each of its executivas generally in alignment with the Ppercentile
target salary based on 2006 compensation datadadVwiy PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the Commitima@ispensation consultant. The Committee also
determined that our corporate performance andxtbeutives’ individual performance over the prioaygustified paying salaries in alignment with taes
75t percentile targets. After applying the other fastdescribed under the heading “- Our Compensatirisibn-Making Process” and considering input
from the CEO, the Committee elected to raise thargaf each executive by 3%, except for (i) theGZEvhose salary was left unchanged principally due
to the tax advantages of limiting his annual satar$1 million under Section 162(m) of the InterRalvenue Code, and (ii) the General Counsel, who
received a 4% raise to better align the correladibhis actual and target salaries to that of ttieinexecutives. Based on input from
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Committee determirsdhiibse 3% and 4% raises were necessary to keepdipients in alignment with their respective
thpercentile target salaries, which the Committe@reded would increase in connection with raiseggiduring 2007 to similarly-situated executives at
comparable companies. These raises were also ¢gremasistent with our goal to promote teamworkotigh equal treatment to the extent possible.

Annual Incentive Bonuses

Our practice is to award annual cash bonus&sy employees based on performance objectivésitlagtained, can reasonably be expected to rae
or increase our value. We strive to award bonusdppities that can reasonably be expected totrasolr total cash compensation (consisting cdusal
and cash bonuses) to equal or exceed the 50% piézagrtotal cash compensation paid to similarityrgted executives at comparable companies. We
currently offer annual incentive bonuses to apprately 1,245 of our employees (including employefelgladison River Communications Corp., which
we purchased in April 2007). As described in gredtgail under the heading “- Our Compensation BlenrMaking Process,” our Compensation
Committee annually establishes “target” levels mé @or more company performance objectives undeapuoual incentive bonus programs.

For 2007, the Committee elected to base 608henéxecutives’ potential bonuses upon Centurgitaining targeted levels of operating cash flow an
the remaining 40% upon attaining targeted levelsnaf-user revenue. The Committee selected thegetsdvased on management’s view that attainment
of the targets would likely correlate with maintaig or increasing shareholder value. In connectith acting upon management’s recommendations,
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the Committee assessed the relationship of thetstg the Company’s publicly-disclosed financiaidance and discussed with PricewaterhouseCoopers
the bonus targets used by other comparable congdroe 2007, the executive officers were granted@portunity to earn a specified percentage (rap
between 40% to 65%) of their respective salariémifjet” performance levels were met, with upriple these amounts if the “maximum” levels of
performance were met and no bonuses if the “minifnpenformance levels were not attained. In selgctirese percentages, the Committee attempted to
produce opportunities for each executive's totahoeompensation to equal or exceed th& fércentile targets described in the preceding papig To
promote teamwork, three of our six executives vggemted an opportunity to earn the same percemiieir respective salaries (40%) if “target”
performance levels were met.

For both of the 2007 performance measuresxbeutives were entitled to receive:

e no paymen if we failed to achieve the minimum performanceele

. a prorated payment of at least 50% but if we attained or exceeded the minimum performdecel but not the target
less than 100% of the target aw: performance leve

e aprorated payment of at least 100% but if we attained or exceeded the target performaaeel but not the maximum
less than 300% of the target aw: performance leve

¢ apayment of 300% of the target aw if we attained or exceeded the maximum performaaigget.

As described in greater detail under the hatii Our Compensation Decision-Making Processg’@EO and Committee may exercise their negative
discretion to reduce awards based on each exetsitivgividual performance during the prior year. tNef the CEO nor the Committee exercised his «
negative discretion to reduce awards based upon géformance. Finally-determined awards made teemacutives on February 21, 2008 for 2007
performance are reflected in the Summary Compensaiable appearing below under the column “Non-Bgumicentive Plan Compensation.” For
additional information concerning these awards @emd2007 performance targets, see “Executive Cosgt@m - Incentive Compensation - 2007
Awards.”

Compared to our executive officers, the remi@irof our senior officers have more diverse penfamce goals. When an officer or manager has
responsibility for a particular business unit, dign or region, the performance goals are typidadigvily weighted toward the operational perforneaot
those units or areas. Other individuals may receidi&vidual performance goals. Depending on thel@f seniority, these individuals may also receaive
portion of their bonus based on overall corporadgrmance. As discussed below under the
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heading “- Our Compensation Decision-Making Progebge CEO approves the performance goals of teea@cutive officers under the general
supervision of the Compensation Committee.

Long-Term Equity Incentive Programs

Our shareholder-approved long-term incentivagensation programs authorize the Compensatiom@ibee to grant stock options, restricted stock,
and various other stock-based incentives to keggmerel. We believe stock incentive awards (i) enage key personnel to focus on our long-term
performance, (ii) strengthen the relationship betweompensation and growth in the market pric@@ommon Shares and thereby align management'
financial interests with those of the shareholdars (iii) help attract and retain talented persariwe currently offer long-term incentive compensat
awards to approximately 500 of our employees.

Incentives granted under these programs beexereisable based upon criteria established bZtmmittee. The Committee generally determines the
size of equity grants based on the recipient’saesibilities and duties, and on information furrédtby the Committee’s consultants regarding equity
incentive practices among comparable companies Cbhmemittee’s general philosophy is to provide Idagn incentive compensation valued at the 50th
percentile of that paid to similarly-situated offis at comparable companies. Since 2001, the Caeanias elected to award annual incentive grants as
opposed to larger, multi-year grants. The Commitigleeves annual grants provide us with greatedlfléty than multi-year grants to respond to chaag
in compensation practices.

We strive to pay equity compensation in fotiret create appropriate incentives to optimizegrerfince at reasonable cost, and are competitive wit
incentives offered by other companies. For sevygrats prior to 2004, we paid all logrm equity compensation in the form of stock optioNe selecte
this form because of favorable accounting andreatinents, and the near universal expectation lmfgpaompany officers nationwide that they would
receive stock options. For the last several ydanwever, it has been clear that the favorable agauy treatment of stock options was subject tanglea
and beginning in 2006 the adoption of Statemeriimdncial Accounting Standards No. 123(R) (whichfreguently refer to as SFAS 123(R)) has
eliminated the favorable accounting treatment diomis. Moreover, for a variety of reasons many etgpi@ the field of executive compensation have
advised companies to avoid over-reliance on st@tlons. As a result, many experts, including obegan to recommend other forms of equity
compensation.

Between 2004 and 2007, the Compensation Cdeeriaid the executives’ long-term compensatioh witombination of stock options and restricted
stock. The Committee believes that restricted statlen compared to stock option grants, providesnuspportunity to provide similar performance
incentives to increase share prices with the isseiafifewer Common Shares, thereby reducing pateditution. Moreover, unlike options, restricted
stock still affords motivation to increase stocicps even if the share price becomes substandallyessed. On the other hand, the Committee bslieve
stock options, when granted in higher multiplesithestricted stock, can provide executives withagrwed performance incentives by increasing the
profitability of share appreciation. In additiodl, @mpensation expense associated with optionegsinder our plans is deductible by us for taypses
under Section
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162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code. Based onttmsCommittee concluded during the past sevemaisydnat paying equity incentives jointly in therft
of restricted stock and stock options was consistéth the goal of creating appropriate incentiaéseasonable costs. Using a ratio that valuecdeestf
restricted stock 337.5% higher than an option teipase a share, we paid during this period hati@fvalue of our long-term incentive awards in
restricted stock and half in options. You shoultenbowever, that other valuation methods (inclgdhose that we are required to use under thededer
proxy rules) may assign different relative or aggtte valuations to our grants. You should furtteenhat in early 2008 the Committee elected tods|
of our 2008 long-term equity compensation in therfof restricted stock. See “- 2008 Compensationifiens.”

Currently, all of our stock options vest ogetwo- or three-year period, and all restrictedlstgenerally vests over a five-year period, prodittee
recipient remains employed by us. We have in tst igaued restricted stock with vesting periods &itaelerate upon the attainment of performancésg
and periodically review the possibility of grantifigure restricted stock awards that vest partlwbolly upon our performance. Because of the enb@nc
likelihood of forfeiture, these types of awards ggically granted in higher share multiples antjsat the issuing company to greater dilution. Altgh
we may elect to grant such instruments in the &twe currently believe that our use of annualrntive bonuses and long-term stock options
appropriately motivates our officers to increasarsholder value. For additional information on tlesting terms of our equity awards, see “Executive
Compensation - Incentive Compensation - Outstandingrds.”

In establishing equity award levels, we review ¢lgeity ownership levels of the recipients and pawards, but do not place great weight on thisofe
We believe each annual grant of long-term compé@nrsahould match prevailing practices in orderdar compensation packages to remain competitive
from year to year, and to mitigate the risk of cetitprs offering compensation packages to our exegsithat have superior long-term incentives.
Moreover, the accumulation of substantial awareg(ded in reasonable annual increments) signifigamtreases each executigahotivation to increa:
our share price and remained employed by us, anld cieter executives from accepting job offers thigger equity forfeitures. For these reasonsgwoe
not place great weight on equity ownership levelpr@r grants in connection with granting new aslsar

In early 2005, a subcommittee of the Compeémsa@ommittee awarded equity incentive grants lerfirst year of a three-year program developed and
approved by the Committee, with assistance fromdtssultant, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. Basedatmabmpiled by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the
subcommittee determined that the target amourdrgf-term compensation proposed for 2005, 2006 80d@ %vas consistent with its goal of granting
long-term incentive awards with a value commensuvdth those paid to similarly-situated executiasésomparable companies. To promote teamwork,
three of our six executives received identical alsam both February 2006 and 2007, the Commitbedicned that the amount of long-term
compensation targeted for 2006 and 2007 was piltapriate, and approved grants to the executiffeen$ in such amounts. For the reasons discussed
above, the Committee split the awards granted dutiis threeyear period between stock options and restricteckst-or more information, see the tak
included under the heading “Executive Compensatamd the additional discussion below under the ingdl Our Compensation Decision-Making
Process.”
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Other Benefits

As a final component of executive compensatias provide a broad array of benefits designdaetaompetitive, in the aggregate, with similar b
provided by our peers. We summarize these addlttoergefits below.

Retirement Plans. We maintain a traditional qualified defined beneditirement plan for most of our employees who hasmpleted at least five years
of service, plus a traditional qualified definedtribution 401(k) plan for a similar group of ounployees. With respect to both of these qualifiohg,
we maintain nonqualified plans that permit our aéfis to receive or defer supplemental amountsdesxof federally-imposed caps that limit the anboun
of benefits highly-compensated employees are edtith receive under qualified plans. We also mairaanonqualified supplemental executive retirement
plan which, prior to being frozen in early 2008fepéd additional benefits to a select group of semior officers. When we review overall compensatio
levels for our senior management, we factor inbiheefits expected to be received under these megimeplans and their contribution to our executives
total compensation. However, we continue to plagepoimary emphasis on ensuring that our compemsatiograms do not lag behind those of our
competitors, which could subject us to the riskosfng talented senior managers. Additional infaioraregarding our retirement plans is providethia
tables and accompanying discussion included betwethe heading “Executive Compensation.”

Change of Control Arrangements. As described in more detail under “Executive Congagion - Potential Termination Payments — Paymigiatse
Upon a Change of Control,” in 2000 we entered ageeements under which we agreed to pay each ah@autive officers who is terminated without
cause or resigns under certain specified circuraetawithin three years of any change of contraefituryTel (i) a lump sum cash severance payment
equal to three times the sum of such officer’s ahsalary and bonus, (ii) the officer’s currentyngling bonus, (iii) additional tax gross-up cashnpants
described further below and (iv) certain welfaredfés for three years.

We believe these benefits enhance sharehoddiee because

«  prior to a takeover, these protections (i) hedpacruit and retain talented officers by providasgurances that their compensation and benefits wi
not be reduced or eliminated upon a takeover anbeip maintain the productivity of our workforbg alleviating day-to-day concerns over
economic security, ar

e during or after a takeover, these protectionkélp our personnel, when evaluating a possiblénbas combination, to focus on the best interest of
CenturyTel and its shareholders, rather than beistgacted by personal concerns, and (ii) reduegittk that personnel will accept job offers from
competitors during takeover discussic

In recommending and approving these change of aoagreements in 2000, our Compensation CommittdeBaard, respectively, analyzed the terms of
similar arrangements for comparable
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executives at other peer companies. This approashused to set the amounts payable and the eviggisring payment. We monitor the aggregate
amount of payments that could potentially be madeaurr executives if they are terminated followingh@ange of control, and believe these potential
payments are relatively small in relation to ourrent aggregate equity value. We further believeatnange of controls benefits are substantially
consistent with the general practice among ourgedthough we have not commissioned any recedy stpecifically designed to confirm this. In late
2007, we amended and restated each of the champewbl agreements with our officers to ensuré flagments made under these agreements would no
result in the imposition of penalties under theediefd compensation provisions of Section 409A efltiiernal Revenue Code.

The change of control benefits are payablewohg a change in control if the officer is terratad without cause or resigns with “good reasormictv
is defined to include a diminution of responsiiBi, an assignment of inappropriate duties, areas® in responsibilities or duties without a comsneste
increase in compensation, and a transfer of thdmmae exceeding 35 miles. For the CEO’s agreemelyt any failure of the CEO to be named the chief
executive officer of the parent company survivihg thange of control transaction is deemed to iméndition of responsibilities entitling the CEO to
resign with “good reason.” All of these provisicarg designed to assure our officers that theyrefilin a job with responsibilities, stature andeear
opportunities consistent with those enjoyed by tipeior to the takeover. In addition, change-of-cohbenefits are payable to our executive and senio
officers if the officer resigns for any reason digrthe 30-day period immediately following the ffiasmniversary of the change of control. We belithig
latter provision would help assure the acquirethefservices of our management team for at leastear following the change of control, while & th
same time hastening the acquirer’s incentive to gi@iakly and fairly in offering our officers apppaate career and compensation opportunities.

If change of control benefits become payathle,cash payment to our key employees is baseldeofolowing multiples of salary and bonus, and the
right to health and welfare benefits continuestiier following number of years:

Multiple of Years of

Salary anc Welfare

Bonus Benefits
Executive Officers 3 times 3 years
Senior Officers (Job Grades 66 or | 2 times 2 years
Other Officers (Job Grades 64 or ¢ 1.5 times 1.5 years

Other Key Personnel (Job Grade-63) 1.0 times 1.0 year

Based on our survey of prevailing practice2000, we agreed in our 2000 change of controleagests to reimburse only our executive and senior
officers for any taxes imposed as a result of ckangontrol benefits. For the remainder of managsinwe cap their change in control benefits soriba
taxes will be imposed.
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For more information on our change of conmwhngements, see “Executive Compensation - Patdrgrmination PaymentsRPayments Made Upon
Change of Control.”

Reduction in Force Benefits. We pay severance benefits to non-union full-timelkeyees who are terminated in connection with aicddn in force.
Benefits are not paid if the employee voluntardgigns or is terminated for performance reasoms connection with the sale of a business uninax i
transaction that gives rise to the change-of-cop@gments described above. The amount of any egifle severance payment is based on the terminatec
employee’s tenure with us and willingness to waileéms, and can range from two to 65 weeks of ¢heinated employee’s base salary or wages.

Perquisites. Since 1999, we have made cash payments to ouersfin lieu of previously-offered perquisites, marfiyhich continue to be offered by
our peers. During 2007, these payments to our éxesuranged from $22,880 to $34,320.

Officers are entitled to be reimbursed for¢bst of an annual physical examination, plus eelatavel expenses.

Under our aircraft usage policy, the CEO msg aur aircraft for personal travel without reimging us, and each other executive officer may use o
aircraft for up to $10,000 per year in personalétavithout reimbursing us. In all such cases, peas travel is permitted only if aircraft is avdila and
not needed for superseding business purposesufRaoges of valuing and reporting the use of owratt, we determine the incremental cost of aitcraf
usage on an hourly basis, calculated in accordaitbeapplicable guidelines of the Securities andlange Commission. The cost of this usage may be
substantially higher under certain alternative castulation methodologies.

As explained in greater detail in our 2006xgretatement, prior to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act dfZ2@ve funded supplemental life insurance bentdits
our officers in excess of those generally affortedmployees. These benefits were provided purgoamdorsement “split-dollar” insurance agreements
between us and our officers in which CenturyTel trdofficer’s beneficiaries would share death liegnpayable under life insurance policies procured
by us. In 2002, we suspended payment of furthenpmas under the “split-dollar” policies insuringetfives of our executive officers, but resumed pgyi
premiums in 2006 under restructured arrangememioaed by the Compensation Committee. These raated arrangements, among other things,
obligate us to pay premiums on the executive af§icespective insurance policies sufficient toypde the same death benefits available under tioe pr
agreements, and entitle the executive officerautalpase additional post-retirement coverage at tiosit and to receive related tax grogseash paymen
in amounts sufficient to compensate them for incame employment taxes incurred as a result of mpum payments.

For more information on each of the items untis heading, see the Summary Compensation Eqigearing below under the heading “Executive
Compensation.”

Other Employee Benefits. We maintain stock purchase plans that enable niasireemployees to purchase common shares on tatederms. We
also maintain certain broad-based employee welfanefit plans in which the executive officers agagrally permitted to participate on terms that are
either substantially similar to those provided im¢her participants
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or which provide our executives with enhanced bighapon their death or disability. We also maintaisupplemental disability plan designed to ensure
disability payments to our officers in the evenyip@&nts are unavailable from our disability insufiére Board has elected to invest Centuryg efatching
contribution under the 401(k) Plan in Common Shareas to further align employees’ and sharehdlfieencial interests.

Our Compensation Decision-Making Process

Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee of our Board establishggdements, administers and monitors our progrions
compensating executive officers. The Committee gagés own consultants. As described in more de¢dow under “- Trienniel Review Process,” the
consultants assist the Committee to design exexgtimpensation programs, to determine whether tmen@ttee’s philosophy and practices are
reasonable and compatible with prevailing practitegather data on the compensation paid to exesuat other companies, and to provide guidance on
specific compensation levels based on industrydsemd practices.

The Compensation Committee also establishgdeiments, administers and monitors our directoitggompensation programs. The Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee of the Board isoresiple for approving cash compensation of ouratiines, and typically works closely with the
Compensation Committee and its consultants to wepievailing director compensation trends and peast

As explained further in our committee charterg Board reviews all compensation actions tdikethe Boards committees. Unless otherwise provi
by our charters or applicable law, these comméitet@®ns are subject to ratification by the Board.

Trienniel Review Process . Over the past decade, the Committee has reta@idegendent consulting firms every three yearsotalact a detailed
review of compensation philosophy, practices amdyfams, including the structure of our annual amgjiterm incentive compensation programs. During
these comprehensive triennial reviews, the Commhes typically sought to confirm that its philoegmnd practices are reasonable and comparable to
those of similar companies, to reconfigure our exige compensation programs if necessary to imptbgen or conform them to prevailing practices, to
set annual salaries, and to establish target |®féigentive compensation to be granted to eaelcgtive officer during the upcoming three-year peri
During the second and third year of each of thessetyear periods, the Committee consults witmidgpendent consultants to determine if changéseto
three-year program are necessary or appropriatietcamstablish the specific salary and annual itieercompensation payable to the executives for the
upcoming year.

For several years, the Committee has complet@dennial or annual review in February in aomgtion with the first regularly scheduled boardetirgg
of the year. This enables the Committee to appmowebruary all executive salary adjustments amtiba@awards shortly following the completion of our
performance review process and the release ofimamdial results for the previously-completed cdimyear. The Committee also periodically adjusts
salaries at other times of the year if necessargftect promotions or other changes in job resjmlitges.
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Since late 2004, the Committee has engagee\RaiterhouseCoopers LLP as its compensation cansulh February 2005, the Committee, following
several months of work with PricewaterhouseCooptepted a three-year executive compensation progeaering 2005, 2006 and 2007. In connection
with this triennial review, the Committee and PviegerhouseCoopers compared our officer compensttitire following three benchmarks:

« broad-based compensation data for top execuftiwastelecommunications companies and from otherganies with revenues comparable to
ours, all of which was derived from various natiosirveys and adjusted for agi

¢ alscompany“financia” peer group of communications companies with metéarnues comparable to ol
¢ a l(-company“industry’ peer group of S&P 500 telecommunications compa

Although the Committee reviews all three of thesadhmarks, it affords the greatest weight to tlemtibased survey data, and the next greatest wei
the “financial” peer group. The “industryeer group is used principally to confirm the releey of the first two benchmarks to our industrgck year th
Committee reviews the appropriateness of the peerpg, and makes adjustments to reflect mergdes,szorporate reorganizations or other industry
changes.

In connection with our review of executive qunsation in early 2007, we compared our officengensation to the three benchmarks described
above. As part of this review, in early 2007 weuatid the “industry” peer group to consist of thkofving 11 companies: Cincinnati Bell, Citizens
Communications, Windstream, Telephone & Data Systdimbarq, Alltel, Qwest Communications, BellSoGtirp., Sprint Nextel Corp., AT&T Inc. and
Verizon Communications, and we adjusted the “fin@f@eer group to consist of the following 14 coamges: Alltel, Primus Telecomm Group, Univision
Communications, Caci International, Cincinnati BHIT Corporation, Liberty Global, Citizens Commaaiions, Puget Energy, US Cellular, Telephor
Data Systems, Level 3 Communications, Cablevisigste®ns and Qwest Communications.

In 2005, 2006 and 2007, the Committee andceRraterhouseCoopers used the benchmarking dataeiordee median amounts of salary, annual
bonuses and equity compensation paid to executiveparable to ours (as well as salary levels emguthle 75" percentile). In determining how much to
compensate each officer, the Committee also extelysieviewed a wide range of other factors, inglgdhe officer’s individual performance and
particular set of skills, the anticipated degreélifficulty of replacing the officer with someoné @omparable experience and skill, the role theceff
plays in maintaining a cohesive management teanirapobving the performance of others, the roledffeeer may have played in any recent
extraordinary corporate achievements, the officeraire with us and within the telecommunicatiordustry, the officer’s pay relative to other offise
and employees, the officer’s prior compensatioregent years, the financial community’s assessmwiemtanagement’s performance, and the recent
performance of CenturyTel. In assessing our perémer, we typically review how our actual revenwash flows, net income and other measures of
financial performance relate to amounts previopsbjected by us or market participants, as wethasresults of peer telecommunications companies. W
also assess operational benchmarks, such as amgsdowe losses or customer growth in relationuo o
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competitors. Although we assess each offe@rtividual performance in connection with estsitilig all components of compensation, we typicaiygh
this factor more heavily for salary determinatiamsl less heavily for bonuses, which tend to becatid among the officers primarily on the basithefr
level of responsibility and pay grade.

Each year, we compile lists of compensatida delating to each of our executives. These “tglfigets” include the executive’s salary, annuah cas
incentive award, equity-based compensation, peitgejgpension benefit accruals and other compensalihe tally sheet also shows the executive’s
holdings of our Common Shares and accumulated limedagains under prior equity-based compensatisards. The Compensation Committee uses
these tally sheets to estimate the total annuapemsation of the executive officers, and to asesexecutive officers’ wealth accumulation fronr ou
compensation programs. During 2007, the Committe/iew of tally sheets helped confirm that our pemsation levels were generally commensurate
with those of our peers, which helped us to attainpredominate goal of offering competitive comgegtion packages.

Annual Bonus Procedures . To administer our annual bonus program, we mairftaa shareholder-approved short-term incengilaa for certain of
the executive officers and (ii) an annual incentiemus plan for other officers and managers. Imeation with both of these bonus plans, in Febrwéry
each year our Compensation Committee

« establishes performance objectives, and for datdrmines a “target” level of performance, as well'minimum” and “maximum” levels of
performance

* determines the relative weight each performanceabibi should receive in connection with calculgtaggregate bonus payme

« establishes the amount of bonus payable if tary&t” level of performance is attained, whichyigitally defined in terms of a percentage of each
officer's salary

Upon completion of the fiscal year, the CFQuats our actual operating results in accordantk thie Committee’s long-standing written procedures
designed to eliminate the effects of extraordir@mon-recurring transactions that were not knowarticipated on the date the performance goals wer
established. The CFO then compares our adjustaatipgresults to the pre-determined minimum, taegel maximum levels for each performance
objective, and calculates a blended rate of oairattent of the performance objectives. These détations and calculations are provided in writing t
the Committee for its review and approval.

We have traditionally believed that compangevperformance should be the major determinariieofitnount of annual incentive bonuses for our
executive officers. Nonetheless, the bonus paytaltlee CEO in accordance with these procedurashigst to the “negative discretion” of the Comntte
to reduce the calculated bonus payment. The borpasesble to each other executive officer in accocdawith these procedures is subject to thegative
discretion” of the CEO to reduce the calculatedusopayment based on his assessment of the offigerfermance during the prior year, including an
assessment of the degree to which such officenattais or her individual performance goals fartsyear.
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Under our annual bonus programs, the Commitigg pay the annual bonuses in cash or stock. 2i0@e, the Committee has paid these bonuses
entirely in cash. The Committee believes payinguahbonuses to our executives in cash is apprepbietause:

¢ the executives are already receiving well over batheir overall compensation in the form of eggtants
¢ the executive has fully earned his bonus, whictdeeot believe should be subject to the furthes oisloss associated with equity grants,
¢ use of cash diversifies the compensation mix aegigrts us from ov-reliance on equity grant

Annual Equity Grant Procedures . Under our equity incentive plans, the exercisegof any stock options awarded by us must equekoeed the
closing price of our stock on the date of grant ffathe markets are closed on such date, the inmtely preceding trading date). As explained furthe
above, annual grants of stock awards to execusixe@snade at the Committee’s regularly scheduledingem February. Grants of stock awards to newly
hired executive officers who are eligible to reesiliem are made at the next regularly scheduledn@e® meeting following their hire date. Under our
option pricing policies that govern all other emy@es, (i) employees receive their options as ofifttebusiness day of the month that follows
immediately after the month in which we complete aanual merit review process (typically in Febyuar March) and (ii) newly hired or promoted
employees receive their award of stock optionsherfifth business day of the month that follows iediately after the month in which they are hired or
promoted.

Role of CEO in Compensation Decisions . Although the Compensation Committee approvesatipensation decisions for the executive officeast
year it receives the CE®@recommendations, particularly with respect tccatige salaries. The Committee believes the CHaiter able than it to asse

¢ the relative strengths and weakness of the othegudives and their recent performai

¢ the possibility that differences in compensatomong similarly situated executives could negayiwelpact morale, cohesion, teamwork or the
overall viability of the executive group, a

« the relative vulnerability of executives to jobisdhtions from competitors
The Committee considers the CEO’s recommendatismmmnea of the many factors it uses to establish emsgtion levels for each executive.

In addition, the CEO is responsible for apjmgwthe annual salaries and bonuses of ourexaeutive officers, including approval of approfpgiannuz
performance goals for such officers. The CEO afgwraves all equity compensation awards to the n@ttive officers, acting under authority delegated
by the Compensation Committee in accordance witHang-
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term incentive plans. The Committee oversees thesgesses and receives an annual report from tkie CE

2008 Compensation Decisions

In early 2008, the Compensation Committee detad a comprehensive triennial review of our conga¢ion philosophies, practices and programs. In
connection with this review, we decided to discon¢i our Supplemental Executive Retirement Planci8pally, we (i) froze future benefit accruals
effective February 29, 2008 and (ii) approved @arendments permitting participants to receive i028 lump sum distribution of the present value of
their accrued plan benefits. We also enhancedlgaefits by (i) crediting each active participaittvthree additional years of service and (ii) dtied
each participant who is not accruing additionald§is under the plan with three additional yeara@é in connection with calculating the presentieaf
any lump sum distributions to be made in 2009.

In addition, in early 2008 the Committee reafEd our executive compensation philosophies aathadologies, and concluded that our executive
compensation programs remained generally effetiaehieving our compensation objectives. The Catemielected to issue all of our 2008 long-term
equity compensation in the form of time-vestedrietstd stock for a variety of reasons, includirgrigcognition of the growing use of restricted ktog
our peers and its desire to minimize the dilutissaziated with our awards. During the past fewsjeae furnished our long-term equity compensation
half in stock options and half in time-vested riestd stock.

Forfeiture of Prior Compensation

Our officers have agreed to forfeit certairttadir equity compensation awards (and to retummstany cash, securities or other assets recejvéten
upon the sale of Common Shares they acquired throaegain prior awards) if at any time during thesinployment with us or within 18 months after
termination of employment they engage in activibyptrary or harmful to our interests. The Compemsa@ommittee is authorized to waive these
forfeiture provisions if it determines in its saiscretion that such action is in our best intexeate have filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission copies of our form of incentive agreetaeontaining these forfeiture provisions.

We have never to our knowledge restated oanftial statements, and currently have no formbtips regarding whether we would adjust previously
awarded annual incentive bonuses in the event statesl the financial statements upon which sucluisesmwere based. Under certain circumstances,
however, equity awards to culpable executives cbeldubject to forfeiture under the provisions swarined in the preceding paragraph. In addition,
certain laws would require our CEO and CFO to reireb us for incentive compensation paid or tragiradits earned following the release of financial
statements that are subsequently restated duetésiah@oncompliance with SEC reporting requirersergused by misconduct.

Other Compensation Matters

To the extent that it is practicable and cstesit with our executive compensation objectives seek to comply with Section 162(m) of the Intérna
Revenue Code and the
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regulations adopted thereunder in order to preseréax deductibility of performandssed compensation in excess of $1 million pertiexgear to eac
of our officers. During both 2006 and 2007, the @emsation Committee elected to maintain our CE@'arg at $1 million principally to preserve its tax
deductibility. However, if compliance with Secti@62(m) conflicts with our compensation objectivessocontrary to the best interests of the
shareholders, we will pursue those objectives,ndigas of the attendant tax implications. In edfithe last several years, we granted RestrictedkStmat
did not qualify as performance-based compensatmeuSection 162(m).

We believe that our compensation programsteraa appropriate incentive for our senior manatgebenefit from appreciation in the value of our
stock. Although we have reviewed the merits of isipg mandatory security ownership requirementshae chosen not to do so, primarily because
requirements could cause hardships for officerk Veiss tenure or lower net worth, and because wensacompelling need to mandate rigid requireme
Similarly, we have not adopted any formal prohdsitagainst our officers hedging the economic ristheir holdings of our Common Shares. Although
we believe that excessive use of such hedging amde@rcut the benefits of our equity incentive pamgs, we do not believe that our officers havedit
such manner. We plan to continue to periodicalbeas the merits of adopting ownership requiremanitedging prohibitions in the future.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee has reviewed asalidsed with management the report included aboserithe heading “Compensation Discussion
and Analysis.” Based on this review and discusdioa,Compensation Committee recommended to thecdBbat the Compensation Discussion and
Analysis report be included in this proxy statememd incorporated into our Annual Report on ForrrKlfor the year ended December 31, 2007.
Submitted by the Compensation Committee of thecdBafaDirectors.

C. G. Melville, Jr. (Chairman) James B. Gardner Fred R. Nichols

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Overview

The following table sets forth certain infortioa regarding the compensation of (i) our printimeecutive and financial officers and (ii) eachoof
four most highly compensated executive officerepthan our principal executive and financial @fig. In this proxy statement, we sometimes refer to
these six executive officers as the “named offi¢d¥sllowing this table is additional informatioegarding incentive compensation, pension benefits,
deferred compensation and potential terminationm@nts pertaining to the named officers. For addiionformation on the compensation summarized
below and other benefits, see “Compensation Disscassd Analysis.”
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Summary Compensation Table

Name and Restricted Stock Non-Equity Change in
Principal Stock Option Incentive Plan Pension All Other
Position Year Salary Awards @) Awards @) Compensation® Value ® Compensation® Total
Glen F. Post, llI 2007 $1,000,000 $1,437,29 $4,610,60( $1,358,50! $ —® $567,36: $8,973,76!
Chairman of the
Board and Chief 200¢ 1,000,001 1,244,23. 1,449,395 702,00( 497,55 586,05: 5,479,22
Executive Office
Karen A. Puckett 2007 622,08t 565,45¢ 684,82: 715,09( 93,90: 254,98¢ 2,936,35!
President and Chief 200¢ 602,38« 492,85 287,06: 357,81 180,78 252,83t 2,173,73
Operating Officel
R. Stewart Ewing, Jr. 2007 558,11: 470,35¢ 1,041,25(5 524,90« —(6) 328,16¢ 2,922,79:
Executive Vice Preside
and Chief Financial 200¢ 540,44¢ 409,96¢ 852,50() 262,65¢ 359,13¢ 110,56: 2,535,26'
Officer
Michael E. Maslowski 2007 343,39¢ 308,43:. 455,4415) 287,07¢ 134,11t 188,85( 1,717,31
Senior Vice President
and Chief Information 200¢ 332,52 268,83( 155,01 143,65( 294,97 196,27¢ 1,391,271
Officer
David D. Cole 2007 400,74 308,43: 369,80¢ 376,90( —®) 171,85! 1,627,73.
Senior Vice President -
: (4 < |
Operations Suppol 200¢ 388,02( 268,83( 155,01 188,57¢ 172,84¢ 170,41¢ 1,343,70!
Stacey W. Goff 2007 385,62¢ 308,43. 369,80¢ 362,68: 14,07¢ 153,19( 1,593,81.
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and 200¢ 339,18 268,83( 155,01 178,84¢ 110,67¢ 142,49: 1,195,04.

Secretary

@)

)
©)
4)

The amounts shown in this column reflectdbflar amount recognized with respect to these dsvéor financial statement reporting purposes for
the respective years under SFAS 123(R), which requis to spread the compensation cost of the avfarakch recipient proportionately over the
requisite service period. See footnote 14 entit&tdck Compensation Programs” of the notes to adlitad financial statements included in
Appendix Afor an explanation of material assumptions thatsed to calculate the fair value of these stockrdsy

The amounts shown in this column reflect gasyments made under our annual incentive bonus fita performance in the respective years. For
additional information, se“- Incentive Compensatic— 2007 Award” below.

Reflects the net change during each of tleesyseflected of the present value of the execsitimecumulated benefits under the three define@fiten
plans discussed und“- Pension Benefit”

The amounts shown in this column are comgredfg(i) the payment of cash in lieu of previousiifered perquisites, (ii) reimbursements for thetco
of an annual physical examination, (iii) persorsé of our aircraft, (iv) contributions or otheraahtions to our defined contribution plans, (v) the
payment of premiums on life insurance policies) ¢ash payments to compensate the executivesxes tacurred by such life insurance premium
payments and (vii) the value of dividends paid lum éxecutives’ unvested restricted stock, in easle ¢or and on behalf of the named officers
during 2007 as follows

Insurance
Premium Tax
Reimbursement
Payments

Restricted
Stock
Dividends

Insurance
Premiums
Paid

Cash
Allowance

Contributions
to Plans

Physical  Aircraft

Name Year Exam Use Total

Mr. Post

2007
200¢€

$34,32(
34,32(

$2,41%  $8,46(
2,10¢  5,35C

$148,43:
144,38

$193,90:
215,85¢

$131,16¢
146,01¢

$48,67:
38,02¢

$567,36¢
586,05:
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Insurance

Insurance Premium Tax Restricted
Cash Physical Aircraft Contributions Premiums Reimbursement Stock
Name Year Allowance Exam Use to Plans Paid Payments Dividends Total
Ms. Pucket 2007 $27,95( $1,67C $2,65¢ $83,37¢ $ 71,51t $48,37¢ $19,44¢ $254,98t
200¢ 27,95( 1,67(C — 80,61¢ 75,87¢ 51,32t 15,40( 252,83
Mr. Ewing 2007 27,95( — — 69,25 128,12: 86,66¢ 16,17 328,16¢
200¢ 27,95( 2,697 82t 66,27¢ — — 12,81( 110,56:
Mr. Maslowski 2007 22,88( 2,33¢ — 41,84¢ 71,08¢ 40,08¢ 10,60¢ 188,85(
200¢ 22,88( 3,37¢ — 36,97 74,35 50,29¢ 8,40(C 196,27¢
Mr. Cole 2007 27,95( — — 50,95( 49,11¢ 33,22¢ 10,60¢ 171,85
200¢ 27,95( — 2,27% 47,997 49,98¢ 33,81 8,40( 170,41¢
Mr. Goff 2007 27,95( 2,42¢ 5,33( 48,24 34,97: 23,651 10,60¢ 153,19(
200¢ 27,95( — 6,42 42,84( 33,92¢ 22,951 8,40(C 142,49:

®)

(6)

For additional information on these payments antkfits, see “Compensation Discussion and Analysi©ther Benefits — Perquisites.”

Because Mr. Post and Mr. Ewing are eligible toreetiarly (which would accelerate the vesting obélheir stock options) before the end of the
award’s vesting period, related compensation costs assaicwith their 2006 and 2007 option grants hawenlyecognized over the period from dat
grant through their respective retirement eligitidées. All of Mr. Post’s and Mr. Ewing’s grant déaé value related to their 2006 and 2007 grants
was recognized as compensation expense for tharyednich such grants were made, except that opy@imately 53% of Mr. Post’grant date fa
value related to his 2006 option grant was recaghizs 2006 compensation expense. Before the ethé westing period for his 2007 restricted stock
award, Mr. Maslowski will become eligible to retiearly under the agreements governing his stockdsvas such, all of the related compensation
expense associated with his 2007 award is beiragrezed over the period from the date of grantugfoMarch 22, 2009, his early retirement
eligibility date. For all other named officers, tbempensation cost is spread proportionately dwefull length of the award’s multi-year vesting
period. See Note 1 abov

Messrs. Post, Ewing, and Cole experienced negeliaages in the value of their pensions in 2007#r(arily due to changes in our calculation
methodologies designed to enhance the accuracyrafatuations). Mr. Post’s pension decreased inevaly $169,272, Mr. Ewing’pension decreas

in value by $47,970, and Mr. Cole’s pension de@das value by $68,885. SEC rules dictate that sletiieases be treated as a $0 Change in Pensio
Value for purposes of calculating total compensa

Incentive Compensation

2007 Awards . The table and discussion below summarizes (i)dhge of potential payouts under the annual inceribnus awards granted in

February 2007 (and paid in February 2008), (ilngsaf nonqualified options made on February 2®728nd (iii) grants of restricted stock made on
February 26, 2007.
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards

Estimated

Future Share Grant Date

Payouts Under Exercise Fair Value

Range of Payouts Under 2007 N¢ Equity Incentive Price of of Stock
Type of Award and Equity Incentive Plan Awards Plan Awards Option and Option

Name Grant Date Threshold Target Maximum Target Awards Awards @
Glen F. Post, Il Annual Bonus $325,00( $650,00( $1,950,00! — — —
Stock Options (2/26/07 — — — 200,00( $ 45.9C $3,332,00!
Restricted Stock (2/26/0° — — — 58,50( — 2,685,15I
Karen A. Pucket Annual Bonus 171,07 342,14¢ 1,026,44! — — —
Stock Options (2/26/07 — — — 75,00( 45.9( 1,249,501
Restricted Stock (2/26/0° — — — 22,00( — 1,009,801
R. Stewart Ewing, J Annual Bonus 125,57t 251,15( 753,45 — — —
Stock Options (2/26/07 — — — 62,50( 45.9( 1,041,25!
Restricted Stock (2/26/0° — — — 18,30( — 839,97(
Michael E. Maslows}t Annual Bonus 68,67¢ 137,35¢ 412,07" — — —
Stock Options (2/26/07 — — — 40,50( 45.9( 674,73(
Restricted Stock (2/26/0° — — — 12,00( — 550,80(
David D. Cole Annual Bonus 90,167 180,33! 541,00 — — —
Stock Options (2/26/07 — — — 40,50( 45.9( 674,73(
Restricted Stock (2/26/0° — — — 12,00( — 550,80(
Stacey W. Gof Annual Bonus 86,76¢ 173,53 520,59¢ — — —
Stock Options (2/26/07 — — — 40,50( 45.9( 674,73(
Restricted Stock (2/26/0° — — — 12,00( — 550,80(

(1) These columns provide information on the ptigd bonus payouts approved with respect to 2@fopmance. For information on the actual
amounts paid based on 2007 performance critemathgecolumn of the Summary Compensation Tabldddd®on-Equity Incentive Plan
Compensatiol”

(2) Calculated in accordance with SFAS 123(

In February 2007, the Compensation CommitferioBoard elected to base the amount of the s@fiicers’ 2007 annual incentive bonuses on
whether we attained “threshold,” “target” or “owstling” levels of 2007 operating cash flow (esttidid at $1.122, $1.181 and $1.240 billion,
respectively) and 2007 end-user revenues (establiah$1.247, $1.313 and $1.379 billion, respelgtjvén each case, attainment of less than 95%ef t
target amount was designed to result in no bonysipat, and attainment of more than 105% of theetaagnount was designed to result in three times the
bonus payable for attaining the target level ofgenance. For these purposes, “operating cash floednt our operating income plus depreciation and
amortization, and “end-user revenues” meant oal tiferating revenues less “network access” revennd certain other smaller revenue components
included in the
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category described as “other” revenuéd\ppendix Ao this proxy statement. In both cases, we adju$tese amounts to eliminate the effects of
extraordinary or non-recurring transactions in adaace with procedures further described elsewherein. For purposes of calculating the aggregate
bonus payment, attainment of the operating cast &lod end-user revenue targets were weighed 60% @&t respectively. As reported in the Summary
Compensation Table above, these awards resuliggsimpayments to our named officers ranging froBY &9 to 1,358,500. For additional information,
see “Compensation Discussion and Analysis — Anin@ntive Bonuses.”

Each of the options granted to our executifiears on February 26, 2007 has a term of teng/aad vests over a three-year period, with one-tifir
the options having become exercisable on Februar2@8, and one-third becoming exercisable on e&&ebruary 26, 2009 and February 26, 2010.

The restricted stock issued to our executffiears vests over a five-year period, with oneHibf the shares having vested on February 26, 2008
onefifth vesting on February 26, 2009, February 26l@0-ebruary 26, 2011, and February 26, 2012, otispdy. The holders of these shares of restri
stock are recognized as the owners of such stemdsaccordingly, receive dividends with respeetéto.

Subiject to limited exceptions, the vestinghaf above-described options and restricted stotilawdelerate if the officer dies, becomes disalned
retires, and upon the occurrence of a change dfaasf CenturyTel, as described further in ourreth@lder-approved 2005 Management Incentive
Compensation Plan, a copy of which we have filetthwhe Securities and Exchange Commission. Alheke awards are subject to forfeiture if the office
competes with us or engages in certain other éietviharmful to us, all as specified further in fbems of incentive agreements that we have filéth the
Securities and Exchange Commission. See “- Potérgianination Payments.”

Outstanding Awards . The table below summarizes information on stqufkoms and unvested restricted stock outstandif@eaember 31, 2007.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at December 31, 200%)

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Securities Underlying Option Option Number of Shares Market Value
Unexercised Options Exercise Expiration That Have Not of Shares That
Name Exercisable Unexercisable@ Price Date Vested®) Have Not Vestec
Glen F. Post, Il 320,00( — $34.628  2/21/201( 46,80(4) $1,940,32!
92,66¢ — 32.99( 2/25/201: 35,10( 1,455,241
160,00( — 28.34( 2/25/201: 46,80( 1,940,32!
200,00( — 33.44(C 2/17/201! 58,50( 2,425,411
66,66¢ 133,33 35.41( 2/20/201¢
— 200,00( 45.90(C 2/26/201
Karen A. Pucket 60,00( — 32.99( 2/25/201: 22,000 912,12(
75,00( — 33.40C 2/17/201! 13,20( 547,27
25,00( 50,00( 35.41( 2/20/201¢ 17,60( 729,69¢
— 75,00( 45.90( 2/26/201° 22,00( 912,12(
R. Stewart Ewing, J 40,00 — 32.99( 2/25/201: 18,30(* 758,71¢
62,50() — 28.34( 2/25/201: 10,98( 455,23:
62,10 — 33.40C 2/17/201! 14,64( 606,97+
20,83¢ 41 ,66¢ 35.41( 2/20/201¢ 18,30( 758,71¢
— 62,50( 45.90( 2/26/201°
Michael E. Maslowsk 19,14: — 45.54( 3/24/200¢ 12,0004 497 ,52(
— 27,00( 35.41( 2/20/201¢ 7,20( 298,51:
— 40,50( 45.90( 2/26/201° 9,60( 398,01¢
12,00( 497,52(
David D. Cole 85,00( — 34.628  2/21/201( 12,00(® 497,52(
81,00( — 32.99( 2/25/201: 7,20( 298,51:
27,00! — 28.34( 2/25/201: 9,60( 398,01¢
40,50( — 33.40C 2/17/201! 12,00( 497,52(
13,50( 27,00( 35.41( 2/20/201¢
— 40,50( 45.90(C 2/26/201
Stacey W. Gof 50,00( — 34.20C 8/26/201: 12,00(® 497,52(
13,50( 27,00( 35.41( 2/20/201¢ 7,20( 298,51:
— 40,50( 45.90C 2/26/201 9,60( 398,01¢
12,00( 497,52(

(1) Allinformation on exercisability, vesting damarket value is solely as of December 31, 200meSof the options or restricted stock listed above
may have vested, become exercisable or been es@miisce such dat

(2) Our options generally vest at a rate of driedtper year over the first three years of theytear option term. Our options expiring in 2014 20d.5
vested one-third immediately with the remaindettimgsover the following two years. Also, in late®) the Company accelerated the vesting of all
then-outstanding options. In addition, our optiagselerate and become immediately exercisabldlingon a change of control of CenturyTel or if
the recipient dies, becomes disabled or ret
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(3) Except as noted in footnote 4, all shardedisinder this column are shares of restricteckstwet generally vest as a rate of 20% per yeanduhe
first five years after their grant date. In additioesting of our restricted stock accelerates upohange of control of CenturyTel or upon
termination of the officer's employment as a restitieath or disability, or, if permitted by the iBpensation Committee, retirement or termination
by CenturyTel

(4) All of these shares of restricted stock will vestull on February 25, 200!

(5) In 2006, Mr. Ewing transferred to his ex-wif of his options expiring in 2012 and 2014 awd-thirds of his options expiring in 2015 (relatitgy
185,000 Common Shares in the aggregate), of whigh0® options have been exercised as of 12/31/:

2007 Exercises and Vesting. The following table provides information on Comn®hares acquired by the named officers during 20@bnnection
with the exercise of options and the vesting ofrieted stock.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of
Shares Shares
Acquired Value Realized Acquired Value Realized
Name on Exercise On Exercise on Vesting on Vesting®
Glen F. Post, Il 463,53« $7,416,59' 23,40( $1,022,58I
Karen A. Pucket 60,00( 796,65« 8,80( 384,56(
R. Stewart Ewing, J 85,40( 983,23 7,32C 319,88«
Michael E. Maslowsk 27,00( 333,05 4,80(C 209,76(
David D. Cole 0 0 4,80( 209,76(
Stacey W. Gof 67,90( 827,79t 4,80(C 209,76(

(1) Based on the closing price of the Common Shardh@®resting date
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Pension Benefits

The following table and discussion summarjzession benefits payable to the named officers ufideur retirement plan qualified under Internal
Revenue Code Section 401(a), which permits mostioEmployees (including officers) who have cormgiedt least five years of service to receive
pension benefits upon attaining early or normatestent age, (ii) our nonqualified supplementahplahich is designed to pay supplemental retirement
benefits to officers in amounts equal to the besefich officers would otherwise forego due to fatlémitations on compensation and benefits under
qualified plans, and (iii) our nonqualified supplemal executive retirement plan, which, prior tingefrozen (as described further in “Compensation
Discussion and Analysis — 2008 Compensation Deess)o offered additional retirement benefits toedest group of our senior officers who had
completed at least five years of service. We refehese defined benefit plans below as our gedlifilan, our supplemental plan and our SERP,
respectively.

Pension Benefits

Present
Numbers of Value of
Years Credited Accumulated
Name Plan Name Service@ Benefit (2)
Glen F. Post, Il Qualified Plar 9 $ 851,91:
Supplemental Pla 9 438,72¢
SERP 25 5,361,36'
Karen A. Pucket Qualified Plar 7 431,77¢
Supplemental Pla 7 158,32:
SERP 7 766,00t
R. Stewart Ewing, J Qualified Plar 9 913,20:
Supplemental Pla 9 186,57:
SERP 25 1,960,18
Michael E. Maslowsk Qualified Plar 8 1,155,26.
Supplemental Pla 8 84,32:
SERP 8 262,77(
David D. Cole Qualified Plar 9 629,32!
Supplemental Pla 9 69,82
SERP 25 830,92!
Stacey W. Gof Qualified Plar 9 261,66
Supplemental Pla 9 54,02¢
SERP 5 148,26

(1) Inaccordance with our plans and practidessé figures correspond to the named officers’reatiCenturyTel, unless otherwise noted in the
discussion below

(2) These figures represent accumulated bersefitsf December 31, 2007 (assuming the executivainrsnemployed by us and begins receiving
retirement benefits at the normal retirement ages)f discounted from the normal retirement agpdéoember 31, 2007 using a discount rate of
6.3%. See Note 11 entitle
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“Defined Benefit and Other Retirement Planstha notes to our audited financial statementauged inAppendix Afor additional information. An
amounts distributed in a lump-sum to our officer009 in connection with the freeze of the SERBc(dssed further below) may vary from the
amounts shown in the table due to the use of @iffediscount rates and age and service creditrinaction with calculating such 2009
distributions.

The aggregate amount of a participant’s twtahthly pension payment under the qualified angkipental plans is equal to the participant’s yedrs
service since 1999 (up to a maximum of 30 yeardjipfied by the sum of (i) 0.5% of his final aveeagay plus (ii) 0.5% of his final average pay ices:
of his compensation subject to Social Security $aker these purposes, “final average pay” meamgditicipant’s average monthly compensation during
the 60 consecutive month period within his lastytears of employment in which he received his higltempensation.

Prior to the SERP being frozen in early 2Q@8ticipants in the SERP were entitled to receivetisement benefit equal to (i) 3% of the officer’
“average monthly compensation” (defined below) srtiee officer’s years of service with us (not teead ten years) plus (ii) 1% of the officer’s “cage
monthly compensation” times his years of servicexpess of ten years of service with us (up todiditnal years), minus (iii) 4% of his estimated
monthly Social Security benefits times his yearsetice with us (up to a maximum of 25 years)oiPto the plan freeze, “average monthly
compensation” was defined as the officer's averagathly compensation during the 36 consecutive mpetiod within his last ten years of employment
in which he received his highest compensation.i®aaints added to the plan after January 1, 2006ived credit only for service while a plan pagiamt.
For a discussion of changes made in early 200@nefits available to SERP participants, see “Corsgon Discussion and Analysis — 2008
Compensation Decisions.”

Under all three retirement plans, the compemsaipon which benefits are based equals the ggtgeamount of the participastsalary and annual c:
incentive bonus. Although the pension benefits dieed above are provided through three separatespthe Company reserves the right to transfer
benefits from the supplemental plan or the SERfRéqqualified plan to the extent allowed under $teg regulations and other guidance. The value of
benefits transferred to the qualified plan direatffsets the value of benefits in the supplemepiah or the SERP. In 2005, 2006 and 2007, we tearesf
benefits from the supplemental plan and the SERRequalified plan, the incremental value of whighli be payable to the recipients in the form of
enhanced annuities or supplemental benefits.

The normal form of benefit payment under latee retirement plans is (i) in the case of unmedrparticipants, a monthly annuity payable forlifesof
the participant, and (ii) in the case of marriedipgants, an actuarially equivalent monthly arnpygayable for the lifetime of the participant aad
survivor annuity payable for the lifetime of theosige upon the participant’s death. Participants ebegt optional forms of annuity benefits undertiatee
plans and, in the case of the qualified plan, audy that guarantees ten years of benefits, alltath are actuarially equivalent in value to tloemal
form of benefit. The enhanced annuities describettié prior paragraph may be paid in the form lfrap sum, at the participant’s election. As diseudkss
further in “Compensation Discussion and Analysi2808 Compensation Decisions,” SERP participantsbeilpermitted to receive in 2009 a lump sum
distribution of the present value of their accrpéah benefits.
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The normal retirement age under all threéhefabove-described plans is 65. Participants magive benefits under all three plans upon “early
retirement,” which is defined as attaining age 5thwither five years of service (with respecthe gualified and supplemental plans) or 10 years of
service (with respect to the SERP). Under our §jedliand supplemental plans, the benefit payabtewgarly termination is calculated under formulzs
pay between 60% to 100% of the base plan benefil@fb6 to 92% of the excess plan benefit, in eask vath the lowest percentage applying to early
retirement at age 55 and proportionately highecgrages applying to early retirement after agersg. early termination benefit under the SERP isaéq
to 50%, 70% or 80% of the full normal retiremennéfit (depending on the retiree’s years of servioegarly retirement at age 55, and is equal ¢héi
percentages that proportionately escalate up t&200@h each additional year of age up to age 65.déditional information on early retirement betsfi
please see the early retirement provisions of easjpn plans, copies of which are filed with theB#ies and Exchange Commission.

Glen Post and Stewart Ewing are currentlyileiégfor early retirement under all three of thengien plans described above. Mike Maslowski is
currently eligible for early retirement under theatified and supplemental plans (but not undelSB&P or the agreements governing his stock awards).
Deferred Compensation

The following table and discussion provide®imation on our supplemental dollars & sense pharich is designed to permit officers to defer amig
in excess of the amounts that may be deferred dederal law governing qualified 401(k) plans.

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation

Executive CenturyTel Aggregate
Contributions Contributions Aggregate Aggregate Balance at
in in Earnings in ~ Withdrawals/ December 31
Name 2007@ 2007®@ 2007 Distributions 2007®)

Glen F. Post, Il $134,70( $130,01: $39,34: $0 $568,19¢
Karen A. Pucket 61,73 70,56: 20,197 0 271,98°
R. Stewart Ewing, J 35,74¢ 50,03¢ 2,271 0 177,03(
Michael E. Maslowsk 75,731 26,71: 3,18¢ 0 135,71
David D. Cole 34,66: 32,43¢ 6,26¢ 0 129,46¢
Stacey W. Gof 60,82 35,35( 7,132 0 184,72

(1) All of these amounts in this column refleonhtributions by the officer of salary paid in 2087d reported as 2007 salary compensation in the
Summary Compensation Tab

(2) This column includes (i) our match of theioéf’s contribution under the terms of the plan &éida special non-recurring profitharing contributiol
arising out of the recent restructuring of our glawe have reflected all of these amounts as 266¥pensation in the column of the Summary
Compensation Table label“All Other Compensatio”

(3) Asindicated in notes 1 and 2 above, most of thlarce has been disclosed as compensation inrthkg ptatement
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Under our supplemental dollars & sense plartan of our senior officers may defer up to ) to 25% of their salary in excess of the fedanaitlon
annual contributions to qualified 401(k) plans &id25% of the restricted stock portion of theimaual incentive bonus award (which is deducted ftioen
cash portion of such bonus). (The latter deferaal lreen unavailable since 1999, which was the/é&stthat our annual bonuses included a restrittsek
portion.) For every dollar that participants colditie to this plan up to 6% of their excess salag/add an amount equal to the total matching pésigen
then in effect for matching contributions made yunder our qualified 401(k) plan (which for 20Qjuealed the sum of all of the initial 3% contributed
half of the next 2% contributed, and one-quartethefremainder contributed). All amounts contrilout@der this supplemental plan by the participants
us may be invested by the participants in the daroad array of money market and mutual funds offereder our qualified 401(k) plan. Participants may
change their investments in these funds at any. tifereserve the right to transfer benefits fromghpplemental dollars & sense plan to our qudlifiel
(k) or retirement plans to the extent allowed urifi@asury regulations and other guidance. The vafllenefits transferred to our qualified plansdity
offsets the value of benefits in the supplementélads & sense plan. We made transfers of this tg#005 and 2006. Participants in the supplemental
dollars & sense plan normally receive payment efrtaccount balances in a lump sum once they cgadéng fulltime for us.

Potential Termination Payments

The materials below discuss payments and bisrieét our officers are eligible to receive i€h(i) resign or retire, (ii) are terminated by wéth or
without cause, (iii) die or become disabled or flecome entitled to termination benefits followanghange of control of CenturyTel.

Notwithstanding the information appearing belgou should be aware that our officers have afjtedorfeit their equity compensation awards (and
profits derived therefrom) if they compete witharsengage in other activity harmful to our inteseshile employed with us or within 18 months after
termination. Certain other compensation might éls@ecoverable by us under certain circumstandestafmination of employment. See “Compensation
Discussion and Analysis — Forfeiture of Awards” foore information.

Payments Made Upon All Terminations . Regardless of the manner in which our employeegleyment terminates prior to a change of contiayt
are entitled to receive amounts earned during teain of employment (subject to the potential fiithes discussed above). With respect to each such
terminated employee, such amounts include his or he

. salary and unused vacation pay through the daerwfination, payable immediately in ce

. restricted stock that has ves

. benefits accrued and vested under our qualifiedsapplemental defined benefit pension plans, pétyouts generally occurring at early or
normal retirement ag

. benefits held in our qualified and supplementdirged contribution plans, which the employee isggally free to receive at the time of
termination

. rights to continued health care benefits to themxtequired by lawn
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Payments Made Upon Voluntary or Involuntary Terminations . In addition to benefits described under the headimgediately above, employees
terminated by us without cause prior to a changmoafrol are also entitled to:

. exercise all vested options within 190 days oftérenination datt
. keep all unvested restricted stock if approved lny@ompensation Committe
. if the termination qualifies as a layoff, (i) ash severance payment in the amount described t@derpensation Discussion and Analysis —

Other Benefit— Reduction in Force Benefi” (ii) receipt of their annual target incentive bonaisd (iii) out placement assistance ben

None of the benefits listed immediately above argaple if the employee resigns or is terminatedcéarse, except that resigning employees are ehtdl
exercise their vested options within 190 days angdleyees terminated for cause could request thepeasation Committee to accelerate their unvested
restricted stock (which is unlikely to be granted).

Payments Made Upon Retirement . Employees who retire in conformity with our retirem policies are entitled to:

. exercise all of their options, all of which accekerupon retirement, within three years of theireeent date

. keep all unvested restricted stock if approved lny@ompensation Committee (which traditionally bagn grantec

. payment of their annual target incentive bo

. pos-retirement life, health and welfare bene

. all of the benefits described under the hea- Payments Made Upon All Terminatic’

Payments Made Upon Death or Disability . Upon death or disability, officers (or their esttare entitled to (without duplication of benéfits

. payments under our disability or life insurancenglaas applicabl

. exercise all of their options, all of which accelerupon death or disability, within two ye

. keep all of their restricted stock, whether vesiednvestec

. payment of their annual target incentive bo

. continued rights to receive (i) life, health amelfare benefits at early or normal retirement agéehe event of disabilities of employees with ten

years of prior service, or (ii) health and welfenefits payable to surviving eligible dependeimishe event of death of employees meeting
certain age and service requireme

. all of the benefits described under the headirgdyments Made Upon All TerminationgXcept that (i) upon death benefits under ourestén
plans are generally available only to survivingusges and (i) benefits payable to mentally disalelegbloyees under our nonqualified defined
benefit retirement plans may be paid prior to estient age
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Payments Made Upon a Change of Control . We have entered into agreements that entitle ebohraxecutive officers who are terminated without
cause or resigns under certain specified circuraetawithin three years of any change in contraCehturyTel to (i) receive a lump sum cash severance
payment equal to three times the sum of such effi@nual salary and bonus, (ii) receive suckceffs currently pending bonus, (iii) receive anglsu
additional tax gross-up cash payments as may bessary to compensate him or her for any federasexaxes, penalties or interest imposed upon
contingent change in control payments and (iv) ionet to receive certain welfare benefits for thyears.

Under the above-referenced agreements, a gehncontrol” of CenturyTel would be deemed towagpon (i) any person (as defined in the Secugritie
Exchange Act of 1934) becoming the beneficial owofe830% or more of the outstanding Common Share&9086 or more of combined voting power of
our voting securities, (ii) a majority of our ditecs being replaced, (iii) consummation of certai@rgers, substantial asset sales or similar busines
combinations, or (iv) approval by the shareholddra liquidation or dissolution of CenturyTel.

All of the above-referenced agreements prothéebenefits described above if the officer resigiith “good reason,” which we describe further end
the heading “Compensation Discussion and Analysifiange-in-Control Arrangements.” Except as othsevdescribed under such heading, all of the
change in control agreements for our executivesastantially similar. We have filed forms of taegyreements with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

In the event of a change in control of Cenfigly our benefit plans provide, among other thirigat all restrictions on outstanding restricteztktwill
lapse and all outstanding stock options will becdutly exercisable. In addition, participants ireteupplemental executive retirement plan and the
supplemental defined benefit plan whose serviterminated within three years of the change inrantill receive a cash payment equal to the presen
value of their plan benefits (after providing agel &ervice credits of up to three years), deterthineaccordance with actuarial assumptions spetifie
the plan. Upon the earlier of the date that a chafgontrol transaction is completed, announcegroposed, post-retirement life, health and welfare
benefits will vest with respect to (i) former empées receiving such benefits on such date anduiient employees who have completed ten years of
service and attained age 53 as of such date.

Estimated Potential Termination Payments. The table below provides estimates of the valugayinents and benefits that would become payable if
the named officers were terminated in the mannscritzed below, in each case based on the assungsgmmibed in the table’s notes.
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Potential Termination Payments

Type of Termination of Employment®)

Involuntary
Type of Termination Termination
Termination Without Upon a Change
Name Payment®) Cause® Disability Death of Control 4

Glen F. Post, 1) Annual Bonus $ 1,358,501 $ 1,358,501 $ 1,358,50! $ 1,358,50!
Equity Awards® — 8,567,97. 8,567,97. 8,567,97.

Pension and Welfai(?) 10,00( — — 8,718,75:

Cash Severanc®) 1,000,001 — — 10,975,01

$ 2,368,50! $ 9,926,47. $ 9,926,47: $ 29,620,24

Karen A. Pucket Annual Bonus $ 715,09( $ 715,09( $ 715,09( $ 715,09(
Equity Awards(®) — 3,403,70! 3,403,70: 3,403,70:

Pension and Welfai(") 10,00( — — 2,816,55!

Cash Severanc®) 132,63¢ — — 5,787,60!

$ 857,72¢ $ 4,118,79 $ 4,118,79 $ 12,722,95

R. Stewart Ewing, J©) Annual Bonus $ 524,90« $ 524,90: $ 524,90: $ 524,90:
Equity Awards®) — 2,831,72 2,831,72! 2,831,72!

Pension and Welfai(”) 10,00( — — 4,424 ,38:

Cash Severanc®) 562,53t — — 5,527,71!

$ 1,097,44 $ 3,356,622 $ 3,356,62: $ 13,308,72.

Michael A. Maslowsk Annual Bonus $ 287,07¢ $ 287,07¢ $ 287,07¢ $ 287,07¢
Equity Awards® — 1,854,91! 1,854,91! 1,854,91!

Pension and Welfai(?) 10,00( — — 1,761,47

Cash Severanc® 79,87 — — 2,997,733

$ 376,95 $ 2,141,999 $ 2,141,99 $ 6,901,20!

David D. Cole Annual Bonus $ 376,90( $ 376,90( $ 376,90( $ 376,90(
Equity Awards(®) — 1,854,91! 1,854,91! 1,854,91!

Pension and Welfai(") 10,00( — — 1,800,01:

Cash Severand® 403,93¢ — — 1,986,43;

$ 790,83t $ 2,231,81 $ 2,231,81 $ 6,018,26-

Stacey W. Gof Annual Bonus $ 362,68 $ 362,68 $ 362,68 $ 362,68
Equity Awards® — 1,854,91: 1,854,91! 1,854,91!

Pension and Welfail(™ 10,00( — — 1,102,85!

Cash Severanc®) 97,42 — — 3,210,99!

$ 470,10¢ $ 2,217,60. $ 2,217,60: $ 6,531,45

(1) All data in the table reflects estimatesh# value of payments and benefits assuming the dhafffieer was terminated on December 31, 2007. The
closing price of the Common Shares on such dateddagi6. The table reflects only estimates of artoaarned or payable through or at such date.
Actual amounts can be determined only at the tifrtermination. No information is provided in théota for retirement, because none of the named
officers were eligible for early or normal retiremi@t December 31, 2007 under our key executivepemsation programs, except for Glen F. Post,
Il and R. Stewart Ewing, Jr. (See footnotes 5 @rd this table.) If a named officer voluntarilysigns or is terminated with cause, he or she will n
be entitled to any special or accelerated benddfitswill be entitled to receive various payoutdehefits that vested before the termination dete
table reflects potential payments based upon aigdiydisability; additional benefits may be payaisi¢he event of a mental disabilit
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As further described above, upon terminaibemployment, the named officers may become entiib receive certain special, accelerated or
enhanced benefits, including the right to receiagnpent of their annual cash incentive bonus, aelacation of the vesting of their outstanding
equity awards, current or enhanced pension andareeifenefits, or cash severance payments. Thedabliades (i) payments or benefits made u
broad-based plans or arrangements generally alailalall salaried full-time employees and (ii) béts, awards or amounts that the officer was
entitled to receive prior to termination of emplaogmb.

The information in this column assumes tHecef's termination qualifies as a layoff under @eyTel's reduction in force policies. The amounts
listed in this column will not be payable if thefioér voluntarily resigns or is terminated for caL

The information in this column assumes thmed officer became entitled at December 31, 20@Ad¢denefits described above under “- Payments
Made Upon a Change of ControA% described further under such heading, somesasitivenefits will accrue immediately upon a chasfgmntrol,
regardless of whether the offi’'s employment terminate

In the event Mr. Post had elected to retadyeon December 31, 2007, he or his designeesdimaNe been entitled to (i) lifetime annuity paynsen
of approximately $636,250 per year, (ii) paymenhisf2007 bonus in the amount of $1,358,500, 4iijelerated vesting of his stock options and,
assuming the Compensation Committee approves siicin gaccelerated vesting of his restricted si@akh an aggregate value of $8,567,971
determined in the manner described in footnota®d, (iv) pos-retirement health, life and welfare benefits (valae $27,000)

The information in this row (i) reflects thecremental benefit to the named officer arising @fithe accelerated vesting of his or her stodioos
and restricted stock caused by the terminationmgdleyment, based upon the intrinsic method of védma and (ii) assumes that the Compensation
Committee will not approve the acceleration of tlaened office’s restricted stock in the event of an involuntamrtination.

The information in this row reflects only theeremental benefits that accrue upon an evetdrafination, and excludes benefits that were vested
December 31, 2007. For information on the presahtesof the named officers’ accumulated benefiemmur defined benefit pension plans, see “-
Pension Benefits,” and for information on the agate balances of the named officers’ non-qualifieferred compensation, see “- Deferred
Compensation.” As indicated above, the named aoffiaguld also be entitled to receive a distributadrhis or her 401(k) benefits and various other
broac-based benefit:

The information in this row (i) includes, ine case of payments made in connection with teatizins following a change of control, payments to
compensate the recipient for any federal excisesgpenalties or interest payable as a resultceivig change of control benefits (which in all
cases approximated or exceeded the amount of fiesewerance payment included among such chargmwbl benefits), and (ii) excludes, in the
case of disability or death, payments made by arste companie:

In the event Mr. Ewing had elected to retéegly on December 31, 2007, he or his designeesMave been entitled to (i) lifetime annuity
payments of approximately $208,500 per year, @yrpent of his 2007 bonus in the amount of $524,@0%accelerated vesting of his stock optit
and, assuming the Compensation Committee appravésastion, accelerated vesting of his restrictedks(with an aggregate value of $2,831,720
determined in the manner described in footnotasd, (iv) pos-retirement health, life and welfare benefits (valag $52,000)
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Overview . The table and the discussion below summarizesvm@wompensated our outside directors in 2007.

2007 Compensation of Outside Directors

Fees
Earned
or
Paid in Stock All Other
Name Cash Awards @) Compensation® Total
William R. Boles, Jr $ 81,50( $72,22: $1,902 $155,62-
Virginia Boulet 98,00( 72,22 1,28i 171,50¢
Calvin Czeschir 90,50( 72,22 1,28 164,00¢
James B. Gardn¢ 116,00( 72,22 1,28i 189,50¢
W. Bruce Hanks 108,50( 72,22: 4,667 185,38¢
Gregory J. McCra' 84,00( 72,22 1,28i 157,50¢
C. G. Melville, Jr. 107,50( 72,22 1,28 181,00¢
Fred R. Nichols 93,50( 72,22 1,28i 167,00¢
Harvey P. Perr 180,50( 72,22 4,34 257,06¢
Jim D. Reppont 81,50( 72,22: 1,287 155,00¢
Joseph R. Zimme 90,00( 72,22 1,28 163,50¢

(1) The amounts shown in this column reflect the dadlaount recognized for financial statement repgrpinrposes with respect to 2007 in accord:
with SFAS 123(R) relating to grants of restrictéack on May 13, 2005, May 12, 2006 and May 11, 200%se grants vest over three-year periods.
The fair value of each award granted on May 11,7208s approximately $100,000, computed in accorlavith SFAS 123(R). As of
December 31, 2007, each of the above-listed diretteld 4,988 shares of restricted stock and thewimg directors held the following number of
options: Mr. Hank— 46,000 options; Mr. Gardn— 16,000 options; and Mr. Zimm— 13,667 options

(2) Represents (i) for all directors, $1,287 widends paid on their unvested restricted stookl, @) for Messrs. Boles, Hanks and Perry, $615380
and $3,060, respectively, of reimbursements forcthst of an annual physical examination and relacel expenses. For information on
transactions with one of our directors, “Related Party Transactio”

Cash and Stock Payments . Each director who is not employed by us (whichrafer to as outside directors or non-managemeattdirs) is paid an
annual fee of $50,000 plus $2,000 for attendindneagular board meeting, $2,500 for attending epeftial board meeting and each day of the Board’s
annual planning session, and $1,500 for attendich eneeting of a board committee. Outside direatdrs attend a director education program are
credited with attending an extra special board mggand are reimbursed for their related expenses)

Currently the Vice Chairman of the Board isgdpsupplemental board fees at the rate of $100p@0¢ear. The Vice Chairman’s duties include
(i) assisting the Chairman by facilitating commuations among the directors and monitoring the aies/of the
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Board’s committees, (ii) serving at the Chairnmsaréquest on the board of any company in which awe lan investment, (iii) monitoring our strategaesl
(iv) performing certain executive succession fumisi.

Currently (i) the chair of the Audit Committeepaid supplemental board fees at the rate ofd8®0per year and (ii) the chair of the Compensatio
Committee, the chair of the Nominating Committed #re chair of the Risk Evaluation Committee arehgaaid supplemental board fees at the rate of
$10,000 per year.

During 2007 the Compensation Committee autledrieach outside director to receive 2,126 shdrBestricted Stock (which were valued under the
2005 Directors Stock Plan at $100,000 based oavkeage closing price of the Common Shares duhied b trading day period preceding our 2007
annual meeting). In early 2008, the Compensatiomi@iitee authorized a similar grant payable to eadkide director serving on the day after our 2008
annual meeting. All of these shares of RestrictedISwill vest over a three-year period, and thtaltealue of these awards will generally be alledat
over these three-year vesting periods (as expldimgiger in the footnotes to the table above).

Other Benefits. Each outside director is entitled to be reimbur@etbr expenses incurred in attending board andro@itee meetings, (i) for expens
incurred in attending director education programd @ii) up to $5,000 per year for the cost of am@aal physical examination, plus related travelemges
and the estimated income taxes incurred by thetdirén connection with receiving these medicatmeiirsement payments.

Our bylaws require us to indemnify our direstand officers to the fullest extent permittedény so that they will be free from undue conceroub
personal liability in connection with their serviteCenturyTel. We have signed agreements with eatiose individuals contractually obligating os t
provide these indemnification rights. We also pdevour directors with customary directors and efficliability insurance.

Directors may use our aircraft in connectiathwCenturyTel-related business. However, underaiaraft usage policy, neither directors nor their
families may use our aircraft for personal tripscgpt on terms generally available to all of ouptsgees in connection with a medical emergency). We
have arranged a charter service that our outsiéetdrs can use at their cost for their personatavel needs. Although none of our directors ubésl
charter service during 2005 or 2006, one of ourdlars, Virginia Boulet, used this service at hestdor one round-trip in 2007.

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The graph below compares the cumulative sitateholder return on the Common Shares with theutative total return of the S&P 500 Index and
S&P Integrated Telecommunications Index for thequefrom December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2008ath case assuming (i) the investment of
on January 1, 2003 at closing prices on Decembe2@®12, and (ii) reinvestment of dividends.
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CenturyTel, Inc $100.0( $111.7¢ $122.4¢ $115.2¢ $152.7¢ $145.87
S&P 500 Inde» 100.0( 128.6% 142.6" 149.6¢ 173.2¢ 182.7¢
S&P Telecom Inde®) 100.0( 99.8¢ 113.5¢ 108.4: 162.6! 192.0¢

(1) The S&P Integrated Telecommunication Servioeex consists of AT&T Inc., CenturyTel, Inc., 2éns Communications Company, Embarqg
Corporation, Qwest Communications International,INerizon Communications Inc. and Windstream Caaion. The index is publicly availabl

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Recent Transactions

In exchange for legal services rendered tim @907, we paid fees of $268,754 to The Boles Eawm, a law firm owned by William R. Boles, Jr.,dan
$4,611 to a separate law firm owned by his sisfier Boles, a director of CenturyTel since 1992Pigsident and a director and practicing attornek wi
the Boles Law Firm, which has provided legal sergito us since 1968.

Review Procedures

Early each year, our director of internal awltributes to the audit committee a written mefisting our payments to vendors, including & &g
transactions with our

52




Table of Contents

directors, officers or employees. This annual repermits the independent directors to assess iandgs$ our related party transactions. Althougthesee
no formal written pre-approval procedure governigigted party transactions, our CEO typically sesgksroval of the board before engaging in any new
related party transaction involving significant suor risks.

SECTION 16(A) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLI ANCE

The Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requingsexecutive officers and directors, among othterée certain beneficial ownership reports wittet
Securities and Exchange Commission. In March 268gh executive officer filed late one report in mection with the cancellation of shares to pay
withholding taxes upon the vesting of previouslgsied restricted stock.

OTHER MATTERS

Quorum and Voting of Proxies

The presence, in person or by proxy, of a nitgjof the total voting power of the Voting Shaliesiecessary to constitute a quorum to organige th
Annual Meeting. Shareholders voting or abstainnognf voting on any issue will be counted as prefamnpurposes of constituting a quorum to organize
the Annual Meeting.

If a quorum to organize the Annual Meetingrissent, directors will be elected by pluralityeraind, as such, withholding authority to vote ia th
election of directors will not affect whether theminees named herein are elected. Assuming a qumrenganize the Annual Meeting is present, the
affirmative vote of the holders of a majority o€tkioting power present or represented at the Anvieglting will be required to ratify the appointmerfit
KPMG as our independent auditor for 2008 and ta@mpthe shareholder proposal described furthevel®hares as to which the proxy holders have
been instructed to abstain from voting will be teshunder the Company’s bylaws as not being premempresented for purposes of such vote, and will
therefore not affect the outcome of the vote withpect to either of these matters.

Under the rules of the New York Stock Excharmekers who hold shares in street name for custemmay, subject to certain exceptions, vote iir the
discretion on matters when they have not receiwihg instructions from beneficial owners. Undegda rules, brokers who do not receive such
instructions will be entitled to vote in their distion with respect to the election of directors &éme ratification of the appointment of the indegent
auditor. If brokers who do not receive voting instions do not exercise discretionary voting pogeetbroker non-vote”) with respect to any mattebto
considered at the Annual Meeting, shares that ereated will be treated as present for purpose=aktituting a quorum to organize the Annual Megti
but not present or cast with respect to considesiran matter. Because the election of directors imeispproved by plurality vote and ratificationtiog
independent auditor and approval of the shareh@dggosal must be approved by a majority of théngopower present or represented at the Annual
Meeting, broker non-votes with respect to theseemawill not affect the outcome of the voting.
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Valid voting instructions or properly execufgaxies received in time for the Annual Meetindl e voted at the Annual Meeting. You may revoke
your instructions or proxy at any time before ygates are cast by filing with our Secretary a \rittevocation or by duly submitting voting instioos
or an executed proxy at a later date, or by attentlie Annual Meeting and voting in person. Unles®ked, all validly submitted voting instructioos
properly executed proxies will be voted as spedifiad, if no specifications are made, will be vatethvor of the nominees, in favor of the ratitica of
the independent auditor, and against the sharehptdposal.

Management has not timely received any ndtiaea shareholder desires to present any mattacfmn at the Annual Meeting in accordance witih o
bylaws (which are described below) other than tiegeholder proposal described above, and is otkerwnaware of any matter for action by shareho
at the Annual Meeting other than those mattersiipddn the Notice of the Meeting. Our proxy anoting instruction cards, however, will confer
discretionary voting authority with respect to aier matter that may properly come before the AhMeeting. It is the intention of the persons ndme
therein to vote in accordance with their best judgtron any such matter.

Shareholder Nominations and Proposals

In order to be eligible for inclusion in oD@ proxy materials pursuant to the federal praigs, any shareholder proposal to take actionct su
meeting must be received at our principal execudffiees by November 20, 2008, and must comply ajpplicable federal proxy rules. In addition, our
bylaws require shareholders to furnish timely werithotice of their intent to nominate a directobong any other matter before a shareholders’ mget
whether or not they wish to include their propasadur proxy materials. In general, notice mustdxeived by our Secretary between November 9, 2008
and February 7, 2009 and must contain specifiegrimftion concerning, among other things, the matebe brought before such meeting and conce
the shareholder proposing such matters. (If the dithe 2009 annual meeting is more than 30 dasleeor later than May 8, 2009, notice must be
received by our Secretary within 15 days of théieraof the date on which notice of such meetinfirit mailed to shareholders or public disclosof¢he
meeting date is made.) For additional informatiartttese procedures, see “Corporate Governance eetdirNomination Process.”

Annual Financial Report

Appendix Aincludes our Annual Financial Report, which is epted from portions of our Annual Report on FormKL€or the year ended
December 31, 2007 that we filed with the Securitied Exchange Commission on February 29, 2008. Xfyect to mail our summary annual report for
the year ended December 31, 2007 on or about teendamail this proxy statement to our shareholdéts have enclosed with these materials as a
separate booklet our 2007 Review and Chairman’ssitgs Neither of these documents is a part of mxypsoliciting materials.

In connection with filing our Form 10-K repdadr the year ended December 31, 2007, our chie€¢etve officer and chief financial officer madeth
certifications regarding our financial disclosureguired under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and
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the regulations promulgated thereunder. In additloming 2007 our chief executive officer certifiedthe New York Stock Exchange that he was una
of any violation by us of the New York Stock Exchyals corporate governance listing standards.

You may obtain a copy of our Form 10-K report withaut charge by writing to Stacey W. Goff, SecretaryCenturyTel, Inc., 100 CenturyTel
Drive, Monroe, LA 71203, or by visiting our websiteat www.centurytel.com.

You may view online this proxy statement aeldted materials at www.proxydocs.comlctl

By Order of the Board of Directors

Stacey W. Goff
Dated: March 20, 200t Secretary
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INDEX TO FINANCIAL ANNUAL REPORT
December 31, 2007

The materials included in this Appendix A are egtedt from Items 5, 6, 7 and 8 of our Annual ReparForm 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2007, which we filed with the Securities and Exgfea@ommission on February 29, 2008. Please seEdha 10-K for additional information about our
business and operations.

€
Information on Our Trading Price and Divider A-3
Selected Financial Da A-4
Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operatior A-5
Financial Statements and Supplementary C

Report of Managemel A-3C
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfiing on Consolidated Financial Stateme A-32
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfiimgn on the Effectiveness A-33
of CenturyTe's Internal Control Over Financial Reporti
Consolidated Statements of Inco A-35
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Inc A-36
Consolidated Balance She A-37
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flc A-38
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity A-39
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemel A-4C
Consolidated Quarterly Income Statement Informa A-73

* All references t¢“Notes” in this Appendix Arefer to these Note
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INFORMATION ON OUR TRADING PRICE AND DIVIDENDS

Our common stock is listed on the New YorkcRt&xchange and is traded under the symbol CTL.félawing table sets forth the high and low sales
prices, along with the quarterly dividends, fortea€ the quarters indicated.

Sales price Dividend per
High Low common shar
2007:
First quartel $46.8( 42.6¢€ .065(
Second quarte $49.9¢ 45.1¢ .065(
Third quartel $49.91 41.1( .065(
Fourth quarte $46.9( 39.91 .065(
2006:
First quartel $39.9( 32.5¢ .062¢
Second quarte $40.0( 34.7¢ .062¢
Third quartel $40.1¢ 35.3¢ .062¢
Fourth quarte $44.11 39.3¢ .062¢

Common stock dividends during 2007 and 2006 weid each quarter. As of February 15, 2008ethare approximately 3,800 stockholders of re
of our common stock.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents certain selectaasolidated financial data as of and for eaclthefyiears ended in the five-year period ended
December 31, 2007:

Selected Income Statement Data

Year ended December &

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Dollars, except per share amounts, and sharesssgu in thousand
Operating revenue $2,656,24. 2,447,73 2,479,25 2,407,37. 2,367,61
Operating incomu $ 793,07¢ 665,53t 736,40: 753,95: 750,39¢
Net income $ 418,37( 370,02° 334,47¢ 337,24« 344,70
Basic earnings per sha $ 3.82 3.17 2.58 2.4k 2.4C
Diluted earnings per sha $ 3.72 3.07 2.4¢ 2.41 2.3
Dividends per common sha $ .2€ .25 .24 .23 .22
Average basic shares outstand 109,36( 116,67: 130,84 137,21 143,58
Average diluted shares outstand 113,09 122,22¢ 136,08 142,14+ 148,77¢
Selected Balance Sheet Data
December 31
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands

Net property, plant and equipme $3,108,37! 3,109,27 3,304,48: 3,341,40: 3,455,48.
Goodwill $4,010,91 3,431,13 3,432,64 3,433,86- 3,425,00.
Total asset $8,184,55. 7,441,00 7,762,70 7,796,95. 7,895,85.
Long-term debr $2,734,35 2,412,85: 2,376,07! 2,762,01 3,109,30:
Stockholder’ equity $3,409,20! 3,190,95. 3,617,27. 3,409,76! 3,478,511

The following table presents certain selectaasolidated operating data as of the followingedat

December 31

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Telephone access lines (1) 2,135,001 2,094,001 2,214,001 2,314,001 2,376,00!
High-speed Internet customers 555,00( 369,00( 249,00( 143,00( 83,00(

(1) In connection with our Madison River acquditin April 2007, we acquired approximately 164)G@lephone access lines and 57,000 high-speed
Internet customer:

(2) Excluding adjustments during 2006 to refi@cthe removal of test lines, (ii) database cosi@r and clean-up and (iii) the sale of our Arizona
properties, access line losses for 2006 were appataly 107,000
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

CenturyTel, Inc., together with its subsidésriis an integrated communications company engagedrily in providing an array of communications
services, including local and long distance volngrnet access and broadband services, to cussam2b states. We currently derive our revenuas fr
providing (i) local exchange and long distance ga@ervices, (ii) network access services, (iijpdarvices, which includes both high-speed (“D Sl
dial-up Internet services, as well as special accespiavate line services, (iv) fiber transport, cortifpee local exchange and security monitoring seeg
and (v) other related services.

On April 30, 2007, we acquired all of the datgling stock of Madison River Communications Cd¢tpladison River”). See Note 2 for additional
information. We have reflected the results of ofilens of the Madison River properties in our coidated results of operations beginning May 1, 2007.
On June 30, 2005, we acquired fiber assets in tfopaitan markets from KMC Telecom Holdings, If&MC") for approximately $75.5 million cash
and have reflected the results of operations of KiklGur consolidated results of operations begigdiualy 1, 2005.

During 2007, we recognized approximately $48illion of network access revenues in connectidth the settlement of a dispute with a carrier and
approximately $42.2 million of revenues in connetwith the lapse of a regulatory monitoring perfoflwhich approximately $25.4 million is reflected
in network access revenues and $16.8 million iectfd in data revenues). Neither of these favereblenue items in 2007 are expected to reocdinein
future.

Effective January 1, 2007, we changed outicglahip with our provider of satellite televisigprvice from a revenue sharing arrangement to ancagy
relationship and, in connection therewith, we reediin the second quarter of 2007 a non-recuremmbursement of $5.9 million, of which $4.1 million
was reflected as a reduction of cost of servicdsdwwe previously incurred as subscriber acquisitiosts) and the remainder was reflected as resenu
This change has also resulted in us recognizingiaecurring revenues and lower recurring operativgjs compared to our prior arrangement.

In September 2007, we announced a reducti@uiofvorkforce to be completed by mid-2008 of
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approximately 200 jobs and, in connection therewittburred a net pre-tax charge of approximately $fillion (consisting of a $2.7 million charge to
operating expenses, net of a $527,000 favorabkntey impact related to such expenses as allowedghrour rate-making process) for severance and
related costs. On March 1 and August 31, 2006, mm@anced workforce reductions involving an aggregditapproximately 400 jobs and, in connection
therewith, incurred an aggregate net pre-tax chafg@proximately $7.5 million (consisting of a 9nillion charge to operating expenses, net of a

$1.9 million favorable revenue impact related totsaxpenses as allowed through our rate-makingege)dor severance and related costs. See Note 8 fo
additional information.

In the fourth quarter of 2007, we recorded.&.6 million pre-tax impairment charge in ordemtote-down the value of certain long-lived assets i
certain of our CLEC markets to their estimatedizasle value. The estimated realizable value wasrohéned based on current proposals received during
our sales process of such properties.

In the third quarter of 2007, we recorded a-time pre-tax gain of approximately $10.4 milli@iated to the sale of our interest in a real estat
partnership. In the second quarter of 2006, wertzba one-time pre-tax gain of approximately $& Iiillion upon redemption of our investment in the
stock of the Rural Telephone Bank (“RTB”). Subsetlye in the fourth quarter of 2007, upon finaltdisution of the remaining proceeds from the RTB
dissolution, we recorded a pre-tax gain of appraxety $5.2 million. See Note 15 for additional infation.

Our net income for 2007 was $418.4 millionpngared to $370.0 million during 2006 and $334.3iarilduring 2005. Diluted earnings per share for
2007 was $3.72 compared to $3.07 in 2006 and $8.2005. The number of average diluted sharesand#tg declined 7.5% in 2007 and 10.2% in 2006
primarily due to our share repurchases during H fhree years.

Year ended December & 2007 2006 2005
(Dollars, except per share amounts, and sharé®irsands

Operating incom: $ 793,07¢ 665,53¢ 736,40!
Interest expens (212,90¢) (195,95 (201,80)
Other income (expens 38,77( 121,56¢ 3,16¢
Income tax expens (200,579 (221,12) (203,29)
Net income $ 418,37( 370,02° 334,47¢
Basic earnings per shg $ 3.82 3.17 2.5E
Diluted earnings per sha $ 3.7z 3.07 2.4¢
Average basic shares outstand 109,36( 116,67: 130,84:
Average diluted shares outstand 113,09¢ 122,22¢ 136,08:
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Operating income increased $127.5 million®2 as a $208.5 million increase in operating reesrwas partially offset by an $81.0 million ingea
in operating expenses. Operating income decrea&&® #illion in 2006 due to a $31.5 million decreas operating revenues and a $39.3 million in@a
in operating expenses.

In addition to historical information, this managent’s discussion and analysis includes certain fodviooking statements that are based on current
expectations only, and are subject to a numbersfy uncertainties and assumptions, many of whietbeyond our control. Actual events and results
may differ materially from those anticipated, estied or projected if one or more of these risksincertainties materialize, or if underlying assuiops
prove incorrect. Factors that could affect actuasults include but are not limited to: the timisggccess and overall effects of competition fromdz
variety of competitive providers; the risks inhergnrapid technological change; the effects of oimg changes in the regulation of the communication
industry; our ability to effectively manage our ergion opportunities, including successfully inggrg newly-acquired businesses into our operations
and retaining and hiring key personnel; possiblamfes in the demand for, or pricing of, our produahd services; our ability to successfully introelu
new product or service offerings on a timely andteffective basis; our continued access to creditkets on favorable terms; our ability to collectr
receivables from financially troubled communicasa@ompanies; our ability to successfully negoti@ikective bargaining agreements on reasonable
terms without work stoppages; the effects of agdvessather; other risks referenced from time to timghis report or other of our filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission; and the efféct®re general factors such as changes in inteegss, in tax rates, in accounting policies or
practices, in operating, medical or administratis@sts, in general market, labor or economic cowdii, or in legislation, regulation or public polic
These and other uncertainties related to our bussrare described in greater detail in Item 1A af Aanual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007. You should be aware that neterfamay emerge from time to time and it is nospme for us to identify all such factors nor cae
predict the impact of each such factor on the bessror the extent to which any one or more faattag cause actual results to differ from those oifld
in any forward-looking statements. You are furtbautioned not to place undue reliance on thesedoawooking statements, which speak only as of the
date of our above-referenced Form 10-K . We undtertzo obligation to update any of our forward-laukistatements for any reason.
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Operating Revenues

Year ended December & 2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Voice $ 889,96( 871,76 902,51(
Network acces 941,50¢ 878,70:. 959,83
Data 460,75! 351,49! 318,77(
Fiber transport and CLE 159,31° 149,08t 115,45:
Other 204,70: 196,67¢ 182,68(
Operating revenue $2,656,24. 2,447,733 2,479,25;

During 2007 and 2005, we recognized revenfiapproximately $42.2 million and $35.9 million spectively, related to the expiration of regulatory
monitoring periods. Of the $42.2 million recognizad®007, approximately $25.4 million is reflectednetwork access revenues and $16.8 million is
reflected in data revenues. Of the $35.9 milliccognized in 2005, approximately $24.5 million ifleeted in network access revenues and approxignatel
$11.4 million is reflected in data revenues. Iniadd, in 2007 we recognized approximately $49.0ion of revenues related to the settlement ofspdie
with a carrier. We do not expect this level of feaklle revenue settlements to reoccur in the future.

Revenues from voice mail services previousflected in “other” revenues have been reclasstfietvoice” revenues for all periods presented.

Voice revenuedle derive voice revenues by providing local excleargephone services and retail long distance @ss\to customers in our service
areas. The $18.2 million (2.1%) increase in vo@eenues in 2007 is primarily due to $43.3 millidrevenues attributable to the Madison River
properties acquired April 30, 2007. Such increaae partially offset by (i) a $20.7 million decreakee to a 5.2% decline in the average number afsacc
lines (normalized for acquisitions, dispositionsl gmeviously-disclosed adjustments made during P@@6 (ii) a $6.0 million decline as a result of a
decrease in revenues associated with extended @tz plans.

The $30.7 million (3.4%) decrease in voiceerayes in 2006 is primarily due to (i) a $22.3 roillidecrease due a 4.8% decline in the average mwof
access lines served and (ii) a $26.1 million dechs a result of a decrease in minutes of usetémdgd area calling plans in certain areas. Suctedses
were partially offset by (i) a $12.6 million incigain long distance revenues primarily attributablan increase in the number of long distanceslared
increased long distance minutes of use, both oflwhiere partially offset by a decline in the averagte we charged our long distance customers, and
(i) a $9.9 million increase due to providing custealling features to more customers.
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Normalized for the adjustments mentioned abateess lines declined 119,700 (5.7%) during 2@0@pared to a decline of 107,000 (4.8%) during
2006. We believe the decline in the number of actimes during 2007 and 2006 is primarily due ® displacement of traditional wireline telephone
services by other competitive services. Based omplanned results for recent sales and retentiibiatives, we are targeting our access line lodseto
between 4.5% and 6.0% in 2008.

Network access revenudde derive our network access revenues primarilgnf(d) providing services to various carriers andtomers in connection
with the use of our facilities to originate andnbémate their interstate and intrastate voice trassions and (ii) receiving universal support fumdsch
allows us to recover a portion of our costs unddefal and state cost recovery mechanisms. Ceftaiar interstate network access revenues are lmsed
tariffed access charges filed directly with the &mdl Communications Commission (“FCC”); the remaindf such revenues are derived under revenue
sharing arrangements with other local exchangeecarf‘LECs”) administered by the National Exchai@garier Association. Intrastate network access
revenues are based on tariffed access chargesMilledtate regulatory agencies or are derived urglenue sharing arrangements with other LECs.

Network access revenues increased $62.8 mi{fidL%) in 2007 and decreased $81.1 million (8.592006 due to the following factors:

2007 2006

Increase Increase

(decrease (decrease

(Dollars in thousands

Settlement of a dispute with a carr $ 48,981 —

Acquisition of Madison Rive 33,92 —

Expiration of regulatory monitoring perior 25,40z (24,55¢)
Intrastate revenues due to decreased minutes pfleseased access rates in certain states ancergdmm state

support fund: (20,919 (19,20
Partial recovery of operating costs through revesheing arrangements with other telephone compaimterstate

access revenues and return on rate (21,31) (16,825

Recovery from the federal Universal Serv

High Cost Loop support progra 2,231 (11,63

Prior year revenue settlement agreem (2,34¢€) (6,66%)

Other, ne (3,170 (2,259

$ 62,80« (81,13¢)

In March 2006, we filed a complaint againstarier for recovery of unpaid and underpaid accéssges for calls made using the carrier’s prepaid
calling cards and calls that used Internet Protémoa portion of their transmission. The carriéged a counterclaim against us, asserting that we
improperly billed them terminating intrastate acceBarges on certain wireless roaming traffic. prilAl2007, we
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entered into a settlement agreement with the caarid received approximately $49 million cash fribvam related to the issues described above. This
amount is reflected in our 2007 results of operatias a component of “Network access” revenues.

In third quarter 2007, upon the lapse of thpliaable 2003/2004 monitoring period for certafroar tariffed billings, we recognized approximatel
$42.2 million of revenues (of which approximateB5% million is reflected in network access revenaed $16.8 million is reflected in data revenues).
Such amount represented billings from tariffs pt@duly 2004 in excess of the authorized rateetafrn that we initially recorded as a deferred itcred
pending completion of such 2003/2004 monitoringqukr

Our revenues from the Universal Service Higist@.oop Fund increased approximately $2.2 millio2007 after decreasing $11.6 million in 2006.
Such decrease in 2006 was primarily due to an &serén the nationwide average cost per loop facted by the FCC to allocate funds among all
recipients. We anticipate our 2008 revenues froerfélderal Universal Service High Cost Loop suppoogram will decrease between $14 and $17 m
compared to 2007.

In 2007 and 2006, we experienced reductiomaiirintrastate revenues of approximately $20.9oniland $19.2 million, respectively, primarily dte
a reduction in intrastate minutes (partially du¢h® displacement of minutes by wireless, electromil and other optional calling services). Wedwed
that intrastate minutes will continue to declin@008, although we cannot estimate the magnitudeicii decrease.

Data revenuesWe derive our data revenues primarily by providinternet access services (both DSL and dial-oyces) and data transmission
services over special circuits and private linestarevenues in 2007 increased $109.3 million &) dubstantially due to (i) a $66.4 million increas
DSL-related revenues due primarily to growth in tleenber of DSL customers; (ii) $34.5 million of emues contributed by Madison River and (iii)
$16.8 million of one-time revenues recorded indljoarter 2007 upon expiration of the above-deedrifegulatory monitoring period. Such increases
were partially offset by a $5.4 million decreasesjecial access revenues primarily due to certaitomers disconnecting circuits and a $5.1 million
decrease in dial-up Internet revenues due to angeici the number of dial-up customers.

Data revenues increased $32.7 million (10.B22006, substantially due to a $54.0 million irase in DSL-related revenues primarily due to growth
the number of high-speed Internet customers. Sumiease was partially offset by a decrease in year revenue settlements due to the above-dedcribe
recognition of approximately $11.4 million of rewess in third quarter 2005 upon the lapse of a eggryf monitoring period and a $4.9 million decrease
due to a reduced number of dial-up Internet custeme
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Fiber transport and CLEC Our fiber transport and CLEC revenues includenexes from our fiber transport, competitive localtenge carrier
(“CLEC™) and security monitoring businesses. Fitransport and CLEC revenues increased $10.2 mi{Bd®P6) in 2007, of which $8.7 million was due
to growth in our incumbent fiber transport businasd $4.8 million was contributed by Madison Riv@uch increases were partially offset by a
$3.5 million decrease in CLEC revenues primarilg do customer disconnects.

Fiber transport and CLEC revenues increas&®B38illion (29.1%) in 2006, of which $24.4 milliomas due to revenues from the fiber assets acquired
on June 30, 2005 from KMC and $8.5 million wasihttiable to growth in our incumbent fiber transgmusiness.

Other revenuesWe derive other revenues primarily by (i) leasiselling, installing and maintaining customer piggrtelecommunications equipment
and wiring, (ii) providing billing and collectioresvices for third parties, (iii) participating ihg publication of local directories and (iv) prowig new
service offerings, principally consisting of oumngideo and wireless reseller services. Other ragsrincreased $8.0 million (4.1%) in 2007. Such
increase was primarily due to $13.9 million of nreues contributed by Madison River. In connectiothwiceiving a ondéime reimbursement as a resul
our above-described change in our contractualioelstip with our satellite television service prei, we recorded a $1.9 million one-time increase t
revenues in 2007. The impact of the change in ttengement from a gross to a net revenue presentasulted in an $8.2 million decrease in recgrrin
revenues for the twelve months ended December(, 2ompared to 2006.

Other revenues increased $14.0 million (7.@d4)ng 2006 primarily due to a $12.1 million incsean revenues of our video and wireless reseller
offerings and a $2.5 million increase in directogyenues.

Operating Expenses

Year ended December & 2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Cost of services and products (exclusive of dept&ri and amortizatior $ 937,37 888,41 821,92¢

Selling, general and administrati 389,53 370,27: 388,98¢

Depreciation and amortizatic 536,25! 523,50t 531,93:

Operating expenst $1,863,16. 1,782,19: 1,742,84!

Cost of services and produc@ost of services and products increased $49.0ami({s.5%) in 2007 primarily due to (i) $52.5 milli@f costs incurred
by our Madison River properties; (i) a $20.9 noilliincrease in DSL-related expenses due to grawthe number of DSL customers; (iii) a $16.6 miilio
impairment charge related to certain of our CLESe&sthat we expect to sell in the near term; and(
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$7.8 million increase in expenses associated vata attachments primarily due to rate increasesh $wcreases were partially offset by (i) a $33illiom
decrease in salaries and benefits due to costsiatmbwith workforce reductions in 2006 and duéeteer incumbent employees resulting from our ré
workforce reductions and (i) a $19.7 million dease in expenses associated with our satelliteisébevservice offering due to a change in our
arrangement as mentioned above (such reductiondesla $4.1 million one-time reimbursement of costeived from the service provider in 2007 in
connection with the change in the arrangementeasribed above).

Cost of services and products increased $®8li®on (8.1%) in 2006 primarily due to (i) an $88million increase in expenses incurred by the
properties acquired from KMC; (ii) an $18.3 milliamcrease in costs associated with growth in ong Idistance business; (iii) a $14.3 million inceeas
expenses associated with our video and wirelesdieeservice offerings; (iv) an $11.5 million iease in Internet operating expenses primarily due t
growth in the number of high-speed Internet custsirend (v) $8.6 million of severance and relatests associated with our workforce reduction in&00
(see Note 8).

Selling, general and administrativBelling, general and administrative expenses ise@$19.3 million (5.2%) in 2007 primarily due ip (
$16.4 million of costs incurred by Madison Rivei) &n $8.2 million increase in salaries and besefind (jii) a $5.6 million increase in sales and
marketing expenses. Such increases were partiddgtdy (i) a $5.7 million reduction in bad debipense and (ii) a $4.3 million decrease in infoiiorat
technology expenses.

Selling, general and administrative expensesehsed $18.7 million (4.8%) in 2006 primarily doen $11.0 million decrease in marketing expera
$10.6 million reduction in information technologypenses; an $8.7 million reduction in bad debt agpgand a $5.8 million decrease in operating taxes
These decreases were partially offset by a $9.Bomiincrease in salaries and benefits and a $4llbmincreae in expenses incurred from the préiper
acquired from KMC.

Depreciation and amortizationDepreciation and amortization increased $12.Tioni(2.4%) in 2007 primarily due to $32.5 milliaf depreciation
and amortization incurred by Madison River and 4.8Inillion increase due to higher levels of plenservice. Such increases were substantially DIfg
a $31.7 million reduction in depreciation expense tb certain assets becoming fully depreciated.

Depreciation and amortization decreased $8ltbm(1.6%) in 2006, primarily due to a $25.3 liwh reduction in depreciation expense due to derta
assets becoming fully depreciated. Such decreasgartially offset by (i) a $16.6 million increadee to higher levels of plant in service and (ii) a
$3.1 million increase due to depreciation and ainatibn of the properties acquired from KMC.
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Other.For additional information regarding certain matt#rat have impacted or may impact our operatie®es,"Regulation and Competition”.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased $16.9 million (§.822007 compared to 2006. A $22.7 million incredsie to increased average debt outstanding
(primarily due to the $750 million of senior nofssued in March 2007 to fund the Madison River asitjan) was partially offset by a $5.9 million
decrease due to lower average interest rates.

Interest expense decreased $5.8 million (2i892P06 compared to 2005 as a $10.5 million desgreue primarily to a decrease in average debt
outstanding was partially offset by a $7.1 milliocrease due to higher average interest rates.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income (expense) includes the effectedfin items not directly related to our coreratiens, including gains or losses from nonopegatisset
dispositions and impairments, our share of therimedrom our 49% interest in a cellular partnershiferest income and allowance for funds used g@urin
construction. Other income (expense) was $38.8anilh 2007, $121.6 million in 2006 and $3.2 mifli; 2005. The years 2007, 2006 and 2005 were
impacted by certain charges and credits that arexpgected to occur in the future. The year 20@Tuite a non-recurring pre-tax gain of $10.4 million
related to the sale of our interest in a real egtattnership and a $5.2 million pre-tax gain ri@sylfrom the final distribution of funds from tH&TB
redemption mentioned below. Included in 2006 weeetpx gains of approximately $118.6 million (saivgtally all of which related to the redemption of
our RTB stock upon dissolution of the RTB), whichsapartially offset by pre-tax charges of approxetya$11.7 million due to the impairment of certain
non-operating investments. Included in 2005 waa §16.2 million pre-tax charge due to the impaimht# a non-operating investment; (i) a $4.8 roitli
debt extinguishment expense related to purchasidgetiring approximately $400 million of our Senibnotes; (iii) $3.2 million of non-recurring imesst
income related to the settlement of various inctemeaudits; and (iv) a $3.5 million gain from treesof a non-operating investment.

Our share of income from our 49% interest aebular partnership increased $8.7 million in 2@@mpared to 2006. Such increase was partialljtalue
favorable adjustments recorded in 2007 that redditten the unaffiliated general partner completing audited financial statements of this partnerébri
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. Pebyifmu these time periods, we had recorded ouresbhthe partnership income based on unaudited
results of operations.
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Income Tax Expense

The effective income tax rate was 32.4%, 37.486 37.8% for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectivebome tax expense was reduced by approximately
$32.7 million in 2007 due to the recognition of yicraisly unrecognized tax benefits (see below anteN@). Income tax expense was reduced by
approximately $6.4 million in 2006 due to the regian of various income tax audit issues.

Income tax expense for 2005 was increasedlBys$million as a result of increasing the valuatidlowance related to net state operating loss
carryforwards. This increase was primarily duettargyes in state income tax laws and other factbishimpacted the projections of future taxable
income. This tax expense increase was more thaetdfl (i) a reduction of state income tax rese($&4.6 million, net of federal income tax bengfit)
(i) a reduction in our composite state incomerzte due to more income being apportioned to staithslower state tax rates ($8.5 million); and)(ihe
favorable settlement of various federal incomeaadits ($1.3 million).

Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Staddd@oard issued Interpretation No. 48, “AccounfimgUncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 48"), which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in incotages recognized in financial statements. FIN 4fired us, effective January 1, 2007, to recogarm
measure tax benefits taken or expected to be takamnax return and disclose uncertainties in inedax positions. See Note 12 for additional infatiora
related to our income tax uncertainties.

In September 2006, the Financial Accountiren8ards Board issued Statement of Financial Acoogii@tandards No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements” (“SFAS 157”). SFAS 157 defines failue, establishes a framework for measuring fdirezand expands disclosures about fair value
measurements required or permitted under othenatiog pronouncements. SFAS 157 is effective fobeginning January 1, 2008. We currently do not
expect SFAS 157 to have a material adverse effeouo results of operations.

In September 2006, the Financial Accountiren8ards Board issued Statement of Financial Acaogii@tandards No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting
for Defined Benefit Plans and Other Postretiren®ans” (“SFAS 158"). SFAS 158 was effective for @ecember 31, 2006 balance sheet and required
us to recognize the overfunded or underfunded sttour defined benefit and postretirement planaraasset or liability on our balance sheet and to
recognize changes in that funded status in theipeahich the changes occur through adjustmentgiter comprehensive income (loss) and to
stockholders’ equity, reflected in accumulated ottemprehensive loss. As a result of the implentemaf SFAS 158
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on December 31, 2006, our non-current assets damtek64.7 million, our current liabilities decred$898,000, our non-current liabilities (excluding
deferred income taxes) increased approximately5$®@llion, our deferred income taxes decreased@apmrately $65.4 million and our stockholders’
equity (reflected in accumulated other comprehenkigs) decreased approximately $97.9 million. I$e 1 for additional information.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exch@ugemission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No810Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements inr€urYear Financial Statements” (“SAB 108"). SAB3l&ddresses how the effects of prior year
uncorrected misstatements should be considered ginemtifying misstatements in current year finahsiatements. SAB 108 requires companies to
quantify misstatements using both a balance shg®bach and income statement approach and to egaldreether either approach results in quantifying
an error that is material in light of the relevgofintitative and qualitative factors. We adopted8SA8 in the fourth quarter of 2006. Upon the
implementation of SAB 108, we recognized a net $8illion increase to January 1, 2006 retained easfor the cumulative effect of correcting prior
year uncorrected misstatements. See Note 1 fotianali information.

On January 1, 2003, we adopted Statementnain€ial Accounting Standards No. 143, “AccountiogAsset Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS 143"),
which addresses financial accounting and repofongegal obligations associated with the retiretmrtangible longived assets and requires that the
value of a liability for an asset retirement obtiga be recognized in the period in which it isuned and be capitalized as part of the book vafube
long-lived asset. Although we generally have nalexpligation to remove obsolete assets, depreciatites of certain assets established by regylator
authorities for our telephone operations subje@tiiement of Financial Accounting Standards No.'&A&counting for the Effects of Certain Types of
Regulation” (“SFAS 71”), have historically includedcomponent for removal costs in excess of treedlestimated salvage value. Notwithstanding the
adoption of SFAS 143, SFAS 71 requires us to castio reflect this accumulated liability for remoeasts in excess of salvage value even thougle ther
is no legal obligation to remove the assets. Tleegcfve did not adopt the provisions of SFAS 143iar telephone operations subject to SFAS 71. For
these reasons, the adoption of SFAS 143 did nat hanaterial effect on our financial statements.dtw telephone operations acquired from Verizon in
2002 (which are not subject to SFAS 71) and ouemtion-regulated operations, we have not accruiedbitity for anticipated removal costs related to
tangible long-lived assets through an adjustmeputodepreciation rates for these assets.

On March 31, 2005, the Financial Accountingrfsiards Board issued Interpretation No. 47, “Actiogrfor Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations” (“FIN 47"), an interpretation of SFABI3. FIN 47, which was effective for fiscal yeargling after December 15, 2005, clarifies that the
recognition
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and measurement provisions of SFAS 143 apply tetastirement obligations in which the timing orthud of settlement may be conditional on a future
event that may or may not be within control of émity. We identified conditional asset retiremehtigations for (i) asbestos removal in buildings,

(ii) removal of underground storage tanks, (iiiy puoperty located on public and private righfsvay and (iv) our property that is attached téep@wner
by other utilities and municipalities. Due to akaxf historical experience from which to reasonaddtimate a settlement date or range of settledsdss,
we concluded that an asset retirement obligatisn@ated with our property located on rights-of-vi@jndeterminate. We also concluded that our
conditional asset retirement obligations relatetheoremoval of asbestos, underground storage &mdk®ur property that is attached to other estitie
poles was immaterial to our financial condition aagults of operations and therefore has not besrgnized.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements are prepared in @lzoare with accounting principles that are geneiatlyepted in the United States. The preparatidhesie
financial statements requires management to makaatss and assumptions that affect the reportezliate of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
We continually evaluate our estimates and assumpficluding those related to (i) revenue recognit{ii) allowance for doubtful accounts, (iii) pgon
and postretirement benefits, (iv) intangible anagldived assets and (v) income taxes. Actual resubly differ from these estimates and assumptidies.
believe these critical accounting policies discddselow involve a higher degree of judgment or ctaxipy.

Revenue recognitionCertain of our interstate network access and @atanues are based on tariffed access chargdgifilectly with the FCC; the
remainder of such revenues is derived from revehiaging arrangements with other LECs administegeth® National Exchange Carrier Association,
with the exception of DSL-related revenues whiclievemoved from our pooled interstate tariff filiaffective July 1, 2006 and are now recognized as
revenues when billed. During 2004, we began gelyer@tognizing such interstate network access r@ggmt the authorized rate of return, unless the
actual achieved or projected rate of return wastaivan authorized.

The Telecommunications Act of 1996 allows lamechange carriers to file access tariffs on eastilined basis and, if certain criteria are meg¢nae
those tariffs lawful. Tariffs that have been “deehtenful” in effect nullify an interexchange camig ability to seek refunds should the earningsrfithe
tariffs ultimately result in earnings above thelewiized rate of return prescribed by the FCC. Qefour telephone subsidiaries file interstariffmwith
the FCC using this streamlined filing approachc8iduly 2004, we have recognized billings from tawiffs as revenue since we believe such tarifés ar
“deemed lawful”. There is no assurance that owrtutariff filings will be “deemed lawful”. For ttse billings from tariffs prior to July 2004, we ftiily
recorded as a deferred credit our earnings in exaes
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the authorized rate of return. Upon the lapse efapplicable regulatory monitoring periods, we rded approximately $42.2 million as revenue in 2007
and approximately $35.9 million as revenue in 208%.do not expect these favorable revenue settlsnt@meoccur in the future.

Allowance for doubtful accountdn evaluating the collectibility of our accoumeeivable, we assess a number of factors, induaispecific
customer’s or carrier’s ability to meet its finamlobbligations to us, the length of time the reabie has been past due and historical collectipeance.
Based on these assessments, we record both sgeuifigeneral reserves for uncollectible accoumsivable to reduce the related accounts receivable
the amount we ultimately expect to collect fromtousers and carriers. If circumstances change ar@o@ conditions worsen such that our past
collection experience is no longer relevant, we megd to increase our reserves from the levelsateftl in our accompanying consolidated balancet.shee

Pension and postretirement benefithe amounts recognized in our financial statemeziéded to pension and postretirement benefitslatermined
on an actuarial basis, which utilizes many assuwmnpgtin the calculation of such amounts. A significassumption used in determining our pension and
postretirement expense is the expected long-tetenofareturn on plan assets. For 2007 and 2006tiveed an expected long-term rate of return ampl
assets of 8.25%, which we believe reflects the ebagelong-term rates of return in the financial keds.

Another assumption used in the determinatfosuo pension and postretirement benefit plan alians is the appropriate discount rate. Our distou
rate at December 31, 2007 ranged from 6.3-6.5% eoedpto 5.75-5.80% at December 31, 2006, which elieve is the appropriate rate at which the
pension and postretirement benefits could be éffelgtsettled. Such rates were determined basealdiscounted cash flow analysis of the expectel cas
outflows of our benefit plans. A 25 basis point@ase in the assumed discount rate would increasgahcombined pension and postretirement expense
approximately $1.7 million.

Intangible and long-lived assetle are subject to testing for impairment of longetl assets under two accounting standards, StatehEmancial
Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Oth&ahgible Assets” (“SFAS 142"), and Statement afdficial Accounting Standards No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lohgred Assets” (“SFAS 144").

SFAS 142 requires goodwill recorded in bussnemmbinations to be reviewed for impairment ast@anually and requires writlowns only in perioc
in which the recorded amount of goodwill exceedsfir value. Under SFAS 142, impairment of goodisitested by comparing the fair value of the
reporting unit to its carrying value (including gbwill). Estimates of the fair value of the repogdianit are based on
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valuation models using techniques such as multipiesrnings (before interest, taxes and depreciand amortization). If the fair value of the re(pm
unit is less than the carrying value, a secondutation is required in which the implied fair valoEgoodwill is compared to its carrying valuethe
implied fair value of goodwill is less than its pang value, goodwill must be written down to iteplied fair value. We completed the required anest
of goodwill impairment (as of September 30, 2007)er SFAS 142 and determined our goodwill was mgaired as of such date.

Under SFAS 144, the carrying value of longthassets other than goodwill is reviewed for impant whenever events or circumstances indicate tha
such carrying amount cannot be recoverable by sisgethe recoverability of the carrying value thghiestimated undiscounted net cash flows expeo
be generated by the assets. If the undiscountechshtflows are less than the carrying value, grairment loss would be measured as the excesg of th
carrying value of a long-lived asset over its fafue. We recognized a $16.6 million pre-tax impaint charge in 2007 related to certain of our CLEC
assets that we expect to sell.

Income taxesWe estimate our current and deferred income taassdon our assessment of the future tax conseggiehtransactions that have been
reflected in our financial statements or applicdhlereturns. Actual income taxes paid could vaoyrf these estimates due to future changes in ind¢ax
law or the resolution of audits by federal andestaking authorities. We maintain liabilities farrecognized tax benefits for various uncertain tax
positions taken in our tax returns. These lialeifitare estimated based on our judgment of the bl@batcome of the uncertain tax positions and are
adjusted periodically based on changing facts @edmstances. Changes to the liabilities for ungmized tax benefits could materially affect operati
results in the period of change. During 2007, weased approximately $32.7 million of previouslyerognized tax benefits (including related interest
and net of federal benefit) in accordance with BBN Such benefit was recorded primarily as a resfithe favorable resolution of audits, administeat
practices and the lapse of statute of limitationedrtain jurisdictions. See Note 12 for additicinébrmation regarding our unrecognized tax besefit

For additional information on our critical aemting policies, see “Accounting Pronouncements! €Regulation and Competition — Other Matters”
below, and the footnotes to our consolidated fiferatatements included elsewhere herein.

Inflation

Historically, we have mitigated the effectdrdreased costs by recovering over time certastscapplicable to our regulated telephone operation
through the rate-making process. However, LECsaipgy over 72% of our total access lines are nowegted by state alternative regulation plans, some
of

A-18




Table of Contents

which restrict or delay our ability to recover inased costs. Additional future regulatory changelscampetitive situations may further alter oudigbto
recover increased costs in our regulated operatkursthe properties acquired from Verizon in 200Rich are regulated under price-cap regulation for
interstate purposes, price changes for certaimeveomponents are limited to the rate of inflatids operating expenses in our nonregulated lifies o
business increase as a result of inflation, wehecextent permitted by competition, attempt tawee the costs by increasing prices for our sesvared
equipment.

MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk from changéstérest rates on our long-term debt obligations. Wdve estimated our market risk using sensitivity
analysis. Market risk is defined as the potenti@rge in the fair value of a fixed-rate debt oliigadue to a hypothetical adverse change in istewes.
Fair value of long-term debt obligations is detered based on a discounted cash flow analysis, tisentgates and maturities of these obligations
compared to terms and rates currently availabthérlong-term financing markets. The results ofgbssitivity analysis used to estimate market aisk
presented below, although the actual results miégrdiom these estimates.

At December 31, 2007, the fair value of ourdderm debt was estimated to be $3.0 billion basethe overall weighted average rate of our l@rgat
debt of 6.6% and an overall weighted maturity ge8rs compared to terms and rates available ondatehin long-term financing markets. Market risk i
estimated as the potential decrease in fair valweiolong-term debt resulting from a hypothetitedrease of 66 basis points in interest ratesgeFnent
of our overall weighted average borrowing rate)t8an increase in interest rates would result pradmately a $106 million decrease in the fairnesabf
our long-term debt. As of December 31, 2007, afteing effect to interest rate swaps currently iace, approximately 83% of our long-term debt
obligations were fixed rate.

We seek to maintain a favorable mix of fixed aariable rate debt in an effort to limit interessts and cash flow volatility resulting from ciges in
rates. From time to time, we use derivative insenta to (i) lock-in or swap our exposure to chagginvariable interest rates for fixed interesesabr
(i) to swap obligations to pay fixed interest mafer variable interest rates. We have establigiwdidies and procedures for risk assessment and the
approval, reporting and monitoring of derivativetimiment activities. We do not hold or issue demeafinancial instruments for trading or speculati
purposes. We periodically review our exposure tergst rate fluctuations and implement strategieadnage the exposure.

At December 31, 2007, we had outstanding fainvalue interest rate hedges associated wittiuth&500 million aggregate principal amount ofrou
Series L senior notes, due 2012, that pay intatestixed
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rate of 7.875%. These hedges are “fixed to varfaibkerest rate swaps that effectively convert oxedi rate interest payment obligations under thesex
into obligations to pay variable rates that ramgenfthe six-month London InterBank Offered RatelBOR") plus 3.229% to the six-month LIBOR plus
3.67%, with settlement and rate reset dates ocmueach six months through the expiration of thégles in August 2012. During 2007, we realized an
average interest rate under these hedges of 8.Af% terest expense was greater than it would b&verwise been by $4.1 million during 2007 as a
result of these hedges. The aggregate fair magtae\of these hedges was $3.0 million at Decembge2®07 and is reflected both as an asset and as an
increase in our underlying long-term debt on theddeber 31, 2007 balance sheet. With respect toafablese hedges, market risk is estimated as the
potential change in the fair value of the hedgeltegy from a hypothetical 10% increase in the fardirates used to determine the fair value. A
hypothetical 10% increase in the forward rates woabult in a $9.6 million decrease in the faiueabf these hedges at December 31, 2007, and would
also increase our interest expense.

In third quarter 2007, we entered into a hetdgesaction that effectively locked-in the inteénege for the sixnonth period ended February 2008 rel
to the $500 million of Series L notes that previgusere effectively converted to variable rate sgpeirsuant to the “fixed to variable” interest raweaps
described above. This hedge did not qualify forgeedccounting treatment and therefore is adjustéd fair value each period (with a corresponding
adjustment through the income statement).

In January 2008, we terminated all of our &xgsderivatives (including those described abau&] received a net cash settlement of approximately
$20.7 million in connection therewith. See Notef@0additional information regarding the terminatiof our derivatives.

In anticipation of the issuance of Senior Nateconnection with the Madison River acquisitior entered into four cash flow hedges that effetyi
locked in the interest rate on an aggregate of $aillibn of debt. The issuance of these Senior Netas completed in late March 2007 with the issaanc
of $500 million of 6.0% Senior Notes, due 2017, 280 million of 5.5% Senior Notes, due 2013. Wekkxd in the interest rate on (i) $200 million of 10
year debt at 5.0675% and (i) $200 million of 1Gayedebt at 5.05%. In March 2007, upon settlemeth®hedges, we received an aggregate of $765,000
cash, which is being amortized as a reduction ef@st expense over the 10-year term of the debt.

During 2007, we also reviewed our exposunesks related to the assets in our investment pliot (including our pension plan assets) in cotinac
with the market volatility related to the sub-primredit market issues and other economic factdres& unfavorable economic factors did not have a
material adverse impact on the valuation of thetass our investment portfolios.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methfcanalysis presented in the computation ofvfalue
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of financial instruments. Actual values may diffesm those presented if market conditions vary frelsaumptions used in the fair value calculatiome T
analysis above incorporates only those risk expsstirat existed as of December 31, 2007.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Excluding cash used for acquisitions, we malycash provided by operations to provide for aghcneeds. Our operations have historically pravale
stable source of cash flow which has helped usmeabur long-term program of capital improvements.

Operating activitiesNet cash provided by operating activities was $illlon, $840.7 million and $967.1 million in 2002006 and 2005, respective
Our accompanying consolidated statements of casisfidentify major differences between net income aet cash provided by operating activities for
each of those years. As relief from the effectblofricane Katrina, certain of our affected subsiémwere granted a deferral from making their rieing
2005 estimated federal income and excise tax patgmenil 2006. During 2006, we made payments ofadmately $75 million to satisfy our remaining
2005 estimated payments. For additional informat@ating to our operations, see “Results of Opanat above.

Investing activitiesNet cash used in investing activities was $619/#anj $193.7 million and $483.7 million in 20070@6 and 2005, respectively.
We used $306.8 million of cash (net of approxima®0.0 million of acquired cash) to purchase MadiRiver Communications Corp. (“Madison
River”) and pay related closing costs on April 3007 (see below and Note 2 for additional informalti Cash used for acquisitions was $75.5 million i
2005 (due to the acquisition of fiber assets imiHropolitan markets from KMC). We received appnoaiely $122.8 million cash from the redemption of
our RTB stock upon dissolution of the RTB during@0See Note 15 for additional information. Capéapenditures during 2007, 2006 and 2005 were
$326.0 million, $314.1 million and $414.9 milliorespectively.

Financing activities Net cash used in financing activities was $40gillion in 2007, $780.2 million in 2006 and $49Mifllion in 2005. In late
March 2007, we publicly issued an aggregate of $7bllon of Senior Notes (see Note 5 for additiomdbrmation). The net proceeds from the issuarf
such Senior Notes aggregated approximately $741li8mand were used (along with cash on hand gt@imately $50 million of borrowings under
our commercial paper program) to (i) finance thigahpurchase price for the April 30, 2007 acqtigsi of Madison River ($322 million) and (ii) payfo
Madison River’s existing indebtedness (includingraed interest) at closing ($522 million). We intezsthe cash proceeds from the debt offering imtsho
term cash equivalents prior to the acquisition @didon River. Payments of debt were $713.0 millioB007, $82.0 million in 2006 and $693.3 million
2005.
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In accordance with previously announced stegkirchase programs, we repurchased 10.2 milliaresh(for $460.7 million), 21.4 million shares (for
$802.2 million), and 16.4 million shares (for $5%million) in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectivelyeT2006 repurchases include 14.36 million shares
repurchased (for an aggregate final adjusted prfieg@proximately $528.4 million) under accelerasbdre repurchase agreements with investment banks
(see Note 9 for additional information). We inilyeflunded purchases under these agreements prilycipeough borrowings under our $750 million cre
facility and cash on hand and subsequently refiedre credit facility borrowings through the issce of short-term commercial paper. The 2005
repurchases include 12.9 million shares repurchéee@n aggregate final price of $437.5 milliomder accelerated share repurchase agreements (see
below and Note 9 to the accompanying financiakstents for additional information).

As described further in Note 5, we calledrfedlemption on August 14, 2007, all of our $165 imillaggregate principal amount of Series K conbkati
senior debentures, subject to the right of holtienvert their debentures into shares of our comstock at a conversion price of $40.455. In béu
cash redemption, holders of approximately $149l6aniaggregate principal amount of the debentetested to convert their holdings into approximg
3.7 million shares of CenturyTel common stock. Témaining $15.4 million of outstanding debenturesewetired for cash (including premium and
accrued and unpaid interest).

In February 2005, we remarketed substantallpf our $500 million of outstanding Series Jisemotes due 2007 at an interest rate of 4.628%. W
received no proceeds in connection with the remamies all proceeds were held in trust to sedueeobligation of our equity unit holders to purahas
common stock from us on May 16, 2005. In connectiith the remarketing, we purchased and retired@pmately $400 million of the notes, resulting
in approximately $100 million remaining outstandihgough their maturity in May 2007. We incurrefra-tax charge of approximately $6 million in the
first quarter of 2005 related to purchasing andtingt the notes. We purchased such notes with gasérom the February 2005 issuance of $350 million
of 5% senior notes, Series M, due 2015 and castand.

On May 16, 2005, upon settlement of 15.9 onillof our outstanding equity units, we receivedcpeals of approximately $398.2 million and issued
approximately 12.9 million common shares. In latay\2005, we entered into accelerated share repedm@reements with investment banks whereby we
repurchased and retired 12.9 million shares of comstock for an aggregate final price of $437.3iam| the proceeds of which came from the settler
of the equity units mentioned above and cash od.han

Other. For 2008, we have budgeted $300 million for cpkpenditures. In 2006, we concluded that owrpektensive capital investment in our
wireline network permitted us to reduce networkitzdp
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spending to maintenance levels. Our 2008 capifaediture budget also includes amounts for expandir new service offerings and expanding our
data networks.

In the first quarter of 2008, we paid a $2%illion deposit to the FCC to enable us to paradépin its auction of 700 MHz spectrum, which if st
ongoing. Our deposit will be credited against tbstof any spectrum purchased by us in the auction.

The following table contains certain inforneaticoncerning our material contractual obligatiaa®f December 31, 2007.

Payments due by peric
Contractua After
obligations Total 2008 200¢-2010 20112012 2012 and Othe
(Dollars in thousands

Long-term debt, including current maturities angita

lease obligations (1 $3,014,25! 279,89¢ 528,14 522,58 1,683,622
Interest on lon- term debt obligation $1,525,45! 187,19: 359,31« 266,91! 712,03¢
Unrecognized tax benefits ( $ 31,98 — — — 31,98!

(1) For additional information on the terms of our d¢aitgling debt instruments, see Note 5 to the catesteld financial statements included bel

(2) Represents the amount of tax and interestawdd pay assuming we are required to pay theeatinount that we have reserved for our
unrecognized tax benefits (see Note 12 for addifioxformation). The timing of any payments for aunrecognized tax benefits cannot be predi
with certainty; therefore, such amount is refledtethe” After 2012 and Oth” column in the above tabl

We continually evaluate the possibility of agzgg additional communications operations andestppo continue our long-term strategy of pursithmy
acquisition of attractively-priced communicationserties in exchange for cash, securities or bttany given time, we may be engaged in discussion
or negotiations regarding additional acquisition® generally do not announce our acquisitions gpasitions until we have entered into a preliminary
definitive agreement. We may require additionadficing in connection with any such acquisitions,¢cbnsummation of which could have a material
impact on our financial condition or operations.piqximately 4.1 million shares of our common stackl 200,000 shares of our preferred stock remain
available for future issuance in connection withusitions under our acquisition shelf registratsdatement. We also have access to debt and equity
capital markets.
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We have available a five-year, $750 milliomakwing credit facility which expires in Decembed L. The credit facility contains financial covetan
that require us to meet a consolidated leverage (@t defined in the facility) not exceeding 4ltand a minimum interest coverage ratio (as defingde
facility) of at least 1.5 to 1. The interest raterevolving loans under the facility is based on chice of several prevailing commercial lendiates plus
an additional margin that varies depending on oedit ratings and aggregate borrowings under tbilitia We must pay a quarterly commitment fee on
the unutilized portion of the facility, the amouwftwhich varies based on our credit ratings. U$180 million of the credit facility can be used fetters
of credit, which reduces the amount available tbeoextensions of credit. Available borrowings endur credit facility are also effectively redudad
any outstanding borrowings under our commerciakpapogram. Our commercial paper program borrowindarn are effectively limited to the total
amount available under our credit facility. As odd@mber 31, 2007, we had no amounts outstandingr wunl credit facility or commercial paper
program.

Moody’s Investors Service (“Moody’s”) ratesrdang-term debt Baa2 (with a stable outlook) ateh8ard & Poor’s (“S&P”) rates our long-term debt
BBB (with a negative outlook). Our commercial papsvgram is rated P2 by Moody’s and A3 by S&P. Aloyvngrade in our credit ratings will increase
our borrowing costs and commitment fees under @603nillion revolving credit facility. Downgradesuld also restrict our access to the capital may
increase our borrowing costs under new or replaceniebt financings, or otherwise adversely affaetterms of future borrowings by, among other
things, increasing the scope of our debt coveramisdecreasing our financial or operating flexipili

The following table reflects our debt to tatapitalization percentage and ratio of earningsxte charges and preferred stock dividends adffor
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2Q051ebt to capitalization ratio has increased pripadue to share repurchases we have made during
the last few years.

2007 2006 2005
Debt to total capitalizatio 46.9% 44.¢€ 42.3
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferredkstividends* 3.87 3.97 3.6(

* For purposes of the chart above, “earnings”sistrof income before income taxes and fixed charged “fixed charges” include our interest
expense, including amortized debt issuance costspar preferred stock dividend cos
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REGULATION AND COMPETITION

The communications industry continues to ugderarious fundamental regulatory, legislative, petitive and technological changes. These changes
may have a significant impact on the future finahpierformance of all communications companies.

Events affecting the communications indusiireless telephone services increasingly corstiusignificant source of competition with LEC
services, especially since wireless carriers hagrib to compete effectively on the basis of pritth wiore traditional telephone services. As a ttesul
some customers have chosen to completely foregofusaditional wireline phone service and instealg solely on wireless service for voice services.
We anticipate this trend will continue, particujaifl wireless service providers continue to expémalr coverage areas, reduce their rates, offedfivate
calling plans, improve the quality of their sendcand offer enhanced new services.

In 1996, the United States Congress enacted@d¢lecommunications Act of 1996 (the “1996 Acthich obligates LECs to permit competitors to
interconnect their facilities to the LEC’s netwakd to take various other steps that are designptbtnote competition. Under the 1996 Act’s rural
telephone company exemption, approximately hatfusftelephone access lines are exempt from cesfalese interconnection requirements unless and
until the appropriate state regulatory commissie@rddes the exemption upon receipt from a competif a bona fide request meeting certain criteria.

Prior to and since the enactment of the 1986 the FCC and a number of state legislative agdlatory bodies have also taken steps to fostat lo
exchange competition. Coincident with this recenvement toward increased competition has beerethigction of regulatory oversight of LECs. These
cumulative changes, coupled with various technalagievelopments, have led to the continued gr@ftrarious companies providing services that
compete with LECSs’ services.

Federal USF programs have undergone subdtahtiages since 1997, and are expected to experiance changes in the coming years as
modernization of the overall program moves forwdslmandated by the 1996 Act, in May 2001 the FQgglified its existing universal service support
mechanism for rural telephone companies by adoptmimterim mechanism for a five-year period base@mbedded, or historical, costs that provide
relatively predictable levels of support to manyQ< including substantially all of our LECs. In M2§06, the FCC extended this interim mechanisni
such time that new high-cost support rules are tdbifor rural telephone companies. Wireless andratbmpetitive service providers continue to seek t
qualify to receive USF support. This trend, coupkéth changes in usage of telecommunications sesyioave placed stress on the funding mechanism o
the USF, which is subject to annual caps on digents. These developments have placed additimaaicial
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pressure on the amount of money that is necessarg\ailable to provide support to all eligiblevdee providers, including support payments we neeei
from the USF High Cost Loop support program. While 2007 USF High Cost Loop support program reseapproximated 2006 levels, we anticipate
that our 2008 revenues from the USF High Cost Laiggport program will be lower than 2007 by apprcadiety $14-17 million.

Since May 2007, the FCC and the Federal-StEite Board on Universal Service have each propassgties of reforms that could, if adopted,
substantially restructure current USF programsillthie FCC acts on those recommendations or isu@srules, we cannot estimate the impact thahsuc
proposals would have on our operations. In additioere are a number of judicial appeals challegpgeveral aspects of the FCC's universal serviesru
and various Congressional proposals seeking tdautiedly modify USF programs, none of which haeeb resolved at this time. We will continue to be
active in monitoring these developments.

Technological developments have led to theeliggment of new services that compete with trad#@ld EC services. Technological improvements t
enabled cable television companies to provide tiadil circuitswitched telephone service over their cable netsjaakd several national cable compa
have aggressively pursued this opportunity. Adddity, several large electric utilities have annoeohplans to offer communications services that
compete with LECs. Improvements in the quality \@bite-over-Internet Protocol” (“VolP”) service haled several cable, Internet, data and other
communications companies, as well as start-up campato substantially increase their offering®¥ofP service to business and residential customers.
VolIP providers frequently use existing broadbaniivoeks to deliver flat-rate, all distance callinigups that may offer features that cannot readily be
provided by traditional LECs and may be priced telbose currently charged for traditional local dmlg distance telephone services. In late 20G8, th
FCC initiated rulemaking proceedings to addressebelation of VolIP, and has adopted orders estaiblj some initial broad regulatory guidelines. fE
can be no assurance that future rulemaking withtoéerms favorable to ILECs, or that VolP provideil not successfully compete for our customers.

In 2003, the FCC opened a broad intercaroemgensation proceeding with the ultimate goal efting a uniform mechanism to be used by the entire
telecommunications industry for payments betweerieza originating, terminating, carrying or deliireg telecommunications traffic. The FCC has
received intercarrier compensation proposals freweral industry groups, and industry negotiatiamscantinuing with the goal of developing a conse
plan that addresses the concerns of carriers ftbimdaistry segments. Until the FCC’s proceedingaades and the changes, if any, to the existitesru
are established, we cannot estimate the impacptbiseeding will have on our results of operations.
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Many cable, entertainment, technology or ottmenmunication companies that previously offerdichited range of services are now, like us, offgrin
diversified bundles of services. As such, a growinghber of companies are competing to serve theragorications needs of the same customer base.
Several of these companies started offering fullise bundles before us, which could give them @vaatage in building customer loyalty.

Recent events affecting iBuring the last few years, all of the states inahhive provide telephone services have taken ldiyislar regulatory steps
further introduce competition into the LEC businélse number of companies which have requestedeamn#tion to provide local exchange service in
service areas has increased in recent years, aipécithe markets acquired from Verizon in 200@12000, and it is anticipated that similar actiogy
be taken by others in the future.

Certain long distance carriers continue taiesq that certain of our LECs reduce their inttastecess tariffed rates. In addition, we haverge
experienced reductions in intrastate traffic, gdistidue to the displacement of minutes by wirglessctronic mail and other optional calling seedcin
2007 we incurred a reduction in our intrastate mees of approximately $20.9 million compared to@@€@imarily due to these factors. The corresponding
decrease in 2006 compared to 2005 was $19.2 miM@nbelieve this trend of decreased intrastataitemwill continue in 2008, although the magnitude
of such decrease is uncertain.

We expect our operating revenues in 2008 ttireas we continue to experience downward pregstmarily due to continued access line losses,
reduced network access revenues and lower priorgeganue settlement amounts. We expect such ésdiinbe partially offset primarily due to increa
demand for our high-speed Internet service offeand the impact of recognizing a full year of rewes associated with our Madison River properties
acquired in April 2007.

For a more complete description of regulatiod competition impacting our operations and variattendant risks, please see Items 1 and 1A of our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddwem31, 2007.

Other mattersOur regulated telephone operations (except foptbhperties acquired from Verizon in 2002) are scifdje the provisions of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71, “Accongtfor the Effects of Certain Types of Regulati¢f8FAS 71"). Actions by regulators can provide
reasonable assurance of the recognition of an,assketce or eliminate the value of an asset andsma liability on a regulated enterprise. Such
regulatory assets and liabilities are requiredaadzorded and, accordingly, reflected in the ladasheet of an entity subject to SFAS 71. We are
monitoring the ongoing applicability of SFAS 71duor regulated telephone operations due to the ¢hgmggulatory, competitive and
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legislative environments, and it is possible tHetrges in regulation, legislation or competitionrothe demand for regulated services or produmtsdc
result in our telephone operations no longer bsirgect to SFAS 71 in the near future.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards N4, “Regulated Enterprises — Accounting for Eiigcontinuance of Application of FASB Statement
No. 71" (“SFAS 101"), specifies the accounting requireblem an enterprise ceases to meet the criterigfaication of SFAS 71. SFAS 101 requires the
elimination of the effects of any actions of redata that have been recognized as assets andtigsbih accordance with SFAS 71 but would not have
been recognized as assets and liabilities by notatgl enterprises. Depreciation rates of certséets established by regulatory authorities for our
telephone operations subject to SFAS 71 have hislty included a component for removal costs iness of the related estimated salvage value.
Notwithstanding the adoption of SFAS 143, SFAS&duires us to continue to reflect this accumulditdality for removal costs in excess of salve
value even though there is no legal obligatioretmove the assets. Therefore, we did not adoptrthégions of SFAS 143 for our telephone operations
subject to SFAS 71. SFAS 101 further provides thatcarrying amounts of property, plant and equipnaee to be adjusted only to the extent the assets
are impaired and that impairment shall be judgeithénsame manner as for nonregulated enterprises.

Our consolidated balance sheet as of DeceBhe2007 included regulatory liabilities of appnmetely $198.4 million related to estimated removal
costs embedded in accumulated depreciation (asibed@bove). Net deferred income tax assets rbtatéhe regulatory assets and liabilities quaeifi
above were $77.0 million.

When and if our regulated operations no lorggeadify for the application of SFAS 71, we curdgrdo not expect to record any impairment charge
related to the carrying value of the property, pkamd equipment of our regulated telephone operatiddditionally, upon the discontinuance of SFAS 7
we would be required to revise the lives of oumgendy, plant and equipment to reflect the estimatszful lives of the assets. We currently do ngieex
such revisions in asset lives will have a matengdact on our results of operations. Upon the diiooance of SFAS 71, we also would be required to
eliminate certain intercompany transactions witjutated affiliates that currently are not elimirchtender the application of SFAS 71. For the yealeéen
December 31, 2007, approximately $146 million ofereues (and related costs) would have been eligdrized we not been subject to the provisions of
SFAS 71. Such elimination would have had no impactotal operating income. For regulatory purpo#fes accounting and reporting of our telephone
subsidiaries will not be affected by the discontid@pplication of SFAS 71.

We have certain obligations based on fedstale and local laws relating to the protectiothef
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environment. Costs of compliance through 2007 heotébeen material, and we currently do not belidnat such costs will become material.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Management

The Shareholders
CenturyTel, Inc.:

Management has prepared and is responsibtadantegrity and objectivity of our consolidatiaancial statements. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in accordance witluiaiing principles generally accepted in the UhBates of America and necessarily include
amounts determined using our best judgments adass.

Our consolidated financial statements have leeslited by KPMG LLP, an independent registerdalipaccounting firm, who have expressed their
opinion with respect to the fairness of the comikd financial statements. Their audit was coratlist accordance with standards of the Public Cay
Accounting Oversight Board (United States).

Management is responsible for establishingraathtaining adequate internal control over finahogporting, a process designed to provide reddena
assurance regarding the reliability of financigoging and the preparation of financial statemémt®xternal purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Under the supenviand with the participation of management, inclgdur principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, we conducted an evaluation af #ffectiveness of our internal control over finahceporting based on the frameworkimernal Contro
- Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (“COSOBased on our evaluation under
framework of COSQ management concluded that our internal control éimancial reporting was effective as of Decemhker@07. The effectiveness
our internal control over financial reporting asDdcember 31, 2007 has been audited by KPMG LLBtased in their report which is included herein.

On April 30, 2007, CenturyTel, Inc. (“CentusiT) acquired Madison River Communications Corpdétison River’)and management excluded fr
its assessment of the effectiveness of our intaroatrol over financial reporting as of December 3107, Madison River’s internal control over ficél
reporting associated with total assets of $9671Bamiand total revenues of $130.5 million includadhe consolidated financial statements of CefTiat
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of anyuaten
of effectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that controls may become inadequate beaHudwmnges in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may ritexzte.
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The Audit Committee of the Board of Direct@somposed of independent directors who are rfateo$ or employees. The Committee meets
periodically with the external auditors, internall#ors and management. The Committee consideriadependence of the external auditors and the audi
scope and discusses internal control, financialrapdrting matters. Both the external and inteenalitors have free access to the Committee.

/s/ R. Stewart Ewing, Jr.

R. Stewart Ewing, J
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
February 29, 200
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CenturyTel, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidaddghce sheets of CenturyTel, Inc. and subsidiasesf December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehensaanie, cash flows, and stockholders’ equity for eafcte years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2007. These consolidated financitdrsients are the responsibility of the Company’sagament. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statembased on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance withstaedards of the Public Company Accounting Ovétsipard (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audits to obtain neaBle assurance about whether the financial statisnage free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgahe amounts and disclosures in the finarat@lements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, as well as evaluating thalbfinancial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimnion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financiatstaents referred to above present fairly, in altarial respects, the financial position of CentwelyTnc.
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 20@b6the results of their operations and their ¢asts for each of the years in the three-year perio
ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.Sagelly accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 12 to the consolidatedrfcial statements, effective January 1, 2007 timagainy changed its method of accounting for uncerta
tax positions. In addition, as discussed in Note the consolidated financial statements, in 20@CQompany changed its method of accounting faresha
based payments (effective January 1, 2006) and@eaad postretirement benefits (as of Decembe3Q6).

We also have audited, in accordance with thedards of the Public Company Accounting Oversiyerd (United States), the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiagjof December 31, 2007, based on criteria estagiininternal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regated February 29, 2008 expressed an
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the @amy’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Shreveport, Louisiana
February 29, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CenturyTel, Inc.:

We have audited CenturyTel, Inc.’s internaitcol over financial reporting as of December 31072, based on criteria establishednternal Control—
Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadrike Treadway Commission (COSOJhe Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal gohbver financial reporting and for its assessn#rihe effectiveness of internal control over final
reporting, included in the accompanyiRgport of ManagemenOur responsibility is to express an opinion om @ompany’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withstaedards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdglard (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabtnassurance about whether effective internarcbover financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audit included obtainingiagerstanding of internal control over financiglogting, assessing the risk that a material weaknes
exists, and testing and evaluating the design aedating effectiveness of internal control basedhenassessed risk. Our audit also included perfgrm
such other procedures as we considered necessidngy @ircumstances. We believe that our audit piesia reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financiapogting is a process designed to provide reasoredslerance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaakepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal control over financial reporting includi®se policies and procedures that (1) pertaiheanaintenance of records that, in reasonableldetai
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disgositions of the assets of the company; (2) ideveasonable assurance that transactions anelesca
necessary to permit preparation of financial statesin accordance with generally accepted acaogiptinciples, and that receipts and expenditufes o
the company are being made only in accordanceauthorizations of management and directors of tmepany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauited acquisition, use, or disposition of the compsa assets that could have a material effect en th
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of anyuaten
of effectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that controls may become inadequate beaHudwmnges in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may ritexzte.

In our opinion, CenturyTel, Inc. maintainedl aill material respects, effective internal contreér financial reporting as of December 31, 20fa&ed
on criteria established imternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission
(COsS0).
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On April 30, 2007, CenturyTel, Inc. (“CentusiT) acquired Madison River Communications Corp&tison River’)and management excluded fri
its assessment of the effectiveness of its interaatrol over financial reporting as of Decembey 107, Madison River's internal control over fic#d
reporting associated with total assets of $9671Bamiand total revenues of $130.5 million includadhe consolidated financial statements of CefTiat
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007a@it of internal control over financial reportin§the Company also excluded an evaluation of the
internal control over financial reporting of MadisRiver.

We also have audited, in accordance with thiedards of the Public Company Accounting Oversiggard (United States), the consolidated balance
sheets of CenturyTel, Inc. and subsidiaries aseafedinber 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related coasedictatements of income, comprehensive income,
cash flows, and stockholders’ equity for each efykars in the three-year period ended Decembe&t(®1/, and our report dated February 29, 2008
expressed an unqualified opinion on those congelitiinancial statements.

/sl KPMG LLP
Shreveport, Louisiana
February 29, 2008
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CENTURYTEL, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income

Year ended December &

2007

2006

2005

(Dollars, except per share amout

and shares in thousanc

OPERATING REVENUES $2,656,24. 2,447,73 2,479,25
OPERATING EXPENSE!
Cost of services and products (exclusive of deptiri and amortizatior 937,37! 888,41 821,92¢
Selling, general and administrati 389,53 370,27 388,98
Depreciation and amortizatic 536,25" 523,50¢ 531,93
Total operating expens: 1,863,16:. 1,782,19: 1,742,84
OPERATING INCOME 793,07¢ 665,53t 736,40:
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE
Interest expens (212,90¢) (195,95) (201,80:)
Other income (expens 38,77( 121,56¢ 3,16¢
Total other income (expens (174,130 (74,389 (198,63
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSI 618,94: 591,14¢ 537,771
Income tax expens 200,57: 221,12: 203,29:
NET INCOME $ 418,37( 370,02 334,47¢
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARL $ 3.82 3.17 2.5¢E
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE $ 3.72 3.07 2.4¢
DIVIDENDS PER COMMON SHARE $ .26 2% .24
AVERAGE BASIC SHARES OUTSTANDINC 109,36( 116,67 130,84:
AVERAGE DILUTED SHARES OUTSTANDINC 113,09« 122,22¢ 136,08

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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CENTURYTEL, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December &

2007 200€ 200¢
(Dollars in thousands
NET INCOME $418,37( 370,02 334,47¢
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAXE
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of $965da$1,438 tas — 1,54¢ 2,307
Unrealized holding gains related to marketable sges arising during the period, net of $547,
$411 and $165 ta 877 65¢ 264
Derivative instruments
Net gains (losses) on derivatives hedging varighilf cash flows, net of $294 and ($2,606)
tax 471 — (4,180
Reclassification adjustment for gains (losses)udet in net income, net of $254, $234 ar
$202 tax 407 37¢ 324
Iltems related to employee benefit plar
Change in net actuarial loss, net of $28,58% 52,48¢ — —
Change in net prior service credit, net of $1,7%24d 2,76¢€ — —
Reclassification adjustment for gains (losses)uded in net income
Amortization of net actuarial loss, net of $4,489 6,554 — —
Amortization of net prior service credit, net off ) tax (1,23€) — —
Amortization of unrecognized transition asset,afg55) tax (89) — —
Net change in other comprehensive income (losg)dfneclassification adjustment),
net of taxe: 62,23¢ 2,582 (1,285
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $480,60! 372,60¢ 333,19:

* Reflected in 2007 due to the December 31, 2006tamopf SFAS 158

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@sstents.
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CENTURYTEL, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31

2007

200¢

(Dollars in thousands

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and cash equivalel $ 34,400 25,66¢
Accounts receivabl
Customers, less allowance of $12,129 and $11 152,80¢ 150,89:
Interexchange carriers and other, less allowan&8 @32 and $9,58 70,21¢ 76,45¢
Materials and supplies, at average ¢ 8,55¢ 6,62¢
Other 26,41: 30,47¢
Total current asse 292,39¢ 290,11°
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMEN" 3,108,37! 3,109,27
GOODWILL AND OTHER ASSETS
Goodwill 4,010,911 3,431,13!
Other 772,86 610,47"
Total goodwill and other asse 4,783,77: 4,041,61.
TOTAL ASSETS $8,184,55: 7,441,00
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current maturities of lor-term debt $ 279,89¢ 155,01
Shor-term debi — 23,00(
Accounts payabl 120,38: 129,35(
Accrued expenses and other current liabili
Salaries and benefi 64,38( 54,10(
Income taxe: 54,23: 60,522
Other taxe: 48,96 46,89(
Interest 80,10¢ 73,72¢
Other 30,94 23,35
Advance billings and customer depo: 57,631 51,61«
Total current liabilities 736,53! 617,56!
LONG-TERM DEBT 2,734,35 2,412,85;
DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES 1,304,45! 1,219,63!
STOCKHOLDER¢ EQUITY
Common stock, $1.00 par value, authorized 350,@@0shares, issued and outstanding 108,491,736 and
113,253,889 share 108,49: 113,25
Paic-in capital 91,147 24,25¢
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net o (42,707 (104,94
Retained earning 3,245,30:; 3,150,93:
Preferred stoc— nor-redeemabl 6,971 7,45(
Total stockholdel' equity 3,409,20! 3,190,95.
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $8,184,55: 7,441,00

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédistents.
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CENTURYTEL, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended December &

2007 200¢ 200¢

(Dollars in thousands

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income $ 418,37( 370,02° 334,47¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigesl by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 536,25" 523,50¢ 531,93
Gains on asset dispositio (15,649 (118,649 (3,500
Deferred income taxe 1,01¢ 49,68¢ 69,53(
Shar-based compensatic 19,96: 11,90« 4,721
Income from unconsolidated cellular ent (14,579 (5,86)) (4,910
Distributions from unconsolidated cellular ent 10,22¢ — 2,33¢
Changes in current assets and current liabil
Accounts receivabl 15,92( 7,90¢ (68E)
Accounts payabl (13,699 24,90¢ (37,179
Accrued taxe! 11,60¢ (49,73 72,97
Other current assets and other current liabilities 23,78 10,26¢ (8,117)
Retirement benefit 27,35( 5,96% (16,815
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic (6,427%) (12,039 —
Decrease in noncurrent ass 12,71¢ 9,07¢ 1,97:
Increase (decrease) in other noncurrent liabil (20,78)) 70¢ 2,63¢
Other, ne: 23,90¢ 13,04 17,69:
Net cash provided by operating activit 1,029,98! 840,71¢ 967,07¢
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipmr (326,04") (314,07) (414,877
Proceeds from redemption of Rural Telephone Bamék: 5,20¢ 122,81¢ —
Proceeds from sale of ass 8,231 5,86¢ 4.,00(
Acquisitions, net of cash acquir (306,80 — (75,459
Investment in unconsolidated cellular en (2,667) (5,227) —
Other, ne 2,892 (3,122 2,59¢
Net cash used in investing activiti (619,189 (193,73) (483,73)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of delt (712,98() (81,99 (693,34Y)
Proceeds from issuance of di 741,84( 23,00( 344,17:
Repurchase of common sta (460,67¢) (802,18%) (551,759
Settlement of equity uni — — 398,16«
Proceeds from issuance of common si 49,40« 97,80: 50,37¢
Settlements of interest rate hedge contr 76% — (7,357%)
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic 6,427 12,03¢ —
Cash dividend (29,057) (29,207) (31,86%)
Other, ne 2,20¢ 38< (104
Net cash used in financing activiti (402,06 (780,16¢) (491,716
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis. 8,73¢ (133,179 (8,369
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 25,66¢ 158,84¢ 167,21!
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAF $ 34,40: 25,66¢ 158,84¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@sstents.
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CENTURYTEL, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Year ended December &
2007 200€ 200t
(Dollars, except per share amout
and shares in thousanc

COMMON STOCK (represents dollars and sha

Balance at beginning of ye $ 113,25 131,07 132,37«
Repurchase of common sto (20,219 (21,439 (16,409
Conversion of debt into common stc 3,69¢ — —
Issuance of common stock upon settlement of eaquniis — — 12,88:
Conversion of preferred stock into common st 26 22 7
Issuance of common stock through dividend reinvestirincentive and benefit pla 1,72¢ 3,59( 2,221
Balance at end of ye 108,49: 113,25¢ 131,07
PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of ye 24,25¢ 129,80¢ 222,20"
Repurchase of common sta (155,03¢) (222,999 (535,35()
Conversion of debt into common stc 142,73: — —
Issuance of common stock upon settlement of equnits — — 385,28
Issuance of common stock through dividend reinvestirincentive and benefit pla 47,67¢ 94,21: 48,15:
Conversion of preferred stock into common st 458 37¢ 11¢
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic 6,427 12,03¢ —
Share based compensation and o 24,631 10,82: 9,397
Balance at end of ye. 91,147 24,25¢ 129,80¢
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS, NET OF TA
Balance at beginning of ye (104,94 (9,619 (8,339
Effect of adoption of SFAS 158, net of tax (seee\by — (97,909 —
Net change in other comprehensive income (losg)dineclassification adjustment), net of 1 62,23¢ 2,58 (1,285
Balance at end of ye (42,707 (104,949 (9,619
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of ye 3,150,93: 3,358,16: 3,055,54!
Net income 418,37( 370,02" 334,47¢
Repurchase of common sta (295,42) (557,759 —
Cumulative effect of adoption of SAB 108 (see Nb} — 9,70t —
Cumulative effect of adoption of FIN 48 (see Nof& 47€ — —
Cash dividends declare
Common stock— $.26, $.25 and $.24 per she¢ (28,689) (28,82 (31,46¢)
Preferred stoc (36€) (380 (396
Balance at end of ye 3,245,30. 3,150,93. 3,358,16.
PREFERRED STOCI— NON-REDEEMABLE
Balance at beginning of ye 7,45( 7,85( 7,97
Conversion of preferred stock into common st (479 (400 (125)
Balance at end of ye 6,971 7,45( 7,85(
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY $3,409,20! 3,190,95. 3,617,27.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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CENTURYTEL, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2007

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of consolidatio— Our consolidated financial statements includeatmounts of CenturyTel, Inc. and its majority-odrseibsidiaries.

Regulatory accountin— Our regulated telephone operations (except ptoperties acquired from Verizon in 2002) argexttto the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.At¢ounting for the Effects of Certain Types oféation” (“SFAS 71"). Actions by regulators can
provide reasonable assurance of the recogniti@am afsset, reduce or eliminate the value of an asskimpose a liability on a regulated enterpr&ech
regulatory assets and liabilities are requiredeedrorded and, accordingly, reflected in the badasheet of an entity subject to SFAS 71. We are
monitoring the ongoing applicability of SFAS 71dor regulated telephone operations due to the ¢hgmggulatory, competitive and legislative
environments, and it is possible that changesgnlegion, legislation or competition or in the derddor regulated services or products could rasutur
telephone operations no longer being subject toSFAIn the near future. Our consolidated balaheetsas of December 31, 2007 included regulatory
liabilities of approximately $198.4 million relatéd estimated removal costs embedded in accumudigpreciation (as required to be recorded by
regulators). Net deferred income tax assets retatéie regulatory assets and liabilities quardiédove were $77.0 million.

Estimates— The preparation of financial statements in camfty with generally accepted accounting principleguires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amourdsssts and liabilities and disclosure of contingeasets and liabilities at the date of the finahci
statements and the reported amounts of revenuesxaethises during the reporting period. Actual tesuhy differ from those estimates.

Revenue recognitic- Revenues are generally recognized when servicggaveed or when products are delivered to custsniRevenue that is billed
advance includes monthly recurring network accesdces, special access services and monthly iaguocal line charges. The unearned portion of thi
revenue is initially deferred as a component ofaaxbed billings and customer deposits on our balaheet and recognized as revenue over the perbd th
the services are provided. Revenue that is bilteatiears includes switched access services, namirgg network access services, nonrecurring local
services and long distance services. The earnedrtiited portion of this revenue is recognized@agenue in the period that the services are pravide
Revenues from installation activities (along witle related costs) are deferred and amortized beegdtimated life of the customer relationship.
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Certain of our telephone subsidiaries’ revenare based on tariffed access charges filed fireith the Federal Communications Commission; the
remainder of our telephone subsidiaries participatevenue sharing arrangements with other telepltmmpanies for interstate revenue (except for
broadband related revenues) and for certain istiasevenue. Such sharing arrangements are furydedl bevenue and/or access charges within state
jurisdictions and by access charges in the interstearket. Revenues earned through certain sharifaggements are initially recorded based or
estimates.

Allowance for doubtful accoun. In evaluating the collectibility of our accoumexeivable, we assess a number of factors, inajuaispecific customer’s
or carrier’s ability to meet its financial obligatis to us, the length of time the receivable h&n lpast due and historical collection experieneesel on
these assessments, we record both specific andageeserves for uncollectible accounts receivableduce the stated amount of applicable accounts
receivable to the amount we ultimately expect titect

Property, plant and equipme— Telephone plant is stated at original cost. Ndmet&rements of telephone plant are charged agatwumulated
depreciation, along with the costs of removal, Easlsage, with no gain or loss recognized. Renewmadsbetterments of plant and equipment are
capitalized while repairs, as well as renewals wfanitems, are charged to operating expense. Reren of telephone plant is provided on the ginai
line method using class or overall group rates piad#e to regulatory authorities; such averagesregage from 2% to 20%.

Non-telephone property is stated at cost eumen sold or retired, a gain or loss is recogniBpreciation of such property is provided on tiaight
line method over estimated service lives rangiogftwo to 35 years.

Intangible asset— Statement of Financial Accounting Standards M@, 1Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFA82L), requires goodwill
recorded in a business combination to be reviewedipairment and to be written down only in pegad which the recorded amount of goodwiill
exceeds its fair value. We test impairment of gatidwleast annually by comparing the fair valdele reporting unit to its carrying value (incladi
goodwill). We base our estimates of the fair valtithe reporting unit on valuation models usindgesion such as multiples of earnings.

Lonc-lived assets- Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Md, TAccounting for the Impairment or Disposal ajiig-Lived Assets” (“SFAS
144"), addresses financial accounting and repoftinghe impairment or disposal of long-lived ass@ixclusive of goodwill) and also broadens the
reporting of discontinued operations to includecalinponents of an entity with operations that camlistinguished from the rest of the entity and tifl
be eliminated from the ongoing operations of thigym a disposal transaction. During 2007, weogatized a $16.6 million pre-tax impairment change i
order to write-down

A-41




Table of Contents

the value of certain of our long-lived assets irtaia of our CLEC markets to their estimated resie value.

Affiliated transaction— Certain of our service subsidiaries provide ittesi@n and maintenance services, materials angl®g) and managerial,
operational, technical, accounting and administeasiervices to other subsidiaries. In addition,t@sfTel provides and bills management services to
subsidiaries and in certain instances makes intbezging advances to finance construction of pdausk purchases of equipment. These transactions are
recorded by our telephone subsidiaries at theirtoahe extent permitted by regulatory authoritiatercompany profit on transactions with regutate
affiliates is limited to a reasonable return ondstiment and has not been eliminated in connectithoensolidating the results of operations of
CenturyTel and its subsidiaries. Intercompany puarfitransactions with affiliates not subject toASF71 has been eliminated.

Income taxe— We file a consolidated federal income tax retith our eligible subsidiaries. We use the assétlatility method of accounting for
income taxes under which deferred tax assets ahidities are established for the future tax conseges attributable to differences between thenéirzd,
statement carrying amounts of assets and lialsiléied their respective tax bases.

Postretirement and pension pla— We adopted the provisions of Statement of Fireeicounting Standards No. 158, “Employers’ Acctium for
Defined Benefit Plans and Other PostretirementPIfiISFAS 158”) as of December 31, 2006. SFAS Jdfuires us to recognize the overfunded or
underfunded status of our defined benefit and ptetment plans as an asset or a liability on @latce sheet, with an adjustment to stockholdepsite
(reflected as an increase or decrease in accurdu#tter comprehensive income or loss). The increaheffect of applying SFAS 158 on individual line
items of our balance sheet as of December 31, 2@06 as follows:

Before After
Application of Application of
SFAS 15¢ Adjustments SFAS 15¢
(Dollars in thousands
Other asset $ 675,21! (64,739 610,47
Total asset $7,505,74! (64,739 7,441,00
Accrued expenses and other current liabili $ 259,48 (89¢) 258,58¢
Deferred credits and other liabilities (excludirefetred income taxe: $ 447,06¢ 99,51 546,57¢
Deferred income taxe $ 738,50¢ (65,44") 673,06
Total liabilities $4,216,88! 33,167 4,250,05!
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net o $ (7,039 (97,909 (104,947)
Total stockholder equity $3,288,85I (97,90 3,190,95.
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Cumulative effect adjustmentin September 2006, the Securities and Exchangen@ssion issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108pnsidering the
Effect of Prior Year Misstatements when QuantifyMggstatements in Current Year Financial ResultSAB 108”). SAB 108 addresses how the effects
of prior year uncorrected misstatements shouldomsidered when quantifying misstatements in curyeat financial statements. SAB 108 requires
companies to quantify misstatements using bothanba sheet approach and income statement appaoddo evaluate whether either approach resu
quantifying an error that is material in light dftrelevant quantitative and qualitative factors.

As of December 31, 2006, we identified two stagements that previously were deemed immatesiafithe income statement approach that are now
deemed material upon application of the balancetsiygproach. Such misstatements relate to (i)diheré to capitalize interest in connection witle th
development of our billing system, which beganhe kate 1990’s; and (ii) the failure to defer teganues and costs associated with installationites
related to our service offerings. Using the guidaatSAB 108, we have recorded a net cumulativecefidjustment to retained earnings (as of Jariary
2006), which increased retained earnings approxitn®9.7 million (presented on an after-tax basif)the $9.7 million net increase to retained azygj
approximately $14.0 million related to the capitall interest adjustment, which was partially offset reduction to retained earnings of approxityate
$4.3 million related to the installation activitiadjustment. We adjusted our results of operationthe first, second and third quarters of 2006eftect
the ongoing application of the above. Such adjustmeere immaterial to each quarter.

Stock-based compensatiefffective January 1, 2006, we adopted the provsmiStatement of Financial Accounting Standards 8@ (Revised 2004
“Share-Based Payment”, which requires us to measureost of awarding employees with equity insteams based upon the fair value of the award on
the grant date. Prior to January 1, 2006, we adeoufior our stock compensation plans using thénisit value method in accordance with Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25. See Note 14 faditihal information.

Derivative financial instrument— We account for derivative instruments and hedgictiyities in accordance with Statement of Finah8iccounting
Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instients and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”), as arded. SFAS 133, as amended, requires that all
derivative instruments, such as interest rate swapsecognized in the financial statements andsored at fair value regardless of the purposetentrof
holding them. On the date a derivative contraehitered into, we designate the derivative as eéltair value or cash flow hedge. A hedge of the fa
value of a recognized asset or liability or of amacognized firm commitment is a fair value hedgdedge of a forecasted transaction or the vaitghuf
cash flows to be received or paid related to ageized asset or liability is a cash flow hedge. &8 formally assess, both at the hedgeteption and ¢
an ongoing
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basis, whether the derivatives that are used igihgdransactions are highly effective in offsegtithanges in fair values or cash flows of hedgeahst If
we determine that a derivative is not, or is natem highly effective as a hedge, we would discargihedge accounting prospectively. We recognize al
derivatives on the balance sheet at their fairezathanges in the fair value of derivative finahtiatruments are either recognized in income or
stockholders’ equity (as a component of accumulatedr comprehensive income (loss)), depending logtiver the derivative is being used to hedge
changes in the fair value or cash flows. We dohdd or issue derivative financial instrumentstfading or speculative purposes. Management
periodically reviews our exposure to interest fatetuations and implements strategies to managexiposure. See Note 6 for additional information.

Earnings per shar— Basic earnings per share amounts are determméukdoasis of the weighted average number of camshares outstanding during
the applicable accounting period. Diluted earnipgsshare gives effect to all potential dilutiverooon shares that were outstanding during the period
See Note 13 for additional information.

Cash equivalents We consider short-term investments with a matwttdate of purchase of three months or less twabb equivalents.

(2) ACQUISITIONS

On April 30, 2007, we acquired all of the aatsling stock of Madison River Communications Cdfbladison River”)from Madison River Telephol
Company, LLC for an initial aggregate purchasegatapproximately $322 million cash. In connectiwith the acquisition, we also paid all of Madison
River’s existing indebtedness (including accruddriest), which approximated $522 million. At thed of this acquisition, Madison River operated
approximately 164,000 predominantly rural accassdliin four states with more than 30% high-spetstiiet penetration and its network included
ownership in a 2,400 route mile fiber network. Wadidwe this acquisition adds attractive marketdwiwvod demographics and growth prospects and its
fiber network is complementary to our existing GgiEms.

We are accounting for the acquisition of MadiRiver as a purchase under the guidance of S¢atieofi Financial Accounting Standards No. 141,
“Business Combinations” (“SFAS 141") and Statenarinancial Accounting Standards No. 71, “Accougtfor the Effects of Certain Types of
Regulation” (“SFAS 71”). SFAS 141 requires us toarl the assets acquired and liabilities assumétkatrespective fair values. In accordance with
SFAS 71, we recorded the fixed assets of Madiseri regulated telephone operations at historical hadke since those values are used to develc
rates we charge to our customers (which are apdrbyeegulatory authorities).
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We have reflected the results of operationthefMadison River properties in our consolidateslits of operations beginning May 1, 2007.

The total cost of the Madison River acquisittbrough December 31, 2007 is composed of thevatlg components (amounts in thousands):

Cash paid (1 $321,51¢
Closing costs (2 5,26¢
Total purchase pric $326,78:

(1) Reflects the cash payment of $671,000 weiveden third quarter 2007 in accordance with thechase agreement upon finalization of the working
capital portion of the purchase prit

(2) Closing costs primarily consist of advisory anddefges incurred in connection with the acquisit

The purchase price has been allocated toshetaacquired and liabilities assumed as foll@amso(nts in thousands):

Current assets (: $ 33,76
Net property, plant and equipme 208,31"
Identifiable intangible asse

Customer lis 156,80(

Franchise 6,40(
Goodwill 579,78(
Other asset 21,99¢
Current liabilities (2 (25,579
Long-term debt (2 (520,001
Deferred income taxe (105,169
Other liabilities (29,52¢)
Total purchase pric $ 326,78¢

(1) Includes approximately $20.0 million of acquiredltand cash equivalen

(2) We paid all the long-term debt and $2.2 miilof related accrued interest (included in “curtebilities” in the above table) immediately afte
closing.

On June 30, 2005, we acquired fiber asset$ imetropolitan markets from KMC Telecom Holdings;. (“KMC”) for approximately $75.5 million.
The assets acquired and liabilities assumed hase teflected in our consolidated balance sheetdbais@ purchase price allocation determined by
independent third parties. The vast majority ofilnechase price was allocated to property, pladteauipment. The results of operations of the KMC
properties are included in our results of operatioaginning July 1, 2005.

(3) GOODWILL AND OTHER ASSETS

Goodwill and other assets at December 31, 20@72006 were composed of the following:
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December 31 2007 200¢€
(Dollars in thousands

Goodwill $4,010,91 3,431,131
Billing system development costs, less accumulatedrtization of $38,285 and $26,7 192,90 204,59°
Cash surrender value of life insurance contr 95,65« 94,78¢
Deferred costs associated with installation adtig 81,90¢ 73,25¢
Pension asst 28,53¢ 16,187
Intangible assets not subject to amortiza 42,75( 36,69(
Marketable securitie 35,81! 32,23t
Investment in unconsolidated cellular partners 33,71« 29,36¢
Deferred interest rate hedge contre 23,69: 23,13¢
Investment in debt securi 22,807 22,20¢

Intangible assets subject to amortizat
Customer list, less accumulated amortization of $48 and $7,02 163,16( 18,07:
Contract rights, less accumulated amortizationdg1 86 and $3,25 — 93C
Other 51,92¢ 59,01¢
$4,783,77! 4,041,61

Our goodwill was derived from numerous pregi@equisitions whereby the purchase price excettdefhir value of the net assets acquired. Goodwill
increased in 2007 as a result of our Madison Raeeuisition. We test for goodwill impairment andyainder SFAS 142 and, based on our analysis
performed as of September 30, 2007, determineg@anwill was not impaired.

We accounted for the costs to develop an fated billing and customer care system in accorglavith Statement of Position 98-1A¢counting for th
Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtainedinfiernal Use.” Aggregate capitalized costs (befaccumulated amortization) totaled
$231.2 million and are being amortized over a twear period.

In the third quarter of 2004, we entered mtibiree-year agreement with EchoStar Communicatamporation (“EchoStar”) to provide co-branded
DISH Network satellite television services to oustomers. As part of the transaction, we invesg&isillion in an EchoStar convertible subordinated
debt security, which had a fair value at date sfigce of approximately $20.8 million and mature2d11.

In connection with the acquisitions of propstfrom Verizon Communications, Inc. (“Verizont) 2002 and Madison River in 2007, we assigned an
aggregate of $41.7 million of the respective pusehgrices as an intangible asset associated \aitictiise costs (which includes amounts necessary to
maintain eligibility to provide telecommunicatiossrvices in its licensed service areas). Suchsabset an indefinite life and therefore are nojexttio
amortization currently.
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In connection with various acquisitions we éavade over the past several years, we have albeatounts to a customer list intangible asset,
including $156.8 million from our Madison River agsjtion in 2007 and $22.7 million from our acqti of Verizon properties in 2002. Such assets are
being amortized on a straight-line basis over piritat range from 5-15 years. Total amortizatigpease for these customer base and other intangible
assets for 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $12.2 milliri, fillion and $3.0 million, respectively, andeispected to be $16.1 million annually from 2008
through 2011 and $15.7 million in 2012.

(4) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Net property, plant and equipment at Decemdlie2007 and 2006 was composed of the following:

December 31 2007 200€
(Dollars in thousands

Cable and wire $ 4,570,93I 4,224 .45
Central office 2,775,471 2,522,941
General suppol 811,48¢ 760,17(
Fiber transpor 289,39: 222,59
Information origination/terminatio 78,98 62,06(
Construction in progres 99,64: 59,19¢
Other 40,19t 42,34«

8,666,101 7,893,76!
Accumulated depreciatic (5,557,73)) (4,784,48))
Net property, plant and equipme $ 3,108,371 3,109,27

Depreciation expense was $524.1 million, $526illion and $528.9 million in 2007, 2006 and 20@&spectively.

Net property, plant and equipment increaséiB®million in 2007 as a result of our Madison &iacquisition.
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(5) LONG-TERM DEBT

Our long-term debt as of December 31, 20072006 was as follows:

December 31 2007 200¢
(Dollars in thousands
CenturyTel
Senior notes and debentur
7.20% Series D, due 20: $ 100,00( 100,00(
6.30% Series F, due 20 240,00( 240,00(
6.875% Series G, due 20 425,00( 425,00(
8.375% Series H, due 20 500,00( 500,00(
6.02% Series — 100,90¢
4.75% Series } — 165,00(
7.875% Series L, due 20: 500,00 500,00(
5.0% Series M, due 20: 350,00( 350,00(
6.0% Series N, due 20: 500,00( —
5.5% Series O, due 20: 250,00( —
Unamortized net discou (7,840 (5,640
Net fair value of derivative instrumen
Series H senior note 7,991 10,85:
Series L senior note 3,04¢ (20,599
Total CenturyTe 2,868,19! 2,365,52
Subsidiaries
First mortgage det
5.35%* notes, payable to agencies of the U. S. gwrent and cooperative lending associations, due in
installments through 20z 120,78t 133,73t
7.98% note: — 4,42(
Other deb
7.1% unsecured medit-term notes, due through 20 25,00( 61,49¢
10.0% note:! 10C 971
7.3%* capital lease obligations, due through 2 168 1,70¢
Total subsidiarie 146,05¢ 202,33t
Total lon¢-term debr 3,014,25! 2,567,86:
Less current maturitie 279,89¢ 155,01
Long-term debt, excluding current maturiti $2,734,35 2,412,85.

* Weighted average interest rate at December 31,

The approximate annual debt maturities forfile years subsequent to December 31, 2007 dalaws: 2008 — $279.9 million; 2009 —
$14.8 million; 2010 — $513.3 million; 2011 — $1In8llion; and 2012 — $511.3 million.

Certain of our loan agreements contain varfessrictions, among which are limitations regagdissuance of additional debt, payment of cash
dividends, reacquisition of capital stock and otfmatters. In addition, the transfer of funds froentain consolidated subsidiaries to CenturyTel is
restricted by various loan agreements. Subsidiarfésh have loans from government agencies anderatipe lending associations, or have issued first
mortgage bonds, generally may not loan or advangdunds to
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CenturyTel, but may pay dividends if certain finecatios are met. At December 31, 2007, restuictet assets of subsidiaries were $131.8 millich an
subsidiaries’ retained earnings in excess of ansorgstricted by debt covenants totaled $1.3 billsrDecember 31, 2007, approximately $2.3 billafn
our consolidated retained earnings reflected orb#tlence sheet was available under our loan agmsrfeg the declaration of dividends.

The senior notes and debentures of Centumgfeired to above were issued under an indentusalddarch 31, 1994. This indenture does not contain
any financial covenants, but does include restritithat limit our ability to (i) incur, issue oreate liens upon its property and (ii) consolidaith or
merge into, or transfer or lease all or substdgtall of its assets to, any other party. The irtdem does not contain any provisions that are ingzhby ou
credit ratings, or that restrict the issuance of securities in the event of a material adversexghdo us.

Approximately 14% of our property, plant amglipment is pledged to secure the long-term debtibsidiaries.

On March 29, 2007, we publicly issued $50diorilof 6.0% Senior Notes, Series N, due 2017 &fD3nillion of 5.5% Senior Notes, Series O, due
2013. Our $741.8 million of net proceeds from take ©f these Senior Notes were used to pay a sulatportion of the approximately $844 million of
cash that was needed in order to (i) pay the Imtiachase price for the acquisition of MadisondRiwn April 30, 2007 ($322 million) and (ii) payfof
Madison River’s existing indebtedness (includingraed interest) at closing ($522 million). We fuddbe remainder of these cash outflows from
borrowings under our commercial paper program asth on hand. See Note 2 for additional informatiomcerning the acquisition of Madison River.

In July 2007, we called for redemption on Asigl4, 2007 all of our $165 million aggregate pipat amount 4.75% convertible senior debentures,
Series K, due 2032 at a redemption price of $18IPBer $1,000 principal amount of debentures, plisued and unpaid interest through August 13,
2007. In accordance with the indenture, holderdccelect to convert their debentures into shareSeasfturyTel common stock at a conversion price of
$40.455 per share prior to August 10, 2007. In ifaash redemption, holders of approximately $84#8illion aggregate principal amount of the
debentures elected to convert their holdings ipfreximately 3.7 million shares of CenturyTel commstock. The remaining $15.4 million of
outstanding debentures were retired for cash (fietupremium and accrued and unpaid interest). fesalt, we no longer have any of the Series K
debentures outstanding. We recognized a pre-taxgetdad approximately $366,000 in third quarter 2@08ated to the cash redemption portion of these
transactions.
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In May 2002, we issued and sold in an undét@nripublic offering $500 million of equity unitsach of which were priced at $25 and consisteallyil
of a beneficial interest in a CenturyTel senioramsed note (Series J, due 2007 and remarketaBIg0iH) with a principal amount of $25 and a corttta
purchase shares of CenturyTel common stock no tlaéer May 2005. Each purchase contract generallyired the holder to purchase between .6944
and .8741 of a share of CenturyTel common stocklay 16, 2005 in exchange for $25, subject to cersaljustments and exceptions.

In February 2005, we remarketed substantallpf our $500 million of outstanding Series Jisemotes due 2007 (the notes described abova)) at
interest rate of 4.628%. We received no proceedsimection with the remarketing as all net prosegdre held in trust to secure the equity unit acdd
obligation to purchase common stock from us on M&y2005. In connection with the remarketing, wechased and retired approximately $400 million
of the notes, resulting in approximately $100 roilliof remaining outstanding notes (which were sqbsstly repaid in 2007). We incurred a pre-tax
charge of approximately $6.0 million in the firstagter of 2005 related to purchasing and retirirgriotes. Proceeds to purchase such notes caméhie
February 2005 issuance of $350 million of 5% senites, Series M, due 2015 and cash on hand.

Between April 15, 2005 and May 4, 2005, weurepased and cancelled an aggregate of approxiyratemillion of our equity units in privately-
negotiated transactions with six institutional reklat an average price of $25.18 per unit. Theirging 15.9 million equity units outstanding on MHy,
2005 were settled in stock in accordance with ¢hm$ and conditions of the purchase contract tratdd a part of such unit. Accordingly, on May 16,
2005, we received proceeds of approximately $388llibn and issued approximately 12.9 million comm&hares in the aggregate. See Note 9 for
information on our accelerated share repurchasgrano which mitigated the dilutive impact of issuithgse 12.9 million shares.

As of December 31, 2007, we had available%03fillion five-year revolving credit facility whitexpires in December 2011. We also have a
commercial paper program under which borrowingseffiectively limited to the total amount availakbieder our credit facility. As of December 31, 2007,
we had no amounts outstanding under either ouitdeaglity or commercial paper program.

(6) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

In 2003, we entered into four separate falu@anterest rate hedges associated with the §@D3million principal amount of our Series L senartes,
due 2012, that pay interest at a fixed rate of 5%8.7These hedges are “fixed to variable” interatd swaps that effectively convert our fixed ratefiest
payment obligations under these notes into obbgatto pay variable rates that range from the <ixdm
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London InterBank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 3.223&0the six-month LIBOR plus 3.67%, with settlemand rate reset dates occurring each six
months through the expiration of the hedges in At@012. During 2007, we realized an average isteege under these hedges of 8.70% and interest
expense was greater than it would have otherwisa bg $4.1 million during 2007 as a result of thieedges. The aggregate fair value of such hedges at
December 31, 2007 was $3.0 million and is reflectedhe accompanying balance sheet as both an(asdetled in “Other Assets”) and as an increase to
our underlying long-term debt.

In third quarter 2007, we entered into a hetdgesaction that effectively locked-in the inteénege for the sixnonth period ended February 2008 rel
to the $500 million of Series L notes that previgusere effectively converted to variable rate sgpeirsuant to the “fixed to variable” interest raweaps
described above. This hedge did not qualify forgeedccounting treatment and therefore is adjustdéd fair value each period (with a corresponding
adjustment through the income statement). The itnpfabis transaction to 2007 results of operatisas not material.

In January 2008, we terminated all of our txgsderivatives (including those described abamg) received a net cash settlement of approximately
$20.7 million in connection therewith. See Notef@0additional information regarding the terminatiof our derivatives.

In anticipation of the issuance of Senior Nateconnection with the Madison River acquisitior entered into four cash flow hedges that effetyi
locked in the interest rate on an aggregate of $d4illbn of debt. The issuance of these Senior Hetas completed in late March 2007 with the issaanc
of $500 million of 6.0% Senior Notes, due 2017, 280 million of 5.5% Senior Notes, due 2013. Wekkxd in the interest rate on (i) $200 million of 10
year debt at 5.0675% and (i) $200 million of 1Gaydebt at 5.05%. In March 2007, upon settlemeth®hedges, we received an aggregate of $765,000
cash, which is being amortized as a reduction ef@st expense over the 10-year term of the debt.
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(7) DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Deferred credits and other liabilities at Dmber 31, 2007 and 2006 were composed of the fatigwi

December 31 2007 200¢
(Dollars in thousands

Deferred federal and state income ta $ 810,57: 673,06
Accrued postretirement benefit co 278,23( 327,33°
Deferred revenu 105,49: 99,66¢
Accrued pension cos 37,29¢ 36,78¢
Fair value of interest rate sw 834 20,59:¢
Minority interest 7,81¢ 9,22¢
Other 64,21¢ 52,96¢

$1,304,45! 1,219,63

(8) REDUCTIONS IN WORKFORCE

On March 1, 2006 and August 30, 2006, we anced workforce reductions involving an aggregatapgroximately 400 jobs, or 6% of our workfol
primarily due to increased competitive pressurabtha loss of access lines over the last seveeaby€&or 2006, we incurred a net pre-tax charge of
approximately $7.5 million (consisting of a $9.4llimh charge to operating expenses, net of a $ill®mfavorable revenue impact related to such
expenses as allowed through our rate-making prpaessnnection with severance and related costsh€$9.4 million charged to operating expenses,
approximately $8.6 million was reflected in costsefvices and products and $845,000 was reflentedliing, general and administrative expenses.

In September 2007, we announced a reducti@uioivorkforce to be completed by mid-2008 of apprately 200 jobs, primarily due to the progress
made on our Madison River integration plan andeliraination of certain customer service personne t reduced call volumes. We incurred a one-time
net pre-tax charge of approximately $2.2 milliorthe third quarter of 2007 (consisting of a $2.7ian charge to operating expenses, net of a $5%7,0
favorable revenue impact related to such expersai@aved through our rate-making process) in cotioe with the severance and related costs. Of the
$2.7 million charged to operating expenses, apprately $2.0 million is reflected in cost of sendand products and $774,000 is reflected in selling
general and administrative expenses.
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The following table reflects additional infoation regarding the severance-related liabilityZ607 and 2006 (in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 20 $ —
Amount accrued to expen 9,431
Adjustments to accrual amour (529
Amount paid (8,44%)
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 457
Amount accrued to expen 2,741
Amount paid (1,369
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 1,83¢

(9) STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY

Common stock Unissued shares of CenturyTel common stock weerved as follows:

December 31 20017
(In thousands

Incentive compensation progral 6,18t
Acquisitions 4,06¢
Employee stock purchase pl 4,48(
Dividend reinvestment pla 29¢
Conversion of convertible preferred stc 38C
15,407

In accordance with stock repurchase prograsssribed below, we repurchased 10.2 million shdoes$460.7 million), 21.4 million shares (for
$802.2 million) and 16.4 million shares (for $55m8lion) in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. B#96 and 2005 repurchases included 14.36 million
and 12.9 million shares, respectively, repurchdfmda total price of $528.4 and $437.5 millionspectively) under accelerated share repurchase
agreements (see below for additional information).

In August 2007, our board of directors authed a $750 million share repurchase program whigires on September 30, 2009, unless extended by
the board. Through December 31, 2007, we had repeed approximately 3.6 million shares for $158ilian under this program.

On February 21, 2006, our Board of Directgpraved a stock repurchase program authorizing vspgurchase up to $1.0 billion of our common stock
and terminated the approximately $13 million renmarbalance of our existing $200 million share mepase program approved in February 2005. In
February 2006, we repurchased the first $500 milibcommon stock through accelerated share repaech
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agreements entered into with various investmenkfiarepurchasing and retiring approximately 14.36on shares of common stock at an average initial
price of $34.83 per share. We funded repurchasasrithese agreements through short-term borrovandsash on hand. As part of the accelerated shar
repurchase transactions, we simultaneously entetedorward contracts with the investment bankerehy the investment banks purchased an aggregat
of 14.36 million shares of our common stock durting terms of the contracts. At the end of the relpase period in mid-July 2006, we paid an aggregate
of approximately $28.4 million cash to the investinkeanks to compensate them for the difference éatvtheir weighted average purchase price during
the repurchase period and the initial average piéereflected such settlement amount as an adfuntto retained earnings in our financial statement
during 2006. We repurchased the remaining $500anithf common stock of this program through openkattransactions through June 2007.

In late May 2005, we entered into acceleratete repurchase agreements with three investraelkshvhereby we repurchased and retired
approximately 12.9 million shares of our commorcktfor an aggregate of $416.5 million cash (orratial average price of $32.34 per share). We fuh
this purchase using the proceeds received fromsattement of the equity units mentioned in Notn8 from cash on hand. As part of the accelerated
share repurchase transactions, we simultaneoutdyeehinto forward contracts with the investmeniksawhereby the investment banks purchased an
aggregate of 12.9 million shares of our commonlkstheing the term of the contracts. At the endhef tepurchase period, we paid an aggregate of
approximately $21.0 million cash to the investmiesmiks to compensate them for the difference betwezinweighted average purchase price during the
repurchase period and the initial average priceréflected such settlement amount as an adjustroguatid-in capital.

During 2006, our stockholders’ equity was regtliby approximately $97.9 million upon the adaptd SFAS 158 and increased approximately
$9.7 million upon the application of SAB 108. Seet®&\1 for additional information.

Under CenturyTel’'s Articles of Incorporatioach share of common stock beneficially owned comtirsly by the same person since May 30, 1987
generally entitles the holder thereof to ten vaesshare. All other shares entitle the holdemte wote per share. At December 31, 2007, the helfer
3.6 million shares of common stock (or 26% of atak voting power) were entitled to ten votes gears.

Preferred stock As of December 31, 2007, we had 2.0 million sbafeauthorized preferred stock, $25 par valuespare. At December 31, 2007 and
2006, there were 279,000 and 298,000 shares, tesggcof outstanding convertible preferred stoklkalders of outstanding CenturyTel preferred stock
are entitled to receive cumulative dividends, reegreferential distributions equal to $25 per shalus unpaid dividends upon CenturyTel’s liquidati
and vote as a single class with the holders of comstock.
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Shareholders’ Rights Plan On November 1, 2006, our 1996 rights agreememt éach preference share purchase right issueselihger) lapsed in
accordance with its stated terms.
(10) POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

We sponsor health care plans (which use amBkeee31 measurement date) that provide postretitelrenefits to all qualified retired employees. Ove
the past few years, in connection with negotiatiegain union contracts, we amended certain retioedribution and retirement eligibility provision$
our plan.

The following is a reconciliation of the beging and ending balances for the benefit obligatind the plan assets.

December 31 2007 200¢ 200t
(Dollars in thousands

Change in benefit obligatic

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $357,41° 353,94: 305,72(
Service cos 6,92 6,98 6,28¢
Interest cos 20,13: 18,98( 16,71¢
Participant contribution 2,01¢ 1,58: 1,637
Plan amendmen (4,552 (7,97¢) 23,28¢
Acquisition 2,271 — —
Direct subsidy receipt 1,29¢ 717 —
Actuarial (gain) lost (60,317 31¢ 16,39!
Benefits paic (18,569 (17,129 (16,1079
Benefit obligation at end of ye $306,63: 357,41 353,94
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y $ 30,08( 29,54¢ 29,57(
Return on plan asse 1,91¢ 3,28( 1,44(
Employer contribution 12,88( 12,80( 13,00(
Participant contribution 2,01¢ 1,58: 1,637
Benefits paic (18,569 (17,129 (16,109
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $ 28,32 30,08( 29,54t
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Net periodic postretirement benefit cost f002, 2006 and 2005 included the following composient

Year ended December & 2007 200¢€ 200t
(Dollars in thousands
Service cos $ 6,92 6,982 6,28¢
Interest cos 20,13¢ 18,98( 16,71¢
Expected return on plan ass (2,4872) (2,437) (2,440
Amortization of unrecognized actuarial Ic 3,59¢ 3,71¢ 2,91¢
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cre (2,020 (855) (1,876
Net periodic postretirement benefit ¢ $ 26,14¢ 26,38¢ 21,607

The following table sets forth the amountsogrized as liabilities for postretirement beneditecember 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

December 31 2007 200¢ 200¢
(Dollars in thousands

Benefit obligatior $(306,63)) (357,41) (353,94)

Fair value of plan asse 28,324 30,08( 29,54¢

Unamortized prior service crec — — (1,726

Unrecognized net actuarial lg — — 82,66(

Accrued benefit cos $(278,309 (327,33) (243,46

In accordance with SFAS 158, the unamortizgat gervice credit ($11.4 million as of Decembéy 3007) and unrecognized net actuarial loss
($15.1 million as of December 31, 2007) componéaige been reflected as a $2.8 million after-taxdase to accumulated other comprehensive loss
within stockholders’ equity. The estimated amouramortization expense (income) of the above urgezed items that will be amortized from
accumulated other comprehensive loss and refletedcomponent of net periodic pension cost d@@ag is ($2.6 million) for the prior service credit

Assumptions used in accounting for postreteehibenefits as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 were:

2007 200€
Determination of benefit obligatic
Discount rate 6.5(% 5.7t
Healthcare cost increase trend rates (Medical/Aptsn Drug)
Following year 7.0%/10.% 8.0/11.(
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed tlinge¢he ultimate cost trend ral 5.0%/5.% 5.0/5.(
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate cost treta 2010/201: 2010/201:
Determination of benefit co
Discount rate 5.75% 5.5C
Expected return on plan ass 8.25% 8.2t
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We employ a total return investment approabkeneby a mix of equities and fixed income investta@me used to maximize the long-term return of
plan assets for a prudent level of risk. The intdrthis strategy is to minimize plan expenses bperforming plan liabilities over the long termisk
tolerance is established through careful consideratf plan liabilities, plan funded status andmate financial condition. We measure and monitor
investment risk on an ongoing basis through anliaiaility measurements, periodic asset studiesggribdic portfolio reviews.

Our postretirement benefit plan weighted-agerasset allocations at December 31, 2007 and [2p@6set category are as follows:

2007 200¢
Equity securities 55.£% 60.1
Debt securitie: 26.€ 27.€
Other 17.4 12.C
Total 100.(% 100.(

In determining the expected return on plar@ssve study historical markets and apply the lyidecepted capital market principle that asseth wi
higher volatility and risk generate a greater netover the long term. We evaluate current marketofa such as inflation and interest rates before
determining long-term capital market assumptions.aMo review peer data and historical returnd&zk for reasonableness.

Assumed health care cost trends have a signifieffect on the amounts reported for postretr@rbenefit plans. A one-percentage-point change in
assumed health care cost rates would have thevialipeffects:

1-Percentac 1-Percentac
Point Increas Point Decreas
(Dollars in thousands
Effect on annual total of service and interest cashponent: $ 27¢ (339)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligati $  3,94¢ (4,790

We expect to contribute approximately $16.Wiom to our postretirement benefit plan in 2008.
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Our estimated future projected benefit paymemider our postretirement benefit plan are asvial

Before Medicare Medicare Net of

Year Subsidy Subsidy Medicare Subsid
(Dollars in thousands

2008 $ 18,16: 1,41¢ 16,74«
2009 $ 19,97 1,62¢ 18,34¢
2010 $ 22,04: 1,83¢ 20,21(
2011 $ 23,91¢ 2,05¢ 21,85]
2012 $ 24,96¢ 2,30(¢ 22,66¢
201:-2017 $136,35° 8,23¢ 128,12:

(11) DEFINED BENEFIT AND OTHER RETIREMENT PLANS

We sponsor defined benefit pension plansdbstantially all employees. At December 31, 200& also sponsored a Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan to provide certain officers witlpgiemental retirement, death and disability besefife use a December 31 measurement date forrall ou
plans.

The following is a reconciliation of the beging and ending balances for the aggregate bestdfgation and the plan assets for our above-rafsre
defined benefit plans.

December 31 2007 200¢ 200t
(Dollars in thousands

Change in benefit obligatic

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $474,30: 460,59¢ 418,63(
Service cos 16,43! 17,67¢ 15,33:
Interest cos 28,18( 25,93t 23,99
Plan amendmen 61 (3,82%) 31
Acquisition 15,26¢ — —
Actuarial (gain) los: (16,159 6,78¢ 28,01¢
Settlement: (410) (13,239 —
Benefits paic (48,24() (19,647 (25,400
Benefit obligation at end of ye $469,43° 474,30: 460,59¢
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y $452,29: 407,36° 363,98:
Return on plan asse 41,531 46,29 25,45
Acquisition 12,50z — —
Employer contribution 1,51¢ 31,50: 43,33t
Benefits paic (48,650 (32,879 (25,407
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $459,19¢ 452,29: 407,36°
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Net periodic pension expense for 2007, 2062005 included the following components:

Year ended December & 2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Service cos $ 16,43 17,67¢ 15,33
Interest cos 28,18( 25,93t 23,99:
Expected return on plan ass (36,780 (32,706 (29,224
Settlement: 41C 3,34¢ —
Recognized net loss: 7,367 9,67( 6,32¢
Net amortization and deferr (137) 19 28¢
Net periodic pension expen $ 15471 23,94 16,71¢

The following table sets forth the combinedrd’ funded status and amounts recognized in cwsdimlated balance sheet at December 31, 2007, 200¢
and 2005.

December 31 2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands

Benefit obligatior $(469,43) (474,307) (460,599
Fair value of plan asse 459,19¢ 452,29 407,36"
Unrecognized transition ass — — (39¢)
Unamortized prior service ca — — 3,10¢
Unrecognized net actuarial lo — — 123,87¢
Net amount recognize $ (10,239 (22,009 73,36(

In accordance with SFAS 158, the unamortizgat gervice credit ($941,000 as of December 3D,72@nd unrecognized net actuarial loss
($75.4 million as of December 31, 2007) componbaige been reflected as a $74.4 million net redod®d5.9 million after-tax) to accumulated other
comprehensive loss within stockholders’ equity. €sémated amount of amortization expense (incavh#)e above unrecognized amounts that will be
amortized from accumulated other comprehensivedassreflected as a component of net periodic pensdst for 2008 are (i) $65,000 for the prior
service cost and (ii) $3.3 million for the net auial loss.

Amounts recognized on the balance sheet doofsis

December 31 2007 200¢

(Dollars in thousands
Pension asset (reflected in Other Asse $ 28,53¢ 16,187
Accrued expenses and other current liabiliti (2,479 (1,417
Other deferred credits (37,29¢ (36,789
Net amount recognize $(10,239 (22,009
* In accordance with SFAS 158, those plans that eeefunded are reflected as assets; those planarthainderfunded are reflected as liabilit

Our aggregate accumulated benefit obligatenfdDecember 31, 2007 and 2006 was $410.6 miflimh$407.2 million, respectively.
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Assumptions used in accounting for pensionpks of December 31, 2007 and 2006 were:

2007 200¢
Determination of benefit obligatic
Discount rate 6.3(% 5.8C
Weighted average rate of compensation incr 4.C% 4.C
Determination of benefit co
Discount rate 5.8(% 5.5C
Weighted average rate of compensation incr 4.C% 4.C
Expected return on plan ass 8.25% 8.2

We employ a total return investment approabkneby a mix of equities and fixed income investteeme used to maximize the long-term return of
plan assets for a prudent level of risk. The intdrhis strategy is to minimize plan expenses biperforming plan liabilities over the long termisk
tolerance is established through careful consiamratf plan liabilities, plan funded status andpmate financial condition. We measure and monitor
investment risk on an ongoing basis through anlafaility measurements, periodic asset studiesg@ribdic portfolio reviews.

Our pension plans weighted-average assetatitots at December 31, 2007 and 2006 by assetargtage as follows:

2007 200¢
Equity securities 70.8% 72.2
Debt securitie: 27.2 25.¢
Other 2.C 2.C
Total 100.(% 100.(

In determining the expected return on plar@ssve study historical markets and apply the lyidecepted capital market principle that asseth wi
higher volatility and risk generate a greater netover the long term. We evaluate current marketbfa such as inflation and interest rates before
determining long-term capital market assumptions.aMo review peer data and historical returnd&ck for reasonableness.

The amount of the 2008 contribution will beatenined based on a number of factors, includirgrésults of the 2008 actuarial valuation repottthis
time, the amount of the 2008 contribution is nob\n.

Our estimated future projected benefit paymemnider our defined benefit pension plans are lasyfe 2008 — $32.5 million; 2009 — $33.4 million;
2010 — $34.9 million; 2011 — $36.0 million; 2012 $37.7 million; and 2013-2017 — $207.8 million.
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Through December 31, 2006, we also sponsardehgployee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”) which eevaost employees with one year of service
and is funded by our contributions determined alipiby the Board of Directors. Our expense reldtethe ESOP during 2006 and 2005 was $7.9 million
and $7.3 million, respectively. Our contributiontke ESOP was discontinued after 2006.

We also sponsor qualified profit sharing plpossuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Reve@uade (the “401(k) Plans”) which are available to
substantially all employees. Our matching contims to the 401(k) Plans were $10.6 million in 2088.6 million in 2006 and $8.5 million in 2005.

(12) INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense included in the Consol@i&tmtements of Income for the years ended Dece&ihe2007, 2006 and 2005 was as follows:

Year ended December & 2007 200¢€ 200t
(Dollars in thousands
Federal
Current $192,42: 146,20: 139,83¢
Deferred 2,22( 37,68 35,49¢
State
Current 7,13( 25,23¢ (6,075
Deferred (1,209 11,99¢ 34,03
$200,57: 221,12: 203,29:
Income tax expense was allocated as follows:
Year ended December & 2007 200¢€ 200%
(Dollars in thousands
Income tax expense in the consolidated stateméimsame $200,57: 221,12. 203,29:
Stockholder’ equity:
Compensation expense for tax purposes in exceamsiofints recognized for financial reportir
purposes (6,427) (12,039 (6,267)
Tax effect of the change in accumulated other cetmgnsive income (los 34,98t (63,839 (801
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The following is a reconciliation from the &tiry federal income tax rate to our effectiveame tax rate:

Year ended December 2 2007 200¢€ 200t
(Percentage of p-tax income}

Statutory federal income tax re 35.(% 35.C 35.C

State income taxes, net of federal income tax lie 2.8 4.1 34

Release of previously unrecognized tax ben (5.9 — —

Other, ne: (0.) (1.7) (.6)

Effective income tax rat 32.4% 37.4 37.€

In 2007, we recognized a net after-tax beméfegpproximately $32.7 million (which includesatdd interest and is net of federal benefit) relatethe
release of previously unrecognized tax benefite. I8dow for additional information. Income tax empe was reduced by approximately $6.4 million in
2006 due to the resolution of various income teditaigsues.

The tax effects of temporary differences tieate rise to significant portions of the deferraxl assets and deferred tax liabilities at Decerthe007
and 2006 were as follows:

December 31 20017 200€
(Dollars in thousands

Deferred tax asse

Postretirement and pension benefit ct $ 109,18:. 131,89(
Net state operating loss carryforwa 31,64¢ 61,87¢
Other employee benefi 32,16¢ 24,90°
Other 49,841 45,62¢
Gross deferred tax ass: 222,83t 264,30(
Less valuation allowanc (30,90)) (61,049
Net deferred tax asse 191,92¢ 203,25
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment, primarily due tordeation difference (373,18) (334,52)
Goodwill and other intangible ass: (604,809 (503,12¢)
Other (12,900 (27,010
Gross deferred tax liabilitie (990,89() (864,65°)
Net deferred tax liabilit $(798,96%) (661,406

Of the $799.0 million net deferred tax liatyilas of December 31, 2007, approximately $810I/6amiis reflected as a net long-term liability (i®ther
deferred credits”) and approximately $11.6 millisrreflected as a net current deferred tax asséQther current assets”).

We establish valuation allowances when necgs$eaeduce the deferred tax assets to amounexpect to realize. As of December 31, 2007, we had
available tax benefits associated with net sta@atng loss carryforwards, which expire througR200f $31.6 million. The ultimate realization bkt
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benefits of the carryforwards is dependent uporgtireeration of future taxable income during theqeky in which those temporary differences become
deductible. We consider our scheduled reversaétdrded tax liabilities, projected future taxableome, and tax planning strategies in making this
assessment. As a result of such assessment, weag$30.9 million through the valuation allowaraseof December 31, 2007 as it is more likely that
that this amount of net operating loss carryforsasd! not be utilized prior to expiration.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Stadgd@oard issued Interpretation No. 48, “AccounfimgUncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 48”), which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in incotages recognized in financial statements. FIN 4fiired us, effective January 1, 2007, to recogarm
measure tax benefits taken or expected to be taka&max return and disclose uncertainties in inedax positions.

Upon the initial adoption of FIN 48, we recedda cumulative effect adjustment to retained egsas of January 1, 2007 (which increased retained
earnings by approximately $478,000 as of such dataded to certain previously unrecognized taxefigsithat did not meet the criteria for liability
recognition upon the adoption of FIN 48.

During 2007, primarily as a result of certasues being effectively settled through examimaéind the lapse of statute of limitations, our¢agense
was reduced approximately $32.7 million (includietpted interest and net of federal benefit) upenrelease of amounts that were previously refteat
a liability for unrecognized tax benefits.

The following table reflects the activity afilogross unrecognized tax benefits (excluding lttérest and any related federal benefit) during720
(amounts expressed in thousands).

Unrecognized tax benefits at January 1, 2 $ 55,90¢
Increase in tax positions taken in the current: 50C
Decrease due to the reversal of tax positions takarprior yea (19,617
Decrease from the lapse of statute of limitati (2,357
Decrease from settlements p (8,657)
Increase from unrecognized tax benefits of acquimdpany 8,047
Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, Z $ 33,82¢

Of the above ending balance of $33.8 millimpproximately $21.5 million is included as a comgminof “Deferred credits and other liabilities” atfed
remainder is included in “Accrued income taxes'w# were to prevail on all unrecognized tax besefitorded on our balance sheet, approximately
$26.1 million (including interest and net of feddvanefit) would benefit the effective tax rate.
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Our policy is to reflect accrued interest asst@d with unrecognized tax benefits as incomeWé had accrued interest (presented before refated
benefits) of approximately $20.7 million as of Janul, 2007 and $12.9 million as of December 3D;720

We file income tax returns, including retufasour subsidiaries, with federal, state and Igegkdictions. Our uncertain income tax positi@ns

related to tax years that are currently under oraia subject to examination by the relevant taxdnthorities. Our open income tax years by major
jurisdiction are as follows

Jurisdiction Open tax yea
Federal 199¢-current
State
Georgia 200z-current
Louisiana 200%-current
Oregon 200%-current
Wisconsin 2002-current
Other state 200z-current

Additionally, it is possible that certain jsdictions in which we do not believe we have amime tax filing responsibility, and accordingly didt file &

return, may attempt to assess a liability. Sineegriod for assessing additional liability typlgdlegins upon the filing of a return, it is podsithat
certain jurisdictions could assess tax for yeaisrpo the open tax years disclosed above.

Based on (i) the potential outcomes of theggong examinations, (ii) the expiration of statafdimitations for specific jurisdictions, (iiihe
negotiated settlement of certain disputed issue@y)a jurisdiction’s administrative practicesjs reasonably possible that the related unreceginiax
benefits for tax positions previously taken mayraase by up to $14 million within the next 12 manthhe actual amount of such decrease, if any, will
depend on several future developments and eveatsy of which are outside our control.
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(13) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following is a reconciliation of the nuratars and denominators of the basic and dilutedirgs per share computations:

Year ended December & 2007 200¢€ 200t
(Dollars, except per sha
amounts, and shares in thousar

Income (Numerator,
Net income $418,37( 370,02° 334,47¢
Dividends applicable to preferred stc (36¢) (380 (39€)
Net income applicable to common stock for compubiagic earnings per she 418,00: 369,64 334,08
Interest on convertible debentures, net of 2,832 4.82¢ 4 87¢
Dividends applicable to preferred stc 36€& 38C 39€
Net income as adjusted for purposes of computihgedl earnings per sha $421,20: 374,85! 339,35¢
Shares (Denominator
Weighted average number of shai

Outstanding during peric 110,18 117,36 131,04«

Nonvested restricted sto (823 (692) (203
Weighted average number of shares outstandinggipeniod for computing basic earnings per

share 109,36( 116,67: 130,84:
Incremental common shares attributable to dilusieeurities

Shares issuable under convertible secur 2,951 4,497 4,511

Shares issuable upon settlement of accelerated styurchase agreeme — 36E 37¢

Shares issuable under incentive compensation 783 70C 357
Number of shares as adjusted for purposes of camgpdiluted earnings per she 113,09 122,22¢ 136,08
Basic earnings per sha $ 3.8 3.17 2.5
Diluted earnings per sha $ 3.7z 3.07 2.4¢

In July 2007, we called for redemption on Asigl4, 2007 all of our $165 million aggregate pipat amount 4.75% convertible senior debentures,
Series K, due 2032. In accordance with the indentuslders could elect to convert their debenturesshares of CenturyTel common stock at a
conversion price of $40.455 per share prior to Aidd, 2007. In lieu of cash redemption, holderapgroximately $149.6 million aggregate principal
amount of the debentures elected to convert thadditgs into approximately 3.7 million shares ofnleyTel common stock.

In connection with calculating our diluted miags per share for our accelerated share repwgiragram discussed in Note 9, we assumed the
accelerated share repurchase market price adjustmoeid be settled through our issuance of addii@hares of common stock, which was allowed (at

our discretion) in the agreement. Accordingly, éiséimated shares issuable based on the fair valhe o
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forward contract was included in the weighted agershares outstanding for the computation of dilernings per share.

The weighted average number of shares of camstaxk subject to issuance under outstanding ptivat were excluded from the computation of
diluted earnings per share because the exercise gfrithe option was greater than the average rprie@ of the common stock was 792,000 for 2007,
1.0 million for 2006 and 1.8 million for 2005.

(14) STOCK COMPENSATION PROGRAMS

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted theiprons of Statement of Financial Accounting Staddado. 123 (Revised 2004), “Share-Based
Payment” (“SFAS 123(R)"). SFAS 123(R) requires aisrteasure our cost of awarding employees with gdustruments based upon the fair value of the
award on the grant date. Such cost will be recaghés compensation expense over the period dutiighwhe employee is required to provide service in
exchange for the award. Compensation cost is alsagnized over the applicable remaining vestingopeor any outstanding options that were not fully
vested as of January 1, 2006. We did not have augated outstanding options as of January 1, 2i0@é sur Board of Directors accelerated the vesting
of all unvested options effective as of December2BD5, as described below. We elected the modifiedpective transition method as permitted by
SFAS 123(R); accordingly, we did not restate ppieriod results.

We currently maintain programs which allow Baard of Directors, through its Compensation Cottenj to grant incentives to certain employees and
our outside directors in any one or a combinatibseveral forms, including incentive and non-queadifstock options; stock appreciation rights; reted
stock; and performance shares. As of December@®17,2ve had reserved approximately 6.2 million seaf common stock which may be issued in
connection with awards under our current incenpiregrams. We also offer an Employee Stock PurcRése whereby employees can purchase our
common stock at a 15% discount based on the lofstiedbeginning or ending stock price during reitigrisix-month periods stipulated in such program.

As of December 31, 2005, we had approxima&edymillion options outstanding from prior grardl,of which were issued with exercise prices githe
equal to or exceeding the then-current market pAdeof these options were exercisable as a rasfudictions taken by our Board of Directors in
December 2005 to accelerate the vesting of all stedeoptions outstanding, effective as of DecerBtieR005, in order to eliminate the recognition of
compensation expense which otherwise would have tEmiired upon the effectiveness of SFAS 123(R).
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During 2007 we granted 983,920 stock optioitk ®xercise prices at market value. All of thepéans expire ten years after the date of grantrenc:
a three-year vesting period. The weighted averagevélue of each option was estimated as of the digrant to be $14.57 using a Black-Scholesoopti
pricing model using the following assumptions: dimd yield- .6%; expected volatility-28% (executofécers) and 25% (all other employees); weighted
average risk free interest rate-4.6% (rates raffigea 3.5% to 5.1%); and expected term-6.5 yearsdetive officers) and 4.5 years (all other emplayee

During 2006 we granted 1,007,175 stock optieitls exercise prices at market value. The weiglaeetage fair value of each of the 2006 options was
estimated as of the date of grant to be $12.75uwminoption-pricing model with the following assuiops: dividend yield-.7%; expected volatility-30%;
weighted average risk-free interest rate-4.65%¢reinged from 4.28% to 5.22%); and expected ofifmr— 7 years (executive officers) and 5 yealk (a
other employees).

During 2005 we granted 1,015,025 stock optieitls exercise prices at market value. The weiglaeetage fair value of each of the 2005 options was
estimated as of the date of grant to be $12.68yuminoption-pricing model with the following assuiops: dividend yield-.7%; expected volatility-30%;
weighted average risk-free interest rate-4.2%;expkcted option life - seven years.

The expected volatility was based on the hisabvolatility of our common stock over the 6&nd 4.5year terms mentioned above. The expected
was determined based on the historical exerciséa@faiture rates for similar grants.

Stock option transactions during 2007, 2006 2005 were as follows:

Remaining Aggregate
Number Average contractua intrinsic
of options price term (in years value
Outstanding December 31, 20 6,713,55i $28.7¢
Granted 1,015,02! 25.0¢
Exercisec (1,664,62) 33.6¢
Forfeited/Cancelle (68,500 31.4(
Outstanding December 31, 20 5,995,45i $30.6:
Granted 1,007,17! 35.9¢
Exercisec (3,047,91)) 29.1¢
Forfeited/Cancelle (58,91¢) 32.5¢
Outstanding December 31, 20 3,895,79! $33.1¢
Granted 983,92( 45.7¢
Exercisec (1,204,16)) 32.1¢
Forfeited/Cancelle (43,350 40.7z
Outstanding December 31, 20 3,632,20! $36.8( 6.8 $16,926,00
Exercisable December 31, 20 2,094,37. $32.9¢ 5.3 $17,752,00
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In addition, during 2007, we issued 288,89&reh of restricted stock to certain employees amaotside directors at a weighted-average price of
$45.89 per share. During 2006, we issued 293,94R:stof restricted stock to certain employees amaotside directors at a weighted-average price of
$36.02 per share. During 2005, we issued 286, 18R:stof restricted stock at a weighted-average mfi&33.47 per share. Such restricted stock vests
over a five-year period (for employees) and a thyesr period (for outside directors). Nonvestedrigt®d stock transactions during 2007 were a®vVadl

Number Average gran

of shares date fair value
Nonvested at January 1, 20 712,08t $32.8¢
Granted 288,89¢ 45.8¢
Vested (142,82) 35.1:
Forfeited (11,289 37.1C
Nonvested at December 31, 2C 846,88( $36.8¢

The total compensation cost for share-basgthpat arrangements in 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $2illion, $11.9 million and $4.7 million,
respectively. We recognized a tax benefit relatesiich arrangements of approximately $7.5 millim2007, $4.5 million in 2006 and $1.8 million in
2005. As of December 31, 2007, there was $29.9amithf total unrecognized compensation cost rel&detie share-based payment arrangements, which
is expected to be recognized over a weighted-aegragod of 2.8 years.

We received net cash proceeds of $38.7 mitharing 2007 in connection with option exerciselse Total intrinsic value of options exercised (the
amount by which the market price of the stock andhte of exercise exceeded the market price cfttduk on the date of grant) was $17.2 million dgri
2007, $31.0 million during 2006 and $16.3 millioarithg 2005. The excess tax benefit realized framalsbptions exercised and restricted stock released
during 2007 was $6.4 million. The total fair valoferestricted stock that vested during 2007, 2@, 2005 was $6.4 million, $2.6 million, and $2@®0
respectively.

Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted farkstmmpensation plans using the intrinsic valuehmeétn accordance with Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Hoyees,” as allowed by Statement of Financial Aetting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”). Options have lgranted at a price either equal to or exceediagdhbn-current market price. Accordingly, we did
not recognize compensation cost in connection isghing stock options prior to January 1, 200@€olhpensation cost for our options had been
determined consistent with SFAS 123(R), we wouldeh@ecognized stock-based compensation expen20@ar of approximately $12.5 million after-tax
and our net income, basic earnings per share dutedliiearnings per share for 2005 would have b&2a.9 million, $2.46 and $2.40, respectively, all
presented on a pro forma
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basis, as compared to actual net income, basiingarper share and diluted earnings per share3£.$3nillion, $2.55 and $2.49, respectively.

(15) GAIN ON ASSET DISPOSITIONS

In the third quarter of 2007, we recordedexfaix gain of approximately $10.4 million relatedthe sale of our interest in a real estate pastirIn
April 2006, upon dissolution of the Rural Telephd@enk (“RTB”), we received $122.8 million in casbr redemption of our investment in stock of the
RTB and recorded a pre-tax gain of approximatell/788 million in the second quarter of 2006 relatethis transaction. Upon final distribution of all
funds related to the RTB dissolution in Novembed20ve received an additional $5.2 million cash erwbrded a pre-tax gain of such amount. Such
gains are included in “Other income (expense)”’ on@onsolidated Statements of Income.

(16) SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW AND OTHER DISCLOSURES

The amount of interest actually paid, netrobants capitalized of $1.3 million, $1.9 milliomd$2.8 million during 2007, 2006 and 2005, respebt,
was $205.2 million, $191.9 million, and $194.8 ioifl during 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Inedaxes paid were $185.3 million in 2007,
$212.4 million in 2006, and $88.8 million in 200Bcome tax refunds totaled $1.1 million in 2007,@/illion in 2006, and $4.9 million in 2005.

We have consummated the acquisitions of varaperations, along with certain other assetsndutie three years ended December 31, 2007. In
connection with these acquisitions, the followisgets were acquired and liabilities assumed:

Year ended December & 2007 200¢ 200%
(Dollars in thousands

Property, plant and equipment, | $ 208,31 — 66,45(

Goodwill 579,78( — —

Long-term debt, deferred credits and other liabili (654,69 — —

Other assets and liabilities, excluding cash arsth eguivalent 173,40: 5,222 9,00:

Decrease in cash due to acquisiti $ 306,30! 5,22: 75,45:

See Note 2 for additional information relatedur acquisition of Madison River in 2007.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Staddd@oard issued EITF 06-3, “How Taxes Collectedhi-fustomers and Remitted to Governmental
Authorities Should be Presented in the Income Btet” (“EITF 06-3"), which requires disclosure tietaccounting policy for any tax assessed by a
governmental
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authority that is directly imposed on a revenuedpimng transaction. We adopted the disclosure rements of EITF 06-3 effective January 1, 2007.

We collect various taxes from our customeid subsequently remit such funds to governmentélaaities. Substantially all of these taxes are réed
through the balance sheet. We are required toiboigrto several universal service fund progranssgemerally include a surcharge amount on our
customers’ bills which is designed to recover camtdbution costs. Such amounts are reflected groas basis in our statement of income (included in
both operating revenues and expenses) and aggiesyateoximately $41 million for 2007, $40 millioarf2006 and $37 million for 2005.

(17) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following table presents the carrying antswand estimated fair values of certain of ouaficial instruments at December 31, 2007 and 2006.
Carrying Fair

Amount value
(Dollars in thousands

December 31, 200

Financial assel

Interest rate sway $  3,04¢ 3,04¢(2)

Other $ 106,09¢ 110,2342)
Financial liabilities

Long-term debt (including current maturitie $3,014,25! 2,975,70(2)

Interest rate sway $ 834 834(2)

Other $ 57,63% 57,631(2)

December 31, 200

Financial assel $ 110,13¢ 110,1342)
Financial liabilities
Long-term debt (including current maturitie $2,567,86. 2,522,34(1)
Interest rate sway $ 20,59: 20,59%2)
Other $ 51,61« 51,6142)

(1) Fair value was estimated by discounting the scleebpayment streams to present value based upacatently available to us for similar de
(2) Fair value was estimated by us to approximate g&gryalue or is based on current market informai

We believe the carrying amount of cash antl eagliivalents, accounts receivable, shemna debt, accounts payable and accrued expenpesxapate
the fair value due to the short maturity of thesruments and have not been reflected in the atadole.

A-70




Table of Contents

(18) BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We are an integrated communications compagg@ed primarily in providing an array of communioas services to our customers, including local
exchange, long distance, Internet access and baoddiervices. We strive to maintain our customliatiosships by, among other things, bundling our
service offerings to provide our customers withomplete offering of integrated communications sesi As a result of increased bundling of our local
exchange and long distance service offerings, Inéginin 2006, we have combined the revenues of sffehings into a category entitled “Voice”.
Beginning in 2007, revenues from voice mail sersipeeviously reflected in “Other” revenues werdassified to “Voice” revenues. Prior periods have
been restated to insure comparability.

Our operating revenues for our products amdaes include the following components:

Year ended December & 2007 200¢€ 200t
(Dollars in thousands
Voice $ 889,96( 871,76 902,51(
Network acces 941,50¢ 878,70: 959,83!¢
Data 460,75¢ 351,49¢ 318,77(
Fiber transport and CLE 159,31° 149,08t 115,45:
Other 204,70: 196,67¢ 182,68(
Total operating revenut $2,656,24. 2,447,733 2,479,25,

For a description of each of the sources vémees, see “Management’s Discussion and Analygtinancial Condition and Results of Operations —
Operating Revenues” elsewhere in this report.

Interexchange carriers and other accountsvaole on the balance sheets are primarily amoduntsfrom various long distance carriers, principall
AT&T, and several large local exchange operatinganies.

(19) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Construction expenditures and investmentshmiales, buildings and equipment during 2008 atienesed to be $300 million. We generally do notes
into firm, committed contracts for such activities.

In Barbrasue Beattie and James Sovis, on behtilemselves and all others similarly situatedCenturyTel, Inc, filed on October 28, 2002, in the
United States District Court for the Eastern Degtaf Michigan (Case No. 02-10277), the plaintéflege that we unjustly and unreasonably billed
customers for inside wire maintenance services sae#t unspecified monetary damages and injunathief under various legal theories on behalf of a
purported class of over two million customers im talephone markets. On March 10, 2006, the Caartified a class of plaintiffs and issued a rulthgt
the billing
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descriptions we used for these services duringppnoaimately 18-month period between October 208 iMay 2002 were legally insufficient. Our
appeal of this class certification decision wasie@&nOur preliminary analysis indicates that wéehilless than $10 million for inside wire maintecan
services under the billing descriptions and timeqaks specified in the District Court ruling dess&d above. Should other billing descriptions be
determined to be inadequate or if claims are altbfee additional time periods, the amount of outgmtial exposure could increase significantly. The
Court’s order does not specify the award of damathpesscope and amounts of which, if any, remabjesai to additional fact-finding and resolution of
what we believe are valid defenses to plaintiffaras. Accordingly, we cannot reasonably estimhgeamount or range of possible loss at this time.
However, considering the one-time nature of anyeask result, we do not believe that the ultimateame of this litigation will have a material adser
effect on our financial position or on-going reswf operations.

From time to time, we are involved in otheog@edings incidental to our business, includingiadtrative hearings of state public utility comsimns
relating primarily to rate making, actions relatitagemployee claims, occasional grievance heatiefsre labor regulatory agencies and miscellaneous
third party tort actions. The outcome of these otiteceedings is not predictable. However, we ddoetieve that the ultimate resolution of thesesoth
proceedings, after considering available insurammserage, will have a material adverse effect anfioancial position, results of operations or céelws.

(20) SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In January 2008, we terminated all of our &xgs“fixed to variable” interest rate swaps asateil with the full $500 million principal amount ofir
Series L senior notes, due 2012. In connection thightermination of these derivatives, we receiedggregate of approximately $25.6 million, which
will be amortized as a reduction of interest exgehsough 2012.

In addition, in January 2008 we also termidatertain other derivatives that were not deemedskteffective hedges. Upon the termination of these
derivatives, we paid an aggregate of approxima®é!9 million. We expect to record a $3.4 millioregax charge in the first quarter of 2008 relatethe
settlement of these derivatives.

Kk kkkk kK%
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CENTURYTEL, INC.

Consolidated Quarterly Income Statement Information

(Unaudited)
First Seconc Third Fourth
quarter quarter quarter quarter
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amol
(unaudited’

2007
Operating revenue $600,85! 689,99 708,83 656,56:
Operating incomi $168,08: 231,83¢ 224,18! 168,97:
Net income $ 77,87( 112,26 113,20: 115,03
Basic earnings per sha $ .7C 1.0z 1.04 1.0
Diluted earnings per sha $ .68 1.0C 1.01 1.04
2006
Operating revenue $611,29: 608,90° 619,83 607,69"
Operating incomi $157,92: 164,99: 168,94 173,67¢
Net income $ 69,26( 152,21( 76,32« 72,23
Basic earnings per shz $ .57 1.32 .6€ .63
Diluted earnings per sha $ .55 1.2¢ .64 .62
2005
Operating revenue $595,28: 606,41: 657,08! 620,47:
Operating incomi $176,86( 185,88: 201,24: 172,41¢
Net income $ 79,61¢ 85,11¢ 91,41 78,33¢
Basic earnings per shz $ .6 .65 .7C .6C
Diluted earnings per sha $ .56 .64 .6€ .5¢

The results of operations of the Madison Riweperties are reflected in the above table sul#go the April 30, 2007 acquisition date. Incet
quarter 2007, we recorded $49 million of revenyssnuthe settlement of a dispute with a carriethird quarter 2007, we recognized $42.2 million of
revenues upon the expiration of a regulatory meimigoperiod. In fourth quarter 2007, we recogniaedkt benefit of approximately $32.7 million aftax
related to the release of previously unrecogniagdenefits. In fourth quarter 2007, we recordg@destax charge of approximately $16.6 million relate
the impairment of certain of our CLEC assets.

The first, second and third quarters of 2086ehbeen adjusted to reflect the application of 3AB (see Note 1 for additional information).

The fourth quarter of 2006 included an $11ilfion pre-tax charge related to the impairmenteftain non-operating investments. The second guart
of 2006 included a $117.8 million pre-tax gain nefsm upon the redemption of Rural Telephone Bapéksand a $6.4 million net tax benefit due to the
resolution of various income tax audit issues.
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The fourth quarter of 2005 included a $6.3liomil pre-tax charge related to the impairment aba-operating investment. The third quarter of 2005
included the following amounts presented on a prebsis: (i) the recognition of $35.9 million ef,enue as the settlement period related to the
2001/2002 monitoring period lapsed; (ii) $5.8 noitliof expenses related to Hurricanes Katrina atat Rii) a $9.9 million charge related to the
impairment of a non-operating investment; and &®3.5 million gain on the sale of a separate nuarating investment.

* Kk kkk k%
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Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Prox y Materials for the Annual Shareholder Meeting To B e Held on May 8, 2008: The Company’s proxy statemen tand
related materials are available at www.proxydocs.co  m/ctl .

KEY FOR EXPLANATION OF VOTING RIGHTS

TVS — TOTAL VOTING SECURITIES, INCLUDING DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT
AND/OR EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN(S)
1VT — ONE-VOTE TOTAL
10VT — TEN-VOTE TOTAL
VOTE — TOTAL VOTES TO WHICH YOU ARE ENTITLED

NOTE: TO DETERMINE THE TOTAL NUMBER OF 10-VOTE
SHARES, DIVIDE THE 10VT AMOUNT BY TEN (10).

v IF YOU HAVE NOT VOTED VIA THE INTERNET OR TELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND R ETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. ~

)
CENTURYIEL

Proxy — Centurytel, Inc.

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF D IRECTORS

The undersigned hereby constitutes and appoints Glen F. Post, Il or Stacey W. Goff, or either of them, proxies for the undersigned, with full
power of substitution, to represent the undersigned and to cast the number of votes attributable to all of the shares of common stock and
voting preferred stock (collectively, the “Voting Shares”) of CenturyTel, Inc. (the “Company”) that the undersigned is entitled to vote at the
annual meeting of shareholders of the Company to be held on May 8, 2 008, and at any and all adjournments thereof (the “Meeting”).

In addition to serving as a Proxy, this card will also serve as instructions to Computershare Investor Services, LLC (the “Agent”) to cast in the
manner designated on the reverse side hereof the number of votes allocable to the undersigned, if any, that are attributable to shares of the
Company’s common stock held as of March 10, 2008 in the name of the Agent and credited to any plan account of the undersigned in
accordance with the Company'’s dividend reinvestment plan or employee stock purchase plans. Upon timely receipt of this Proxy, properly
executed, all of the votes attributable to your Voting Shares, including any held in the name of the Agent, will be voted as specified.

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR Items 1 and 2 and AGAINST Item 3 listed on the reverse side hereof. If this Proxy is
properly executed but no specific directions are given, all of your votes will be voted in accordance with these recommendations.

(Please See Reverse Side)
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CEN‘TU/E\-/:I-'EL ::|::::|::::::::::|:::: :::::::|:::: ::::| ::::: ::::: ::::: :::n I
y C123456789

000000000.000000 ext 000000000.000000 ext
000000000.000000 ext 000000000.000000 ext
000000000.000000 ext 000000000.000000 ext
Electronic Voting Instructions
000004 You can vote by Internet or telephone!
MR A SAMPLE Available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week!
DESIGNATION (IF ANY) Instead of mailing your proxy, you may choose one of the two voting methods
ADD 1 outlined below to vote your proxy.
ADD 2 VALIDATION DETAILS ARE LOCATED BELOW IN THE TITLE BAR.
ADD3 Proxies submitted by the Internet or telephone must be received by
ADD 4 1:00 a.m., Central Time, on May 7, 2008.
ADD 5
ADD 6 Vote by Internet

minaninmnmimasim s mane * Logonto the Internet and go to
i A n i man e an e it

. Follow the steps outlined on the secured website.

SE Vote by telephone

. Call toll free 1-800-652-VOTE (8683) within the United States,
Canada & Puerto Rico any time on a touch tone telephone.
There is NO CHARGE to you for the call.

. Follow the instructions provided by the recorded message.

Using a black ink pen, mark your votes with an X as shown in this example.
Please do not write outside the designated areas.

Annual Meeting Proxy Card C0123456789 12345

~ IF YOU HAVE NOT VOTED VIA THE INTERNET OR TELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND R ETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. ~

Proposals — The Board of Directors recommends avot e FOR all the nominees listed and FOR___Proposal 2 and AGAINST

Proposal 3.
1. Election of Class Il For Withhold For Withhold For Withhold
Directors:
01 — Virginia Boulet D D 02 — Calvin Czeschin D D 03 — James B. Gardner D D

04 — Gregory J. McCray D D

For  Against Abstain For  Against Abstain

2. To ratify the selection of KPMG LLP 3. To act upon a shareholder proposal
as the Company’s independent D D D regarding executive compensation. D D D
auditor for 2008.

4. In their discretion to vote upon such
other business as may properly
come before the Meeting.

Bl Non-Voting Iltems
Change of Address — Please print new address below.

Authorized Signatures — This section must be completed for your vote to be counted. — Date and Sign Below

Please sign exactly as name appears on the certificate or certificates representing shares to be voted by this proxy. When signing as
executor, administrator, attorney, trustee or guardian, please give full title as such. If a corporation, please sign in full corporate name by
president or other authorized officer. If a partnership, please sign in partnership name by authorized persons.

Date (mm/dd/yyyy) — Please print date below. Signature 1 — Please keep signature within the box. Signature 2 — Please keep signature within the box.

[




]

MR A SAMPLE (THIS AREA IS SET UP TD ACCOMMODWTE
C 1234567890 N Tt rene, e ernioe AN 4 S fos
WR A SAMPLE AND MR A SANMPLE AND MR A SAMPLE AND

. 42AV 0165751 MR A SAMPLE AND MR\ SAMLE AND WELA SAMPLE AKD +

<STOCK#> OOUUGF
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Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Prox y Materials for the Annual Shareholder Meeting To B e Held on May 8, 2008: The Company’s proxy statemen tand
related materials are available at www.proxydocs.co  m/ctl.

v PLEASE FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND RETUR N THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. ~

)
CENTURYIEL

Proxy — CENTURYTEL, INC.

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF D IRECTORS

The undersigned hereby constitutes and appoints Glen F. Post, Il or Stacey W. Goff, or either of them, proxies for the undersigned, with full
power of substitution, to represent the undersigned and to cast the number of votes attributable to all of the shares of common stock and
voting preferred stock (collectively, the “Voting Shares”) of CenturyTel, Inc. (the “Company”) that the undersigned is entitled to vote at the
annual meeting of shareholders of the Company to be held on May 8, 2008, and at any and all adjournments thereof (the “Meeting”).

In addition to serving as a Proxy, this card will also serve as instructions to Computershare Investor Services, LLC (the “Agent”) to cast in the
manner designated on the reverse side hereof the number of votes allocable to the undersigned, if any, that are attributable to shares of the
Company’s common stock held as of March 10, 2008 in the name of the Agent and credited to any plan account of the undersigned in
accordance with the Company’s dividend reinvestment plan or employee stock purchase plans. Upon timely receipt of this Proxy, properly
executed, all of the votes attributable to your Voting Shares, including any held in the name of the Agent, will be voted as specified.

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR Items 1 and 2 and AGAINST Item 3 listed on the reverse side hereof. If this Proxy is
properly executed but no specific directions are given, all of your votes will be voted in accordance with these recommendations.

(Please See Reverse Side)
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Using a black ink pen, mark your votes with an X as shown in this example.
Please do not write outside the designated areas.

Annual Meeting Proxy Card

v PLEASE FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND RETUR N THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. v

Proposals — The Board of Directors recommends a vote ~ FOR all the nominees listed and FOR Proposal 2 and
AGAINST Proposal 3.

1. Election of Class Il For  Withhold For Withhold For Withhold
Directors:
+
01 — Virginia Boulet D D 02 — Calvin Czeschin D D 03 — James B. Gardner D D
04 — Gregory J. McCray D D
For Against Abstain For Against Abstain
2. To ratify the selection of KPMG LLP as the D D D 3. To act upon a shareholder proposal D D D

Company'’s independent auditor for 2008. regarding executive compensation.
4. In their discretion to vote upon such other

business as may properly come before the

Meeting.

B} Authorized Signatures — This section must be completed for your vote to be counted. — Date and Sign Below

Please sign exactly as name appears on the certificate or certificates representing shares to be voted by this proxy. When signing as
executor, administrator, attorney, trustee or guardian, please give full title as such. If a corporation, please sign in full corporate name by
president or other authorized officer. If a partnership, please sign in partnership name by authorized persons.

Date (mm/dd/yyyy) — Please print date below. Signature 1 — Please keep signature within the box.  Signature 2 — Please keep signature within the box.

[

1UPX 0165752
u +

<STOCK#> 00UUGB
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Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Prox y Materials for the Annual Shareholder Meeting To B e Held on May 8, 2008: The Company’s proxy statemen tand
related materials are available at www.proxydocs.co  m/ctl .

v IF YOU HAVE NOT VOTED VIA THE INTERNET OR TELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND R ETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. ~

)
CENTURYIEL

Voting Instruction — CENTURYTEL UNION 401(k) PLAN A ND TRUST

The undersigned, acting as a “named fiduciary” of the above-referenced plan of CenturyTel, Inc., as amended (the “Plan”), hereby instructs T.
Rowe Price Trust Company (the “Trustee”), as directed trustee of the Plan, to vote at the annual meeting of shareholders of CenturyTel, Inc.
(the “Company”) to be held on May 8, 2008, and any and all adjournments thereof (the “Meeting”), in the manner designated below (i) the
number of votes allocable to the undersigned that are attributable to all shares of the Company’s common stock held by the Trustee and
credited to the Plan account of the undersigned as of March 10, 2008 in accordance with the provisions of the Plan (the “Undersigned’s
Allocable Votes”) which is listed to the right of the address of the undersigned printed below, and (ii) the number of votes allocable to the
undersigned (determined pursuant to a formula specified in the Plan) that are attributable to all shares of the Company’s common stock held
by the Trustee as of March 10, 2008, as to which properly executed voting instructions are not timely received prior to the Meeting (referred to
individually as the “Undersigned’s Proportionate Votes” and collectively with the Undersigned’s Allocable Votes as the “Undersigned’s
Votes”).

The Trustee is hereby directed to authorize the Company'’s proxies to vote in their discretion upon such other business as may properly come
before the Meeting.

Upon timely receipt of these instructions, properly executed, the Undersigned’s Votes will be cast in the manner directed. If these instructions
are properly executed but no specific directions are given with respect to any of the Undersigned’s Allocable Votes or the Undersigned’s
Proportionate Votes, these votes will be cast in accordance with the Board’s recommendations.

Please mark, sign, date and return these instructions promptly using the enclosed envelope.
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000000000.000000 ext 000000000.000000 ext
000000000.000000 ext 000000000.000000 ext
000000000.000000 ext 000000000.000000 ext
Electronic Voting Instructions
000004 You can vote by Internet or telephone!
MR A SAMPLE Available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week!
DESIGNATION (IF ANY) Instead of mailing your voting instruction card, you may choose one of the two voting
ADD 1 methods outlined below to vote your voting instruction card.
ADD 2 VALIDATION DETAILS ARE LOCATED BELOW IN THE TITLE BAR.
ADD3 Proxies submitted by the Internet or telephone must be received by
ADD 4 1:00 a.m., Central Time, on May 5, 2008.
ADD 5
ADD 6 - Vote by Internet
|III||IIII|II||II|II|I|I|II||III|l|II||III|II|I|I|III|IIIII|I| ° Log on to the Internet and go to

www.investorvote.com
. Follow the steps outlined on the secured website.

SE Vote by telephone

. Call toll free 1-800-652-VOTE (8683) within the United States,
Canada & Puerto Rico any time on a touch tone telephone.
There is NO CHARGE to you for the call.

. Follow the instructions provided by the recorded message.

Using a black ink pen, mark your votes with an X as shown in this
example. Please do not write outside the designated areas.

Annual Meeting Voting Instruction Card 0123456789 12345

v IF YOU HAVE NOT VOTED VIA THE INTERNET OR TELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND R ETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. ~

Election of four Class Il Directors — The Board of Directors recommends a vote  FOR all the nominees listed.
1. Nominees:
A. Undersigned'’s Allocable Votes: For  Withhold B. Undersigned’s Proportionate For  Withhold +
Votes:

01 — Virginia Boulet D D 01 — Virginia Boulet D D
02 — Calvin Czeschin D D 02 — Calvin Czeschin D D
03 — James B. Gardner D D 03 — James B. Gardner D D
04 — Gregory J. McCray D D 04 — Gregory J. McCray D D

Bl Proposals — The Board of Directors recommends a vote ~ FOR Proposal 2 and AGAINST Proposal 3.

2. To ratify the selection of KPMG LLP as the Company’s 3. To act upon a shareholder proposal regarding executive compensation.
independent auditor for 2008.
For Against Abstain For  Against Abstain
A. Undersigned'’s Allocable Votes: D D D A. Undersigned’s Allocable Votes: D D D
B. Undersigned’s Proportionate Votes: D D D B. Undersigned’s Proportionate Votes: D D D
Authorized Signatures — This section must be completed for your vote to be counted. — Date and Sign Below

Please sign exactly as name appears on the certificate or certificates representing shares to be voted by this proxy. When signing as
executor, administrator, attorney, trustee or guardian, please give full title as such. If a corporation, please sign in full corporate name by
president or other authorized officer. If a partnership, please sign in partnership name by authorized persons.

Date (mm/dd/yyyy) — Please print date below. Signature 1 — Please keep signature within the box.
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Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Prox y Materials for the Annual Shareholder Meeting To B e Held on May 8, 2008: The Company’s proxy statemen tand
related materials are available at www.proxydocs.co  m/ctl .

v IF YOU HAVE NOT VOTED VIA THE INTERNET OR TELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND R ETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. ~

)
CENTURYIEL

Voting Instruction — CENTURYTEL DOLLARS & SENSE 401 (k) PLAN AND TRUST

The undersigned, acting as a “named fiduciary” of the above-referenced plan of CenturyTel, Inc., as amended (the “Plan”), hereby instructs
The Trust Company of Sterne, Agee & Leach, Inc. and T. Rowe Price Trust Company (the “Trustees”), as directed trustees with respect to
shares of the common stock of CenturyTel, Inc. (“Shares”) held by the Trustees in separate accounts in accordance with the Plan, to vote at
the annual meeting of shareholders of CenturyTel, Inc. (the “Company”) to be held on May 8, 2008, and any and all adjournments thereof (the
“Meeting”), in the manner designated below (i) the number of votes allocable to the undersigned that are attributable to all Shares held by
Sterne, Agee & Leach, Inc. and credited to the ESOP, Stock Bonus or PAYSOP accounts of the undersigned as of March 10, 2008 or held by
T. Rowe Price Trust Company and credited to the 401(k) accounts of the undersigned as of March 10, 2008 in accordance with the provisions
of the Plan and the related trusts referred to therein (the “Undersigned’s Allocable Votes”) which is listed to the right of the address of the
undersigned printed below, and (ii) the number of votes allocable to the undersigned (determined in the manner specified in the Plan or the
related trusts) that are attributable to all Shares held by the Trustees as of March 10, 2008 as to which properly executed voting instructions
are not timely received prior to the commencement of the Meeting (referred to individually as the “Undersigned’s Proportionate Votes” and
collectively with the Undersigned’s Allocable Votes as the “Undersigned’s Votes”).

The Trustees are hereby directed to authorize the Company’s proxies to vote in their discretion upon such other business as may properly
come before the Meeting.

Upon timely receipt of these instructions, properly executed, the Undersigned’s Votes will be cast in the manner directed. If these instructions
are properly executed but no specific directions are given with respect to any of the Undersigned’s Allocable Votes or the Undersigned’s
Proportionate Votes, such votes will be cast in accordance with the Board’s recommendations.

Please mark, sign, date and return these instructions promptly using the enclosed envelope.
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Electronic Voting Instructions

000004 You can vote by Internet or telephone!
MR A SAMPLE Available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week!

DESIGNATION (IF ANY) Instead of mailing your voting instruction card, you may choose one of the two voting
ADD 1 methods outlined below to vote your voting instruction card.

ADD 2 VALIDATION DETAILS ARE LOCATED BELOW IN THE TITLE BAR.
ADD3 Proxies submitted by the Internet or telephone must be received by
ADD 4 1:00 a.m., Central Time, on May 5, 2008.
ADD 5
ADD 6 - Vote by Internet
R |1 [ | 1 1 | 8 e Y R . Log on to the Internet and go to
tn e bl o b b E e b b e bl ek b ede b ke W INVEstorvote.com
. Follow the steps outlined on the secured website.
SE Vote by telephone
. Call toll free 1-800-652-VOTE (8683) within the United States,
Canada & Puerto Rico any time on a touch tone telephone.
There is NO CHARGE to you for the call.
. Follow the instructions provided by the recorded message.
Using a black ink pen, mark your votes with an X as shown in this
example. Please do not write outside the designated areas.

Annual Meeting Voting Instruction Card 0123456789 12345

v IF YOU HAVE NOT VOTED VIA THE INTERNET OR TELEPHONE, FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND R ETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. ~

Election of four Class Il Directors — The Board of Directors recommends a vote  FOR all the nominees listed.
1. Nominees:
A. Undersigned'’s Allocable Votes: For  Withhold B. Undersigned’s Proportionate For  Withhold +
Votes:

01 — Virginia Boulet D D 01 — Virginia Boulet D D
02 — Calvin Czeschin D D 02 — Calvin Czeschin D D
03 — James B. Gardner D D 03 — James B. Gardner D D
04 — Gregory J. McCray D D 04 — Gregory J. McCray D D

Bl Proposals — The Board of Directors recommends a vote ~ FOR Proposal 2 and AGAINST Proposal 3.

2. To ratify the selection of KPMG LLP as the Company’s 3. To act upon a shareholder proposal regarding
independent auditor for 2008. executive compensation.
For Against Abstain For  Against Abstain
A. Undersigned'’s Allocable Votes: D D D A. Undersigned'’s Allocable Votes: D D D
B. Undersigned’s Proportionate Votes: D D D B. Undersigned’s Proportionate Votes: D D D
Authorized Signatures — This section must be completed for your vote to be counted. — Date and Sign Below

Please sign exactly as name appears on the certificate or certificates representing shares to be voted by this proxy. When signing as executor, administrator,
attorney, trustee or guardian, please give full title as such. If a corporation, please sign in full corporate name by president or other authorized officer. If a
partnership, please sign in partnership name by authorized persons.

Date (mm/dd/yyyy) — Please print date below. Signature 1 — Please keep signature within the box.
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